SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549 FORM 20-F

	FORM	VI 20-F
	REGISTRATION STATEMENT PURSU SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 193	ANT TO SECTION 12(B) OR 12(G) OF THE
		OR .
V	ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SEC EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934	CTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES
	For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008	
		OR .
	TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934	SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES
		OR .
	SHELL COMPANY REPORT PURSUAN EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934	NT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES
	Date of event requiring this shell company report	
	For the transition period from to	
	Commission file n	number: 333-150010
Лit		upu Horudingusu Kabushik
VIIUS	· ·	
	Ka	isha
	(Exact name of registran	t as specified in its charter)
N		nce Group Holdings, Inc. ant's name into English)
		27-2, Shinkawa 2-chome
	Japan (Jurisdiction of incorporation or	Chuo-ku, Tokyo 104-8252
	organization)	Japan (Address of principal executive offices)
		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
		81-3-3297-6920, 27-2, Shinkawa 2-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 52, Japan
		imber and Address of Company Contact Person)
	Securities registered or to be registered	ed pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
	Title of Each Class	Name of Each Exchange On Which Registered
	N/A	N/A
	N	ed pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
	(Title o	of Class)
	Comm	ligation pursuant to Section 15(d) of the Act: on Stock of Class)

Indicate the number of outstanding shares of each of the issuer's classes of capital or common stock as of the close of the period covered by the annual report.

On April 1, 2008, the registrant was formed and issued shares of its common stock to the then shareholders of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co., Ltd. ("Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance") in exchange for the shares of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's common stock that they held, at the exchange ratio of 0.3 shares of the registrant's common stock for each share of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's common stock. As of March 31, 2008, 1,404,402,464 shares of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's common stock were outstanding, which were equivalent to 421,320,739 shares of the registrant's common stock.

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes □ No ☑ If this report is an annual or transition report, indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Yes ☑ No □ Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports),
Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Yes ☑ No □ Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Yes ☑ No □ Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.
Yes ☑ No □
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated filer. See definition of "accelerated filer and large accelerated filer" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):
Large accelerated filer \square
Indicate by check mark which basis of accounting the registrant has used to prepare the financial statements included in this filing:
U.S. GAAP ☑ International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board □
If "Other" has been checked in response to the previous question, indicate by check mark which financial statement item the registrant has elected to follow.
Item 17 □ Item 18 □
If this is an annual report, indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes □ No Ø

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page

F-1

	PART I	
Item 1.	Identity of Directors, Senior Management and Advisers	1
Item 2.	Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable	1
Item 3.	Key Information	1
Item 4.	<u>Information on the Company</u>	11
Item 4A.	<u>Unresolved Staff Comments</u>	49
Item 5.	Operating and Financial Review and Prospects	49
Item 6.	Directors, Senior Management and Employees	81
Item 7.	Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions	87
Item 8.	Financial Information	88
Item 9.	The Offer and Listing	89
<u>Item 10.</u>	Additional Information	92
<u>Item 11.</u>	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	105
<u>Item 12.</u>	Description of Securities Other Than Equity Securities	110
	<u>PART II</u>	
Item 13.	Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquencies	111
<u>Item 14.</u>	Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Holders and Use of Proceeds	111
Item 15T.	Controls and Procedures	111
Item 16A.	Audit Committee Financial Expert	111
Item 16B.	Code of Ethics	111
Item 16C.	Principal Accountant Fees and Services	111
Item 16D.	Exemption from the Listing Standards for Audit Committees	112
Item 16E.	Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers	112
	PART III	
<u>Item 17.</u>	Financial Statements	112
<u>Item 18.</u>	Financial Statements	112
Item 19.	Exhibits	113

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc. was formed on April 1, 2008, at which time it issued shares of its common stock to the then shareholders of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co., Ltd. in exchange for the shares of the latter company's common stock that they held. As a result, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc. is now the ultimate parent company of the consolidated group companies of which Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co., Ltd. was previously the ultimate parent company. Information of the Company as of or for a period ended a date prior to April 1, 2008 that is disclosed in this annual report is information of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance and/or its consolidated group companies.

Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedule

As used in this annual report, references to the "Company" are to Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc. when the references relate to the period on or after April 1, 2008, and to Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co., Ltd. when the references relate to the period on or prior to March 31, 2008. Also, as used in this annual report, references to "we", "our" and "us" are to the Company and, except as the context otherwise requires, its subsidiaries.

As used in this annual report, "U.S. dollar" or "\$" means the lawful currency of the United States of America, and "yen" or "\mathbb{Y}" means the lawful currency of Japan.

As used in this annual report, "U.S. GAAP" means accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, and "Japanese GAAP" means accounting principles generally accepted in Japan.

PART I

Item 1. Identity of Directors, Senior Management and Advisers.

Not applicable.

Item 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable.

Not applicable.

Item 3. Key Information.

A. Selected Financial Data.

U.S. GAAP Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data have been derived from the Company's consolidated financial statements included in this annual report. These financial statements were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. You should read these data together with Item 5 of this annual report and the Company's consolidated financial statements included in this annual report.

Selected Financial Data Prepared in Accordance with U.S. GAAP

	Year Ended March 31,				
	2005	2006	2007	2008	
		(Yen in millions.	, except per share data)	
Income Statement Data:					
Net premiums written	¥1,402,977	¥ 1,458,507	¥ 1,489,379	¥ 1,537,616	
Net premiums earned	1,357,748	1,422,801	1,469,080	1,502,685	
Premium income for life insurance contracts	156,254	179,430	193,551	192,731	
Investment income, net of investment expenses	119,479	156,102	179,189	185,265	
Net realized gains (losses) on investments	50,992	50,199	24,315	(17,370)	
Total revenue	1,684,473	1,808,532	1,866,135	1,863,311	
Losses and claims incurred and provided for	918,771	881,623	909,656	906,257	
Total expenses	1,617,400	1,627,555	1,698,696	1,709,552	
Net income	46,694	119,890	113,916	104,796	
Balance sheet data (period end):					
Total investments		7,481,988	7,943,462	7,293,449	
Total assets		9,398,714	9,877,032	9,326,325	
Total liabilities		6,742,777	6,985,891	6,898,440	
Common stock		137,495	137,495	137,495	
Accumulated other comprehensive income		1,119,324	1,255,766	713,667	
Total shareholders' equity		2,652,968	2,874,460	2,409,299	
Number of shares outstanding		1,513,184,880	1,513,184,880	1,404,402,464	
Per share data:					
Net income per share — basic	¥ 32.37	¥ 84.11	¥ 80.24	¥ 74.28	
Shareholders' equity per share (1)	1,432.11	1,867.47	2,036.89	1,715.53	
Cash dividends per share	8.50	13.50	15.00	15.00	
Cash dividends per share (2)				\$ 0.12	
Key ratios (3):					
Net loss ratio (4)	67.7%	62.09	% 61.9%	60.3%	
Combined loss and expense ratio (5)	102.7%	97.69	% 99.1%	6 98.7%	

Notes:

- (1) At period end, calculated using the number of shares then outstanding (excluding shares held by the Company).
- (2) Calculating using the yen-dollar exchange rate at the date of the shareholders' meeting at which the relevant dividend payment was approved.
- (3) The key ratios relate to the property and casualty insurance reportable segment.
- (4) The ratio of losses incurred to net premiums earned.
- (5) Sum of the ratio of losses and loss adjustment expenses incurred to net premiums earned and the ratio of underwriting and administrative expenses incurred to net premiums written.

Japanese GAAP Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data have been derived from the Company's consolidated financial statements that were prepared in accordance with Japanese GAAP. Such consolidated financial statements were included in the Company's annual reports filed with the Japanese authorities pursuant to the Securities and Exchange Law (now the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law) of Japan.

	Year Ended March 31,				
	2004	2005	2006	2007(1)	2008(1)
		(Yen in millions,	, except per share data)	
Income statement data:					
Ordinary income	¥2,066,50	00 ¥2,021,917	¥2,106,874	¥2,117,072	¥2,137,603
Net premiums written	1,379,11	1,407,328	1,464,107	1,492,808	1,541,032
Ordinary profit	174,94	43 87,577	127,710	91,684	60,866
Net income	77,78	65,725	71,660	60,796	40,027
Balance sheet data (period end):					
Net assets	¥1,401,91	11 ¥1,461,575	¥2,027,469	¥2,182,877	¥1,671,517
Total assets	7,126,96	7,402,311	8,592,873	9,011,652	8,397,718
Per share data:					
Net income per share:					
Basic	¥ 53.9	94 ¥ 45.51	¥ 50.27	¥ 42.82	¥ 28.37
Diluted	52.7	78 45.51	50.27	42.82	28.37
Net assets per share	963.5	51 1,021.13	1,427.17	1,536.71	1,178.48
Key ratios:					
Equity ratio	19.6	67% 19.74%	6 23.60%	24.06%	19.71%
Return on equity	6.3	37% 4.59%	6 4.11%	2.90%	2.09%
Price earnings ratio	20.5	54 21.60	31.85	34.54	35.50

⁽¹⁾ Effective from the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company adopted "Accounting Standard for Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance Sheet" (Accounting Standards Board of Japan ("ASBJ") Statement No. 5, issued on December 9, 2005) and "Guidance on Accounting Standard for Presentation of Net Assets in the Balance Sheet" (ASBJ Guidance No. 8, issued on December 9, 2005).

Exchange Rate Data

Fluctuations in exchange rates between the Japanese yen and U.S. dollar and other currencies will affect the U.S. dollar and other currency equivalent of the yen price of our shares and ADSs and the U.S. dollar amounts received on conversion of cash dividends. We have translated some Japanese yen amounts presented in this annual report into U.S. dollars solely for your convenience. Unless otherwise noted, the rate used for the translations was \\$100 per \\$1.00. This was the approximate exchange rate in Japan on March 31, 2008. The translation should not be construed as a representation that the yen amounts have been, could have been, or could in the future be converted into U.S. dollars at the above or any other rate.

The following table presents the noon buying rates for Japanese yen per \$1.00 in New York City for cable transfers in foreign currencies as certified for customs purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York for and as of the end of each period indicated.

Fiscal year ended March 31,	High	Low	Average ⁽¹⁾	Period-end
2004	¥120.55	¥104.18	¥112.75	¥104.18
2005	114.30	102.26	107.28	107.22
2006	120.93	104.41	113.67	117.48
2007	121.81	110.07	116.55	117.56
2008	124.09	96.88	114.31	99.85
Calendar year 2008				
March	¥103.99	¥ 96.88	¥100.76	¥ 99.85
April	104.56	100.87	102.68	104.53
May	105.52	103.01	104.36	105.46
June	108.29	104.41	106.92	106.17
July	108.19	104.64	106.85	108.10
August	110.48	107.59	109.36	108.69

⁽¹⁾ Calculated from the average of the exchange rates on the last day of each month during the period with respect to fiscal years and from the average of daily noon buying rate with respect to calendar years.

As of September 26, 2008, the noon buying rate was \\$106.06 per \\$1.00.

B. Capitalization and Indebtedness.

Not applicable.

C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds.

Not applicable.

D. Risk Factors.

You should carefully consider the risks described below before making an investment decision. If any of the risks described below actually occurs, our business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flow could be adversely affected. In that event, the trading prices of our shares could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment. In addition to the risks listed below, risks not currently known to us or that we now deem immaterial may also harm us and affect your investment.

Risks Relating to Our Overall Business

If economic conditions in Japan again worsen, our financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected

We derive most of our insurance underwriting revenues from Japan. In addition, a substantial majority of the investments in our investment portfolio are Japanese equity securities, bonds and loans. Accordingly, our financial condition and results of operations are very dependent on economic conditions in Japan.

The Japanese economy experienced a significant downturn in the early 1990s and the Nikkei Stock Average, which is one of the major benchmarks for equity prices in Japan, reached its lowest level in twenty years in April 2003. While economic conditions have recently improved, if economic conditions again worsen, due to factors including but not limited to current or future high oil prices, it could have a significant impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

Deregulation, consolidation and the entry of new competitors have intensified competition in the Japanese insurance industry

Japan's current Insurance Business Law enacted in April 1996 contains provisions designed to deregulate and increase competition in the life and non-life insurance business in Japan. The Insurance Business Law has provisions permitting life insurance companies and non-life insurance companies to enter each other's business through subsidiaries. The Insurance Business Law also permits the entry of foreign insurance companies with global operations into the Japanese insurance market and the entry of new competitors that have traditionally been engaged in non-insurance business activities. Furthermore, an amendment to the Law Concerning the Non-Life Insurance Rating Organization in 1998 has allowed non-life insurers to set their own premium rates, which has effectively opened the door to premium rate competition. We operate in a business environment in which competition has intensified and accelerated due to these measures.

In addition, changes in the financial services market, including the full liberalization of over-the-counter sales of insurance products at banks in December 2007 and the privatization of Japan Post in October 2007, are expected to accelerate competition in both price and quality of insurance products. Such competition could adversely affect our profitability.

Japan is prone to natural disasters, which can result in substantial claims on non-life insurance policies

Japan is frequently subject to earthquakes, typhoons, windstorms, floods and other types of natural disasters, the frequency and severity of which are inherently unpredictable. See, for example, "Business of the Company — Lines of Business — Fire and Allied Lines (Excluding Earthquake)" under Item 4.B of this annual report for a list of major windstorms and floods that affected Japan during the last 30 years. In connection with one major typhoon that occurred in September 1991, we paid insurance claims in the aggregate amount of approximately \times 77 billion under fire and allied lines insurance. These types of natural disasters can have a serious impact on us depending on their frequency, their nature and scope, the amount of insurance coverage we have written in respect of them, the amount of claims for losses, the timing of such claims and the extent to which our liability is covered by reinsurance. We set our premium rates at levels which we believes are adequate to accommodate the effect of disasters, and we cede certain of the relevant risks to reinsurers under reinsurance policies. However, the occurrence of a natural disaster, or a series of natural disasters, the severity, frequency or nature of which we did not predict, or for which we are not adequately reinsured, could significantly affect our financial condition or results of operations.

We may be required to augment our reserves in case of unforeseen losses

The insurance business is unlike manufacturing and most other businesses in that, at the time of a "sale" — the writing of an insurance policy and the payment of the premium — the "cost" of sale — the payment of a claim for a loss under the insurance policy — is not yet determined.

Claim and claim adjustment expense reserves (loss reserves) represent management's estimate of ultimate unpaid cost of losses and loss adjustment expenses for claims that have been reported and claims that have been incurred but not yet reported. Loss reserves do not represent an exact calculation of liability, but instead represent management estimates, generally utilizing actuarial expertise and projection techniques, at a given accounting date. These loss reserve estimates are expectations of what the ultimate settlement and administration of claims will cost upon final resolution in the future, based on our assessment of facts and circumstances then known, review of historical settlement patterns, estimates of trends in claims severity and frequency, expected interpretations of legal theories of liability and other factors. In establishing reserves, we also take into account estimated recoveries from reinsurance, salvage and subrogation.

The process of estimating loss reserves involves a high degree of judgment and is subject to a number of variables. These variables can be affected by both internal and external events, such as changes in claims handling procedures, economic inflation, legal trends and legislative changes, among others. The impact of many of these items on ultimate costs for claims and claim adjustment expenses is difficult to estimate. Loss reserve estimation difficulties also differ significantly by product line due to differences in claim complexity, the volume of claims, the potential severity of individual claims, the determination of occurrence date for a claim and reporting lags (the time between the occurrence of the policyholder event and when it is actually reported to the insurer).

We continually refine our loss reserve estimates in a regular ongoing process as historical loss experience develops and additional claims are reported and settled. Informed judgment is applied throughout the process, including the application, on a consistent basis over time, of various individual experiences and expertise to multiple sets of data and analyses. Different experts may choose different assumptions when faced with material uncertainty, based on their individual backgrounds, professional experiences and areas of focus. Hence, such experts may at times produce estimates materially different from each other. Experts providing input to the various estimates and underlying assumptions include actuaries, underwriters, claim personnel and lawyers, as well as other Company management. Therefore, management may have to consider varying individual viewpoints as part of its estimation of loss reserves.

We rigorously attempt to consider all significant facts and circumstances known at the time loss reserves are established. Due to the inherent uncertainty underlying loss reserve estimates including but not limited to the future settlement environment, final resolution of the estimated liability will be different from that anticipated at the reporting date. Therefore, actual paid losses in the future may yield a materially different amount than currently reserved — favorable or unfavorable.

Because of the uncertainties set forth above, additional liabilities may arise for amounts in excess of the current reserves. In addition, our estimate of claims and claim adjustment expenses may change. These additional liabilities or increases in estimates, or a range of either, cannot now be reasonably estimated and could materially and adversely affect our results of operations or financial condition in future periods.

For a discussion of claims and claim adjustment expense reserves by product line, including examples of common factors that can affect required reserves, see "Critical Accounting Policies — Insurance Reserves" under Item 5.A of this annual report.

Generally speaking, an insurance company might face up to the uncertainty, namely, the difficulty to foresee the frequency, type or magnitude of losses at the time of writing the insurance policies. If this type of deficiency arises with respect to our insurance liability reserves, we would have to augment our reserves or otherwise incur a charge to earnings, which in turn could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. Historically, we have not experienced such unforeseen losses. However, many insurance companies have experienced such losses. For example, the terrorist attacks in the United States on September 11, 2001 resulted in many unforeseen losses to insurers around the world and the collapse of some insurance and reinsurance firms, including Taisei Fire and Marine Co., Ltd. in Japan. In another example, the United States insurance industry experienced significant unforeseen losses with respect to unexpected claims resulting from the harmful effects of asbestos use. Our loss reserves could substantially increase if claims are similarly made against our insurance policies for risks which we did not anticipate.

We will be subject to risks associated with reinsurance

Like many other non-life insurance companies, we use reinsurance to provide greater capacity to write larger policies and to control our exposure to extraordinary losses or catastrophes. Reinsurance is a form of insurance that insurance companies buy for their own protection. An insurance company, referred to as a reinsured, reduces its possible maximum loss on risks by giving, or ceding, a portion of its liability to another insurance company, referred to as a reinsurer. Reinsurance is subject to prevailing market conditions, both in terms of price, which could affect our profitability, and in terms of availability, which could affect our ability to offer insurance. Following the events of September 11, 2001, the Asian Tsunami in 2004, Hurricane Katrina in 2005 and other recent natural disasters, availability of reinsurance generally has been more limited and prices for reinsurance have been higher. Further large catastrophes could make it difficult or impossible to obtain the reinsurance coverage we seek on terms acceptable to us. In addition, we are subject to credit risk with respect to our ability to recover amounts due from our reinsurers, as the ceding of liabilities to reinsurers does not relieve us of our liability as the direct insurer to policyholders under the contracts with respect to which liabilities have been ceded.

Our investment activities entail risks

We invest our policyholders' premiums in a portfolio of assets. See "Business of the Company - Investments" under Item 4.B of this annual report for the breakdown of our asset portfolio. These assets are subject to the normal risks associated with these kinds of investments, including the risk that changes in market prices, interest rates, market indices, levels of volatility, price correlations, liquidity or other market factors might result in losses for a specific position or portfolio and the risk that a counterparty to a transaction might fail to perform under its contractual commitment, resulting in our incurring losses. In particular, to the extent our investment portfolio includes corporate stocks, it will be subject to frequent and volatile changes in their values. As of March 31, 2008, Japanese equities available for sale represented 31% (¥2,277 billion) of total investments other than investments in affiliates (as will hereinafter be described in detail). We also have investments in Lehman Brothers Holdings, Inc. ("Lehman Brothers"), which filed a petition under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code on September 15, 2008. In addition, we are subject to interest rate risk due to our investments in fixed income instruments as well as deposit-type insurance and long-term insurance liabilities. Since liabilities exceed investment assets exposed to interest rate risk, a decrease in interest rates decreases the value of our net portfolio and thereby adversely affects our financial condition. Also, economic sluggishness, a decline of equity market or real estate prices in Japan, an increase in the number of bankruptcy filings in Japan, or a combination of such events, could increase defaults by issuers or borrowers.

As of September 16, 2008, our investment in Lehman Brothers bonds totaled \$13,681 million on a consolidated basis. One of our affiliates accounted for by the equity method, in which we have a 49.99% economic interest, has an investment of \$1,845 million in those bonds. In addition, our overseas subsidiaries have written insurance policies under which they guarantee a maximum of \$6,348 million on Lehman Brothers. We have also entered into derivative transactions with Lehman Brothers, but our effective exposure is immaterial. The above amounts are translated at the foreign exchange rate of September 16, 2008, of \$104.39 per \$1.00.

If another "Mitsui" or "Sumitomo" company is having financial difficulties, we may be called upon, and may decide to provide, financial support to that company

We are one of both the so-called "Mitsui companies" and "Sumitomo companies", which are each a loose grouping of Japanese companies — most of them carrying the "Mitsui" or "Sumitomo" name — that have evolved during a period of over 100 years. The relationships among the Mitsui companies and the relationships among the Sumitomo companies, which are similar to those of other major Japanese corporate groupings, are ones of cooperation in areas of common interest within a group of publicly-owned companies, each operating independently under its own management. Within each group, member companies are engaged in a wide range of activities, including manufacturing, trading, natural resources, transportation, real estate, banking and life and non-life insurance. We expect to continue our relationships with other Mitsui companies and other Sumitomo companies, and these relationships may continue to be important in our decision-making processes. If there is any financially troubled Mitsui or Sumitomo group company, we may, on a case-by-case basis, decide to provide financial support in order to protect and enhance our own interests. In such a case, we would consider the negative effect that declining to provide financial support would have on our own revenues as a result of the lowering of the brand value of the "Mitsui" or "Sumitomo" name, were the financial condition of the group company seeking support to further deteriorate. We would also consider the impact on our revenues of the potential strain on our business relationships with other Mitsui or Sumitomo group companies.

Our foreign assets and liabilities are exposed to foreign currency fluctuations

We hold assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies such as the U.S. dollar, the euro and the pound sterling. A decrease in the fair value of assets or an increase in the fair value of liabilities as a result of foreign currency fluctuations could adversely affect our financial position. Fluctuations in foreign exchange rates also create foreign currency translation gains or losses.

Our financial results may be materially adversely affected by unpredictable events

Our business, results of operations and financial condition may be materially adversely affected by unpredictable events and their consequences. Unpredictable events include single or multiple man-made or natural events that, among other things, cause unexpectedly large market price movements, increases in claims or deterioration of economic conditions of certain countries or regions, such as the terrorist attack on the United States on September 11, 2001, the outbreak of Severe Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) in Asia in 2003 or the outbreaks of the bird flu and other events.

We may not succeed in executing our growth strategies outside of Japan

Our strategy includes expanding our businesses in markets outside of Japan.

Each of the following additional factors, among others, could affect our future international operations:

- The impact of economic slowdown or currency crises in economies outside Japan;
- Unexpected changes in or delays resulting from regulatory requirements;
- Exchange controls;
- Restrictions on foreign investment or the repatriation of profits or invested capital;
- Changes in the tax systems or rate of taxation;
- Social, political and economic risks;
- Natural disasters; and
- Unexpected spread of contagious diseases.

Business interruptions, human factors or external events may adversely affect our financial results

Operational risk is inherent in our business and can manifest itself in various ways, including business interruptions, regulatory breaches, human errors, employee misconduct and external fraud. These events can potentially result in financial loss or harm to our reputation, or otherwise hinder our operational effectiveness. Our management attempts to control this risk and keep operational risk at appropriate levels. Notwithstanding these control measures, operational risk is part of the business environment in which we operate and we may incur losses from time to time due to operational risk.

System failures may adversely affect our reputation, operations and financial condition

System failure risk is inherent in our operations, which rely heavily on computer and other information systems. System failures due to unexpected events, the wrongful use of these systems due to deficient or defective security measures or failures due to deficient or defective development or operation of information systems could result in adverse effects on our operations, increased direct or indirect costs due to recovery operations as well as impaired reputation and credibility due to press coverage of such failures. We seek to manage and minimize our system failure risk and have implemented a contingency plan that would allow us to continue our operations in the event of a system failure. However, despite these measures to mitigate system failure risk, any significant system failure could still materially adversely affect our operations and financial condition.

Unauthorized disclosure of personal information held by us may adversely affect our business

We keep and manage personal information obtained from customers in relation to our insurance business. In recent years, there have been many cases of personal information and records in the possession of corporations and institutions being improperly accessed or disclosed. The standards relating to protection of personal information that apply to us have become more stringent under the Law Concerning Protection of Personal Information and rules, regulations and guidelines relating thereto. The provisions of this law applicable to us became effective on April 1, 2005. Although we exercise care in protecting the confidentiality of personal information and take steps to ensure security of such information, if any material unauthorized disclosure of personal information does occur, our credibility and brand image may suffer. In addition, we may have to provide compensation for economic loss arising out of a failure to protect such information, thereby materially adversely affecting our results of operations and financial condition.

Since we are a holding company, our ability to pay operating and financing expenses and dividends depend on the financial performance of our principal operating subsidiaries. Our ability to pay dividends also depends on our own dividend-paying capacity

As a holding company, our ability to pay operating and financing expenses and dividends depends primarily on the receipt of sufficient funds from our principal operating subsidiaries. Statutory provisions regulate our operating subsidiaries' ability to pay dividends. If our operating subsidiaries are unable to pay dividends to us in a timely manner and in amounts sufficient to pay our operating and financing expenses to declare and pay dividends and to meet our other obligations, we may not be able to pay dividends or we may need to seek other sources of liability.

Under the Corporation Law of Japan, or the Corporate Law, we will not be able to declare or pay dividends unless we meet specified financial criteria on a "parent-only" basis. Generally, we will be permitted to pay dividends only if we have retained earnings on a non-consolidated balance sheet basis as of the end of the preceding fiscal year (determined in accordance with Japanese GAAP).

A downgrade in the financial strength ratings of our operating subsidiaries could limit our ability to market products, increase the number of policies being surrendered and hurt our relationships with customers and trading counterparties

Financial strength ratings, which are intended to measure an insurer's ability to meet policyholder obligations, are an important factor affecting public confidence in most of our products and, as a result, our competitiveness. A downgrade, or potential downgrade, of the financial strength ratings of our operating subsidiaries, may limit our ability to sell our insurance and annuity products, adversely affect our reinsurance business and adversely affect the terms and conditions of the business we conduct with trading counterparties.

Japanese life insurance and non-life insurance companies have been subject to increasing scrutiny and regulatory actions in connection with under-payment and non-payment of claims and benefits

As the product offerings of Japanese life and non-life insurance companies have expanded, in recent years the Financial Services Agency of Japan, or the FSA, has more closely scrutinized disclosure made to policyholders and instances in which insurers have failed to pay claims and benefits payable to insured parties. For example, in November 2005, the FSA issued a business improvement order to us, together with 25 other non-life insurance companies, ordering improvements in corporate governance, disclosure to policyholders, product development and policy claim payment procedures, among other things.

We take these administrative measures with the utmost seriousness, and in response to a business suspension order in June 2006, in July 2006 we submitted a business improvement plan to the FSA. Under the plan, we believe we are improving and strengthening corporate governance, claims payment and product development administration systems, policyholder protection and benefits, and the legal compliance system. However, given the increasing regulatory scrutiny and actions, including business suspension orders given by the FSA to 10 insurance companies in March 2007 (not including us), we cannot fully assure that we will not be the subject to further review or sanctions in the future.

In addition, the matters relating to under-payment and non-payment of insurance claims, and related negative media attention, could have a negative impact on the public perception of life and non-life insurers in Japan, which could cause customers to avoid insurance and investment products offered by insurance companies in favor of competing products offered by banks, securities companies and other financial service providers.

Risks Relating to the Shares

Investors holding less than a unit of shares will have limited rights as shareholders

Pursuant to the Corporate Law of Japan relating to joint stock corporations and other related legislation, our Articles of Incorporation provide that 100 shares of common stock constitute one "unit". The Corporate Law imposes significant restrictions and limitations on holdings of shares that do not constitute whole units. In general, holders of shares constituting less than one unit do not have the right to vote or to examine our books and records. The transferability of our shares of common stock constituting less than one unit is significantly limited. For a more complete description of the unit share system and its effect on the rights of holders of our shares, see "Unit Share System" under Item 10.B of this annual report.

Rights of shareholders under Japanese law may be more limited than under the laws of other jurisdictions

Our Articles of Incorporation, our board of directors' Regulations, the Corporate Law and the Insurance Business Law of Japan govern our corporate affairs. Legal principles relating to such matters as the validity of corporate procedures, directors' fiduciary duties and liabilities, and shareholders' rights may be different from those that would apply to a non-Japanese company. Shareholders' rights under Japanese law may not be as extensive as shareholders' rights under the laws of other countries or jurisdictions within the United States. You may have more difficulty in asserting your rights as a shareholder than you would as a shareholder of a corporation organized in another jurisdiction.

Because of daily price range limitations under Japanese stock exchange rules, you may not be able to sell your shares of our common stock at a particular price on any particular trading day, or at all

Stock prices on Japanese stock exchanges are determined on a real-time basis by the equilibrium between bids and offers. These exchanges are order-driven markets without specialists or market makers to guide price formation. To prevent excessive volatility, these exchanges set daily upward and downward price fluctuation limits for each stock, based on the previous day's closing price. Although transactions may continue at the upward or downward limit price if the limit price is reached on a particular trading day, no transactions may take place outside these limits. Consequently, an investor wishing to sell at a price above or below the relevant daily limit may not be able to sell his or her shares at such price on a particular trading day, or at all.

It may not be possible for investors to effect service of process within the United States upon us or our directors, executive officers or corporate auditors, or to enforce against us or those persons judgments obtained in U.S. courts predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States

We are a joint stock corporation organized under the laws of Japan. All of our directors, executive officers and corporate auditors reside outside of the United States. Many of our and their assets are located in Japan and elsewhere outside the United States. It may not be possible, therefore, for U.S. investors to effect service of process within the United States upon us or these persons or to enforce against us or these persons judgments obtained in the U.S. courts predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States. We believe that there is doubt as to the enforceability in Japan, in original actions or in actions to enforce judgments of U.S. courts, of liabilities predicated solely upon the federal securities laws of the United States.

Item 4. Information on the Company.

A. History and Development of the Company.

We are a joint-stock company incorporated under the laws of Japan. Our principal offices are located at 27-2, Shinkawa 2-chome, Chuo-ku, Tokyo, 104-8252, Japan. Our telephone number is +81-3-3297-6480.

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc. is the result of the share transfer conducted solely by Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited ("Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance") which in turn had resulted from the merger between Mitsui Marine and Fire Insurance Company, Limited ("Mitsui Marine") and the Sumitomo Marine and Fire Insurance Company, Limited ("Sumitomo Marine"). The share transfer and the merger are described below.

Mitsui Marine

Mitsui Marine was established in Tokyo, Japan in 1918 under the corporate name "Taisho Marine and Fire Insurance Company, Limited" by a group of leading businessmen under the aegis of Mitsui & Co., Ltd. Approximately 40 other companies had a similar origin and our special relationship to those companies has played an important role in our development over the years.

The primary lines of business in which Taisho Marine was originally engaged included marine and fire insurance. Taisho Marine gradually expanded its lines of business, in 1928 introducing automobile and personal accident insurance.

Under the governmental control of the insurance industry during World War II, Taisho Marine merged with Shin-Nippon Fire and Marine Insurance Company, Limited in 1941 and with Mitsui Fire and Marine Insurance Company, Limited in 1944. Despite substantial loss of assets and markets as a result of World War II, Taisho Marine achieved a steady expansion of its business in conjunction with the long-term growth of Japan's economy in the decades following the late 1950s.

After the enactment of the Automobile Liability Security Law in 1955, Taisho Marine started underwriting compulsory automobile liability insurance. As Japanese society became rapidly motorized in the post-World War II period, Taisho Marine's automobile insurance business, including automobile insurance and compulsory automobile liability insurance, grew substantially.

Taisho Marine introduced deposit-type insurance, which combines long-term insurance with a savings feature, for fire and allied lines insurance in 1969 and for personal accident insurance in 1979. The deposit-type insurance business grew markedly during the 1970s and early 1980s.

In 1991, Taisho Marine changed its corporate name to "Mitsui Marine and Fire Insurance Company, Limited".

In August 1996, Mitsui Marine established Mitsui Mirai Life Insurance Co., Ltd. ("Mitsui Mirai Life") as its life insurance subsidiary.

Sumitomo Marine

Osaka Insurance, a predecessor of Sumitomo Marine, was established in 1893 in Osaka, Japan. Osaka Insurance changed its name to "Osaka Marine and Fire Insurance" when it became a part of Osaka Shosen Kaisha Lines in 1916. In 1917, Fuso Marine Insurance, another predecessor of Sumitomo Marine, was founded in Yurakucho, Tokyo, by Kamezaburo Yamashita of Yamashita Steamship Co., Ltd. Fuso Marine changed its name to "Sumitomo Marine and Fire Insurance" when it became a part of the Sumitomo group in 1940.

In 1944, Osaka Marine and the former Sumitomo Marine merged to incorporate Osaka Sumitomo Marine and Fire Insurance. Osaka Sumitomo Marine achieved steady expansion of its insurance business during Japan's postwar rehabilitation. In 1954, Osaka Sumitomo Marine moved its head office to Tokyo and changed its name to "Sumitomo Marine and Fire Insurance". Sumitomo Marine continued expansion during Japan's postwar period of long-term economic growth.

In August 1996, Sumitomo Marine established The Sumitomo Marine Yu-Yu Life Insurance Co., Ltd. ("Sumitomo Marine Yu-Yu Life") as its life insurance subsidiary.

Merger

Mitsui Marine merged with Sumitomo Marine effective October 1, 2001, and changed its name to "Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited" at that time. The Merger was accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method of accounting in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Additionally on October 1, 2001, in connection with the Merger, Mitsui Mirai Life and Sumitomo Marine Yu-Yu Life were merged and renamed Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life Insurance Company Limited ("Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life"), a subsidiary of us. Mitsui Marine merged with Sumitomo Marine largely because the deregulation of products and insurance premiums, coupled with the entrance of foreign insurance companies and companies from other industries, was creating increasingly fierce competition for the Japanese non-life insurance industry. At a time when consumers have been demanding a broader spectrum of more sophisticated products, we believe it is imperative that the non-life insurance industry respond quickly to develop more innovative products and services and to operate with greater efficiency. Mitsui Marine and Sumitomo Marine entered into the Merger as a means of improving prospects for growth, profitability and competitiveness.

Share Transfer

The board of directors of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance adopted a Share Transfer Plan, which later was approved by a shareholders' meeting of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance. Under the plan, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc. (the "Holding Company") was formed — and the Share Transfer became effective — on April 1, 2008.

We entered into the Share Transfer and adopted a holding company structure in order to promote development and operations in each of its business that are flexible and responsive to the relevant market, as well as to seek synergies to realize the group's potential to the fullest extent possible.

Upon the effectiveness of the Share Transfer, the Holding Company acquired all of the issued shares of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's common stock. Shareholders of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's common stock whose names appeared in the register of shareholders of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance as of the close of March 31, 2008 were allotted shares of the Holding Company's common stock in amounts based on the ratio of 1 Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance share for 0.3 Holding Company shares, and such amount (excluding fractional shares) was reflected in the Holding Company's register of shareholders.

On July 1, 2008, the Holding Company acquired all shares of Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life, Mitsui Direct General Insurance Company, Limited and Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Company, Limited, which had previously been held by Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance, in the form of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's distribution in kind to the Holding Company. The Holding Company then entered into an agreement with each of the three companies under which the Holding Company is to administer their management. The Holding Company thus completed the group management framework under which the Holding Company administers the management of each of our domestic insurance companies.

B. Business Overview.

Overview

THE JAPANESE NON-LIFE INSURANCE INDUSTRY

History

The first Japanese private non-life insurance company was incorporated in 1879. Following the enactment of the Insurance Business Law in 1900, Japanese non-life insurance business prospered, mainly as a result of the rapid expansion of the Japanese economy during World War I. However, this period was followed by a recession, the great earthquake in Tokyo in 1923 and the financial crisis of 1929, which resulted in Japanese non-life insurance companies incurring very substantial losses and led them to reorganize and form various cartels, pools and cooperative associations.

During World War II, under the guidance of the Japanese Government, the industry was again reorganized. The number of companies was reduced from 48 in 1940 to 16 in 1945.

Following the end of World War II, Japanese non-life insurance companies resumed their business without the benefit of an overseas underwriting market and with the loss of almost all of their previous overseas assets and the burden of huge deficits. Nevertheless, the Japanese non-life insurance business grew rapidly, in parallel with the rapid expansion of the Japanese economy from the late 1950s. In the 1970s, the growth rate of the Japanese non-life insurance industry decreased as a result of reduced growth in the Japanese economy, but in the latter half of the 1980s the growth rate again increased, following changes in Japanese social and economic structures. In the 1980s significant non-life insurance business growth was achieved through sales of automobile insurance and by the marketing to individuals of insurance policies with a maturity refund, which customers viewed as an attractive form of investment. However, since the 1990s after the collapse of the Japanese bubble economy, the growth of Japanese non-life insurance business has been sluggish.

After World War II, the non-life insurance business in Japan showed significant growth, primarily due to the growth of the automobile insurance business, consisting of voluntary and (with the introduction in 1955 of the Automobile Liability Security Law) compulsory insurance. The automobile insurance business resulted in a substantial volume of business for the non-life insurance industry. In recent years, however, growth in this category of non-life insurance business has slowed down while deregulation of the industry has led to diversification of Japanese non-life insurance companies' business activities.

Industry Background

The premium of the non-life insurance in Japan has been closely related to a variety of factors, including the number of housing starts and motor vehicles on the road and the volume of foreign trade. It has also related to the growth of new kinds of risks arising in the course of social and economic development, such as concepts of liability compensation, and to increasing public awareness of insurance and its functions.

The net premium received for the whole non-life insurance industry was ¥7.7 trillion, while automobile insurance accounted for 47% of the net premium, compulsory automobile liability 15%, fire 14%, personal accident 9%, and others 15%.

The Japanese non-life insurance industry has gone through tremendous changes due to the deregulation and liberalization in the last 10 years. On April 1, 1996, the Insurance Business Law was revised for the first time in 56 years, followed half a year later by the removal of the prohibition on the reciprocal entry between the life and non-life insurance sectors. In July 1998, the mandatory bureau rates were abolished, and the insurance industry entered into a period of liberalization. Mergers and reorganizations became active after 2000, and our company was created on October 1, 2001 through the merger of Mitsui Marine and Fire Insurance Co. and The Sumitomo Marine and Fire Insurance Co. There were 30 non-life insurance companies in Japan as of March 31, 2001, of which 2 companies have gone under since. As to listed non-life insurance companies, the number has decreased from 14 companies to 7 companies. As of April 1, 2008, there were 52 insurers which held non-life insurance operating licenses, of which 22 were foreign insurers and of which 4 were domestic insurers, newly licensed within the last 12 months. As a result of this reorganization, the top 3 companies in the non-life insurance industry including ours account for approximately 60% of the market share, and the top 6 companies for approximately 80%.

BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY

General

We underwrite the full range of non-life insurance coverage available in Japan, including automobile, compulsory automobile liability, personal accident, fire and allied lines and marine insurance. We underwrite some lines of non-life insurance coverage overseas. We also accept and cede reinsurance for certain lines of non-life insurance coverage. Our direct premiums written for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 were ¥1,625.7 billion, as compared with ¥1,575.5 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, and our net premiums written for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 were ¥1,537.6 billion, as compared with ¥1,489.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. Our net investment income for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 was ¥185.3 billion, as compared with ¥179.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. Since October 1996 we have also been engaged in the life insurance business through a wholly-owned subsidiary and a joint venture.

Business Goals

Our primary business goals are as follows:

- Seek sustainable development with corporate quality as the main source of competitiveness. Our corporate message, "For all the things you care about," reflects our desire to have a management that is oriented towards corporate social responsibility and that strives for quality improvement originating from the customers' viewpoint. In this way, we seek to obtain customers' trust and growth. In the non-life insurance business, we seek to respond to customers' demands for easy-to-understand products and services that meet their needs, along with a skilled network of employees and agents. In the life insurance business, we seek to expand our business through Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life Insurance, our wholly owned subsidiary, and Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance, a joint venture with MetLife, Inc. We seek to continue to grow globally, especially by expanding operations throughout Asia. In the financial services area and risk-related management area, we seek to expand services in various fields, such as Japanese 401k plans, alternative risk transfer, corporate financing guarantees, and risk-management consulting services.
- Become an insurance and financial group highly rated by customers, shareholders and agents, and capable of gaining public confidence. We seek to provide insurance products, claims handling services, risk-consulting services and financial and other products and services that will make us a top choice for customers. We seek to respond to customer demands by providing insurance products that meet our customers' needs while being easy to understand. We stress corporate governance, and also adhere to a policy of redistributing an appropriate level of profits to our shareholders. We support the training and education of our insurance agents so that they can effectively market new insurance, financial and other products and services in order to gain customers' confidence. We emphasize legal compliance to be a business which the public can trust. We strive to be a good corporate citizen and to contribute to society. We make efforts to protect the global environment and to support volunteer work, local arts, sports and other community activities.
- Become an insurance and financial group staffed with employees of the highest creativity, vitality and inventiveness. We place a high priority on innovation, growth and speed. We will strive to establish a human resources and personnel administration system based on process and performance under an open corporate culture in order to heighten employee creativity, vitality and inventiveness. We seek to respond flexibly to the changing business climate, pursue innovation, and develop new products and services, marketing methods and business models.

Business Strategies

With a view toward realizing the business goals described above, we have adopted the New Challenge 10 medium-term plan, which we began implementing in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. New Challenge 10 sets as its first priority enhancing quality from the viewpoint of our customers. The plan focuses on three strategies: the basic group strategy, the quality improvement strategy and the group business strategy.

• Basic Group Strategy — Our first priority is to improve the quality of our products and services. In this way, we seek to earn greater trust from customers in order to produce growth and invest additional resources in improving corporate quality, establishing an upward cycle for sustainable quality development. As part of this cycle, we first seek to properly execute basic tasks with the quality customers demand concerning every contact point with customers. We will also pursue quality by striving to exceed our customers' expectations.

- Quality Improvement Strategy Our quality improvement strategy is composed of three elements. First, we seek to gather and incorporate a wide range of comments from our stakeholders. Some of the steps we have taken in the regard include establishing a Customer Service Department for centralized complaint handling, and an intranet board for receiving employee suggestions. Second, we seek to develop our employees and agents by revising our training programs to ensure that all agents follow a cycle of essential customer services (the "basic cycle of insurance"). Finally, we seek to improve our business process and infrastructure to make for a more visitor- and employee-friendly office environment, as well as to streamline the logistics process.
- Group Business Strategy Our group business strategy is based on quality enhancement and reliable business execution in each of our five major business activities. We seek to reinforce our operative base by strengthening corporate governance, upgrading our legal compliance and risk control systems, and achieving a more balanced business portfolio. Our group business strategy is also composed of the following individual business strategies for each of our five major business activities:
- Domestic non-life business strategy We seek to innovate throughout the entire business process, including in the areas of products, sales, and claims handling. We also seek to offer quality that exceeds our customers' expectations. In addition, we seek to secure reasonable premium margins and implement our investment management strategy (see below under "Investment Management Strategy").
- Product innovation strategy We seek to offer products and services that meet our customers' needs while at the same time being easy to understand. To this end, we seek to streamline our existing lineup of products for better understandability. For example, between fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2008, we have been seeking to reduce the number of personal insurance products from 68 to about 15, and the number of personal extra riders from about 1,400 to about 700. Our plan is not simply to abolish existing products, but rather to consolidate and integrate them into new products that will meet our customers' needs. We also seek to make our products easier for customers to understand through such methods as minimizing the use of technical terms, breaking long sentences into short ones, and using more charts. We also hope to make such policy information available to the policyholder on the corporate website in a layout that is easy to understand, including a list of eligible claims. In addition to simplifying our product line, we also seek construct the "Product Control System," which will be a document archive, gather product data, and provide a system for interdivisional checks and authorization in the product-development process. The Product Control System will also share product information with the claims handling system to facilitate quick and accurate claims service.

- Sales innovation strategy Our sales innovation strategy seeks to enhance our network of agents and build an efficient internal framework. We seek to streamline our network by decreasing our total number of agents, and transitioning to a network of skilled, large-scale agents. At the same time, we seek to strengthen our agents' training to ensure that they are able to perform their duties to customers in a more skillful manner. We plan to issue quality improvement reports to agents every month, as well as to encourage better use of the agency computer system by monitoring use level. We also seek to improve our sales infrastructure, such as by making more methods of premium collection available, developing an electronic registry for paperless signing, and linking the customer contract database with the agency computer system.
- Claims handling innovation strategy We seek to improve the quality of our claims payment to offer fair, uniform, and speedy claims payment service. We hope to do this by strengthening our personnel system through enhanced training, constructing a new accident report computer system, and developing software to automatically determine the eligibility of claims. We also seek to internally check cases of handled claims and ensure that we send notices to claimants upon payment.
- Life insurance business strategy Our life insurance business is conducted by two companies, Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life Insurance, our wholly owned subsidiary; and Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd., an equity-method joint venture with MetLife, Inc.
- Through MS Kirameki, we seek to solidify the base for growth by sales reinforcement, mainly through cross-sales and diversification of distribution channels. We seek to promote cross-sales of group members' products, as well as exploring new areas of potential growth in the life market, such as by promoting the financial consulting business, taking a strategic approach to over-the-counter sales of insurance products at banks and increasing sales support for large-scale life only agents. We also seek to strengthen our sales force by placing Life Playing Leaders (We employees exclusively engaged in selling life insurance) nationwide to guide agents, as well as by increasing the number of Loyal Member agents, who are able to sell life insurance on their own initiative.
- Through Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd., we seek to increase our competitiveness in the personal annuity market by developing our sales base and increasing customer satisfaction. To develop the sales base, we hope to open new distribution channels, such as by proactively responding to Japan Post's upcoming privatization, and we are also studying the feasibility of distribution through our agents. We also seek to strengthen existing OTC channels, such as by increasing the share within an existing bank agent as well as seeking new OTC banks. We seek to use the product-development capabilities gained through our affiliation with U.S.-based MetLife to introduce new products that meet the needs of the growing market for individual annuities. In addition to developing our sales base, we seek to increase customer satisfaction and protection, such as by enhancing the call center system, upgrading our system infrastructure, gathering customers' comments by survey, and strengthening compliance awareness and the claim-handling system.

- Overseas business strategy We have established regional holding companies in Asia, Europe and the Americas, with the aim of achieving growth under regionally autonomous structures. Our top overseas priority is expanding operations in Asia, which is a growth market. We have acquired the Asian business operations of Aviva plc, as well as Mingtai Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. (now MSIG Mingtai Insurance Co., Ltd.). We also seek to expand business in the growth market of the People's Republic of China through our newly established subsidiary, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (China) Company Limited, and by strengthening our product development and reinsurance business through an alliance with China Pacific Insurance. We seek to foster subsidiaries in India, which has high potential as a market for both life and non-life insurance. In Europe, we plan to take acceptable risks, mainly in the Lloyd's business. We established an agent solely for Lloyd's management in January 2007, which we expect to enhance our presence in the London insurance market as one of Lloyd's primary members. In the Americas we plan to increase our underwriting of good risks to improve profitability. In the re-insurance field, we seek to increase our underwriting of good risks.
- Financial services business strategy We seek to strengthen the development of financial service products and promote sales. We seek to provide services for defined contribution pension plans centering on Japanese 401k plans. We have received approval to serve as an administrator, thereby allowing us to independently offer our own integrated services. We seek to utilize financial engineering techniques to launch risk finance services, such as weather derivatives. We also seek to provide services that respond to financing needs through corporate financing guarantees that utilize our high credit rating. We hope to cultivate these businesses in the future.
- Risk-related business strategy We seek to satisfy the expanding needs of our clients not only by developing new insurance products, but also by providing a variety of quality services related to insurance products. Through InterRisk Research Institute & Consulting, Inc., we provide an array of risk management and consulting services. Currently, there is high demand for business continuity management consulting, which entails providing advice on maintaining business operations in the event that companies face unexpected disaster. We have had inquiries about this business from not only large companies, but a high number of small- and medium-sized businesses as well. We are also moving into fields such as nursing care services and health and medical fields. For example, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Care Network Co., Ltd. is involved in the operation of nursing care facilities.
- *More Balanced Earnings Structure* In addition to aggregate growth, we also seek to obtain a more balanced earnings structure by decreasing the percentage of our earnings derived from domestic non-life insurance, and raising the percentage of earnings derived from our other main businesses.

• Investment Management Strategy — We seek to build a medium-term portfolio that will increase the fair value of our net assets by optimizing the risk-return correlation. We seek to ease interest-rate risks by lengthening the duration of yen-denominated assets and utilizing swaps. We seek to reduce asset-fluctuation risks on Japanese stocks by selling part of them. We also seek to increase our credit investments, such as personal loans, as well as to increase our "alternative investments," such as hedge funds.

Lines of Business

We engage primarily in underwriting voluntary automobile, compulsory automobile liability, fire and allied lines, personal accident, cargo and transit, hull, and other insurance, principally in Japan. The following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, sets forth a breakdown of our direct premiums written by our principal types of insurance for each of the fiscal years indicated:

	Year Ended March 31,		
	2006 2007		
		(Yen in millions)	
Voluntary Automobile	¥ 592,275	¥ 609,348	¥ 634,948
Compulsory Automobile Liability (1)	181,757	176,826	165,851
Fire and Allied Lines (2)	250,760	256,259	274,432
Personal Accident	149,237	147,133	146,390
Cargo and Transit	91,798	100,309	108,097
Hull	25,656	29,128	31,799
Other (3)	243,896	256,473	264,215
Total	¥1,535,379	¥1,575,476	¥1,625,732

⁽¹⁾ Japanese law requires that all automobiles be covered by compulsory automobile liability insurance. See Note 2(m) to our consolidated financial statements.

The following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, sets forth a breakdown of each key component of our insurance premiums written for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008:

	Direct	Reinsurance	Reinsurance	Net Premiums	Written(4)
	Premiums Written	Premiums Assumed	Premiums Ceded	Amount	%
		(Yen in r	nillions, except perce	entages)	
Voluntary Automobile	¥ 634,948	¥ 5,504	¥ 15,503	¥ 624,949	40.65%
Compulsory Automobile Liability (1)	165,851	151,465	126,060	191,256	12.44%
Fire and Allied Lines (2)	274,432	52,800	101,973	225,259	14.65%
Personal Accident	146,390	2,072	9,566	138,896	9.03%
Cargo and Transit	108,097	13,321	22,572	98,846	6.43%
Hull	31,799	11,089	21,021	21,867	1.42%
Other (3)	264,215	28,629	56,301	236,543	15.38%
Total	¥1,625,732	¥ 264,880	¥ 352,996	¥1,537,616	100.00%

⁽¹⁾ Japanese law requires that all automobiles be covered by compulsory automobile liability insurance. See Note 2(m) to our consolidated financial statements.

⁽²⁾ Includes earthquake insurance.

⁽³⁾ Major lines of insurance in this category are liability, aviation, workers' compensation and movables comprehensive all risks.

⁽²⁾ Includes earthquake insurance.

⁽³⁾ Major lines of insurance in this category are liability, aviation, workers' compensation, movables comprehensive all risks.

⁽⁴⁾ Net premiums written = (direct premiums written + reinsurance premiums assumed - reinsurance premiums ceded).

Voluntary Automobile

Automobile ownership in Japan has grown over the years to the extent that there is currently no other country in the world in which a greater number of automobiles are owned except the United States. Automobile ownership in Japan amounted to approximately 79.1 million automobiles as of March 31, 2008, a decrease of 0.2% from March 31, 2007. In line with the number of automobiles, the number of automobile accidents and the number of persons being injured or dying in such accidents have remained at high levels despite various social efforts to prevent the occurrence of such accidents. To serve the public policy of reducing losses from automobile accidents, the Automobile Liability Security Law provides for owner-operators' tort liabilities that are stricter than those under the general tort theory under the Civil Code of Japan. Over the years, the average amount of damage awards granted by Japanese courts for liability claim cases relating to automobile accidents has increased, as has the public awareness of the risks involved in automobile ownership in Japan. These circumstances have led to a substantial increase in demand for automobile insurance offered by Japanese non-life insurance companies, including us. According to data gathered by the General Insurance Association of Japan, the industry-wide aggregate amount of direct premiums written for voluntary automobile insurance in Japan was approximately \(\frac{\psi}{3}\),495.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, a decrease of 0.7% from March 31, 2007.

Automobile insurance in Japan generally carries one or more of the following five types of coverage: bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, protection against uninsured automobiles and vehicular damage. Each type of coverage is briefly described below.

Bodily Injury Liability. This coverage relates to liability to others for bodily injuries resulting from the ownership, use or maintenance of automobiles subject to the policy. Such bodily injury liability is likewise covered by compulsory automobile liability insurance up to a certain maximum amount provided by law. Bodily injury liability covers the portion of the overall liability that exceeds the maximum amount covered by compulsory automobile liability insurance. In line with the growing public awareness of the risks of automobile ownership, the insured amount per person under a policy is generally unlimited. This coverage constitutes the largest component among the five types of automobile insurance coverage.

Property Damage Liability. This coverage relates to liability for property damage resulting from ownership, use or maintenance of automobiles subject to the policy. Property damage typically covered includes damage to other automobiles caused by collisions.

Personal Injury. This coverage relates to bodily injuries of drivers and passengers of automobiles resulting from collisions or other accidents. Under this coverage, damages resulting from injury, including the insured's own fault, are compensated up to the amount of insurance.

Protection against Uninsured Automobiles. This coverage relates to damage claims for deaths or permanent disabilities resulting from the ownership, use or maintenance by others of automobiles, to the extent that these claims are not satisfied because such automobiles are not covered by any liability insurance or the liability insurance covering such automobiles is insufficient.

Vehicular Damage. This coverage relates to physical damage to automobiles resulting from collisions, thefts or other accidents.

In connection with bodily injury and property damage liability coverages, we provide under certain circumstances settlement assistance services whereby we assist the insured, with the insured's prior consent and at our expense, in settling the insured's liability with other persons who make claims by negotiating, proceeding with a mediation for, making an out-of-court settlement, or by proceeding with a civil trial and any subsequent appeals process for a final judgment. The scope of such services is subject to the limitations under applicable law, including the law restricting non-attorneys' participation in dispute-settlement processes. Such settlement assistance services have contributed to the growth in the demand for automobile insurance in Japan as Japanese customers are generally averse to directly participating in dispute resolution procedures.

We underwrite automobile insurance for businesses, individuals and households. The marketing for business customers is conducted through agents in charge of respective business customers, including agents affiliated with major corporate customers such as Toyota Motor Corporation, Mitsui & Co. Ltd., Sumitomo Corporation and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation. The marketing for individual and household customers is also conducted generally through agents, including agents who are automobile dealers, gas stations and automobile service stations, as well as through general agents.

We classify our customers for automobile insurance into two broad categories: fleet customers who take out policies each covering ten or more automobiles and non-fleet customers who take out policies each covering less than ten vehicles. Fleet customers generally include medium-size and large businesses, and non-fleet customers include individual and household customers as well as small businesses. Different sets of premium rate tables apply to fleet and non-fleet customers. Currently, roughly 15% of the total direct premiums written by us on automobile insurance are for fleet customers.

Compulsory Automobile Liability

Under the Automobile Liability Security Law, with certain minor exceptions, all automobiles operated on public roads in Japan are required to be covered by "compulsory automobile liability insurance", which covers liability for bodily injuries. The purchase of such insurance is a condition for the official registration of automobiles and for periodic vehicle inspections. Generally, without such registration, an automobile cannot be operated in Japan. Compulsory automobile liability insurance is designed to serve the public policy of assuring the injured in automobile accidents minimum payments for their claims against those who are liable due to the ownership, use or maintenance of automobiles involved in such accidents. In the light of such public policy, licensed non-life insurance companies in Japan may not refuse to issue compulsory automobile liability policies absent a reasonable ground under the law.

Under these policies, the maximum amount of coverage for accidents resulting in deaths is limited to ¥30 million per person, for accidents resulting in permanent disabilities, ¥30 million per person, and for accidents resulting in other injuries, ¥1.2 million per person. Persons who wish to purchase coverage beyond these maximum amounts may purchase automobile insurance with bodily injury liability coverage on a voluntary basis. In order to mitigate any inconvenience caused by this dual structure, *i.e.*, compulsory and voluntary coverages, the insured is permitted to submit claims for indemnity under both compulsory and voluntary policies to the insurance company that wrote the voluntary policy.

The licensed non-life insurance companies reinsure 100% of the risk under compulsory automobile liability insurance by means of a pooling arrangement among them. Each company's participating share in the pool is determined mainly on the basis of the market share of direct premiums written by it for compulsory automobile liability insurance and the aggregate amount of its investment assets as compared with those of other insurers. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, our share in the pool was approximately 16%. Because of this reinsurance arrangement by the pool, the risk assumed by each non-life insurance company is limited.

Fire and Allied Lines (Excluding Earthquake)

Fire and allied lines insurance (excluding earthquake insurance) is one of the traditional lines of insurance written by us. Fire and allied lines insurance (excluding earthquake insurance) generally covers dwelling houses, shops, offices, factories and warehouses in Japan and their contents against fire, flood, storm, lightning, explosion, theft and other risks. In addition, some policies cover personal accident, third-party liability and loss of income caused by such events.

This type of insurance is written for individual customers to safeguard their personal lives and for business customers to protect their ongoing business operations through coverage of the risks mentioned above. This type of insurance also generally provides mortgage lenders, whether residential or commercial, with protection against loss or damage to mortgaged properties. Traditionally, fire and allied lines insurance (excluding earthquake insurance) has been one of the major lines for non-life insurance companies in Japan. This is reflected in the strong popular awareness of the risks addressed by this insurance, as many houses in Japan have traditionally been susceptible to fires and because Japan is struck by typhoons every year. Some of the products under this insurance line are deposit-type insurance products with a savings feature by way of a maturity refund.

Under fire and allied lines insurance (excluding earthquake insurance), insurers may be required to make indemnity payments of a very large aggregate amount in the event of a large windstorm, flood or other catastrophe. The following table sets forth information concerning major windstorms and floods in Japan.

Major claims paid (Disasters)				Amount of Claims Paid (Unit: Hundred Million Yen) Fire/New			
Ranking	Disaster	Region	Date	Products	Automobile	Marine	Total
1.	Typhoon No. 19	Through the nation	Sep. 26-28, 1991	5,225	269	185	5,679
2.	Typhoon No. 18	Through the nation	Sep. 4-8, 2004	3,564	259	51	3,874
3.	Typhoon No. 18	Kumamoto, Yamaguchi, Fukuoka, etc.	Sep. 21-25, 1999	2,847	212	88	3,147
4.	Typhoon No. 7	Mainly Kinki	Sep. 22,1998	1,514	61	24	1,600
5.	Typhoon No. 23	West Japan	Oct. 20, 2004	1,113	179	89	1,380
6.	Typhoon No. 13	Fukuoka, Saga, Nagasaki, Miyazaki, etc.	Sep. 15-20,2006	1,161	147	12	1,320
7.	Typhoon No. 16	Through the nation	Aug. 30-31, 2004	1,037	138	35	1,210
8.	Sep. 2000 Flood	Aichi	Sep. 10-12, 2000	447	545	39	1,030
9.	Typhoon No. 13	Kyushu, Shikoku, Chugoku	Sep. 3, 1993	933	35	10	977
10.	Hail	Chiba, Ibaraki	May 24, 2005	372	303	25	700

We paid insurance indemnity in the aggregate amount of approximately ¥77 billion under fire and allied lines insurance by virtue of Typhoon No. 19 that occurred in September 1991. Our net payment after the receipt of payments under ceded reinsurance was approximately ¥47 billion. Prior to this — particularly when public and non-public measures against disasters were underdeveloped — Japan had experienced strikes by typhoons and wind storms that caused heavier damage than in any of the events listed in the above table, such as the Isewan Typhoon of 1959 which resulted in over 800,000 damaged buildings and over 300,000 flooded buildings.

Earthquake

Japan is subject to frequent earthquakes. Earthquake, however, is not a type of risk that may easily be underwritten by non-life insurance companies in Japan, because the loss that may result from one earthquake could be disastrously large and the actuarial analysis may not be as effective due to the lack of adequate statistical data. The Law Concerning Earthquake Insurance was enacted in 1966 to implement an earthquake insurance program for dwellings and contents thereof, which is entitled to the benefit of a partial reinsurance arrangement with the government and is subject to limitations on maximum insured amounts.

We write earthquake insurance pursuant to the Law Concerning Earthquake Insurance in the form of an extension of the coverage of fire insurance for dwellings and contents thereof. The insured amount for earthquake under such policies does not exceed a range of 30% to 50% of the insured amount for fire thereunder up to a maximum of ¥50 million for dwellings and ¥10 million for contents thereof, all as prescribed by the Law Concerning Earthquake Insurance.

Pursuant to the Law Concerning Earthquake Insurance, the aggregate amount of indemnity payable by all insurers to all policyholders per any one occurrence is limited to ¥5 trillion. The earthquake risks written by direct insurers, including us, are wholly reinsured with Japan Earthquake Reinsurance Company Limited, a private reinsurer in Japan owned by major Japanese non-life insurance companies including us. Pursuant to the Law Concerning Earthquake Insurance, this portfolio is protected by (i) an excess of loss reinsurance cover arranged between Japan Earthquake Reinsurance Company and the Japanese Government and (ii) another excess of loss reinsurance cover arranged among Japan Earthquake Reinsurance Company, Toa Reinsurance Company, Limited, which is another private reinsurer in Japan, and the original direct insurers, including us, which participate in such insurance cover through retrocession agreements with Japan Earthquake Reinsurance Company. The maximum amount which is to be borne by Japan Earthquake Reinsurance Company per any one occurrence, net of the amount covered by reinsurance ceded, is ¥452 billion. The maximum amount which is to be borne by the Japanese Government per any one occurrence is ¥4,122 billion. The maximum aggregate amount which is to be borne by the original direct insurers and Toa Reinsurance per any occurrence according to the share specified under the retrocession agreements is ¥426 billion, of which our share is approximately 16%. The Law Concerning Earthquake Insurance requires that, if there are special needs, e.g., insufficient existing funds, for the payment of indemnity under earthquake insurance policies, the Japanese Government will make efforts to arrange for, or to facilitate, financings by non-life insurance companies for such payment.

Earthquake insurance under the Law Concerning Earthquake Insurance has drawn considerable attention in the wake of the Great Hanshin Earthquake, which struck the Kobe area in 1995. We paid insurance indemnity in the aggregate amount of approximately ¥16 billion by virtue of the Great Hanshin Earthquake, which is by far the largest amount paid by us pursuant to earthquake insurance policies under the Law Concerning Earthquake Insurance in its history.

We also write certain earthquake insurance for buildings and structures other than dwellings as an extension to coverage of fire insurance on a private basis separately from insurance under the Law Concerning Earthquake Insurance. Such earthquake insurance is not entitled to the reinsurance arrangements under the Law Concerning Earthquake Insurance, and a substantial part of the risk thereunder is reinsured by reinsurers. Such earthquake insurance has not fared well in the Japanese market due to its significantly high rates. However the demand for this type of insurance has grown in the last several years, and our exposure has also been increasing on a gross underwritten basis. We have expanded our reinsurance coverage with respect to this risk to manage our net exposure.

Personal Accident

We write personal accident insurance for individual customers in Japan which generally covers bodily injuries of the insured person resulting from accidents. Typically, under personal accident insurance, a fixed amount, without regard to the actual damage incurred, is payable pursuant to a pre-set payment table. We offer a variety of personal accident insurance policy products, which include general personal accident insurance, income indemnity insurance, overseas traveler's personal accident insurance and traffic accident insurance.

General Personal Accident. This insurance covers the insured against a broad range of accidents resulting in personal injury, whether they occur at home or abroad. A fixed amount of indemnity is payable in accordance with the particular type of the injury, such as death, permanent disability or hospitalization. A general personal accident insurance policy may cover either one particular individual or all members of a particular household.

Income Indemnity. This insurance provides to the insured with coverage against loss of income caused by an injury or sickness.

Overseas Traveler's Personal Accident. This insurance provides to the insured with coverage against accidents during travels and, if the insured has elected a special policy condition, against sickness during travels.

Traffic Accident. This insurance covers the insured against collisions with, or accidents occurring on, automobiles, trains, planes, ships and other vehicles. A traffic accident insurance policy may cover either one particular individual or all members of a particular household.

Many of the products under this line are or, if the insured has elected a special policy condition, may be, deposit-type insurance. We write personal accident insurance for individual customers primarily through our agents. Among various types of personal accident insurance, the three largest — general personal accident, overseas traveler's personal accident and family accident — accounted for roughly 70% of the total direct premiums written by us for this insurance for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

Traditionally, personal accident insurance was not a principal line of business for non-life insurance companies in Japan, including us. This line has grown substantially from the mid-1980s to the mid-1990s, as individuals in Japan acquired more leisure time and greater financial resources for personal spending and activities. The introduction of non-life insurance products with deposit-type features added to the growing popularity of personal accident insurance. While we expect this line to grow in the long-run as the personal activities of Japanese individuals expand, its short-term outlook depends largely upon the level of consumer spending, which is affected by general economic conditions in Japan, as well as the popularity of deposit-type insurance products as compared to various other financial products available to individuals in Japan.

Cargo and Transit

Marine cargo insurance covers goods aboard vessels against risks during international transportation or risks during transportation in coastal seas. The terms of the international cargo insurance is generally governed by the Institute Cargo Clauses of the former Institute of London Underwriters, currently International Underwriting Association. This line of insurance is distinctive in that it provides coverage to risks of acts of war. Over 90% of insurance premiums of our marine cargo insurance policies written in Japan are from international cargoes. Our major clients for international cargo insurance are Japanese manufacturers and trading companies.

The Marine Cargo insurance business is generally underwritten directly by us through our personnel without using insurance agents. Insurance premiums for international cargo insurance are primarily affected by the level of Japanese import and export trading activities.

Inland transit insurance is usually purchased by owners of goods that are transported and stored on land to cover physical damage to such goods. Carriers of the goods, on the other hand, purchase inland transit liability insurance to cover their legal or contractual liabilities arising out of the physical damage of such goods.

Hull

Hull insurance is one of the traditional lines of insurance written by us. Hull insurance covers ocean-going and coastal vessels against damage or loss caused by sinking, stranding, grounding, fire, collision and other maritime accidents. Damage and losses covered include damage to hull, disbursements for voyage, loss of earnings and liability to others for damages. Hull war risk insurance covers vessels against damage or loss resulting from acts of war. Hull insurance is available not only to vessels in operation but also to those under construction in respect of damage caused during the construction period.

Our primary customers in this line are Japanese shipping companies who operate Japan-flagged vessels or "flag of convenience" vessels, as well as Japanese shipbuilders. The marketing for such customers is generally conducted directly by us without insurance agents. Our revenues in hull insurance are influenced primarily by the number of vessels that are operated by Japanese shipping companies and the number of vessels that are being built by Japanese shipbuilders, which are in turn influenced by overall worldwide economic conditions and a number of global competitive factors surrounding those customers' respective industries.

A significant portion of the premiums for hull insurance is denominated in currencies other than Japanese yen, primarily U.S. dollars.

Loss resulting from an accident involving a vessel may be very large. Thus, we actively reinsure risks under hull insurance contracts to Japanese and overseas reinsurers.

Other

Other insurance written by us includes liabilities insurance, including product liability insurance, as well as workers' compensation insurance, movables all-risks insurance and credit and guarantee insurance. Liabilities insurance is written primarily for business customers and includes contractors' liability insurance and product liability insurance. Workers' compensation insurance is offered to employers for provisions of benefits to employees as supplements to public insurance for employees. Movables all-risks insurance generally covers damages resulting from loss, theft or destruction of various types of movables, primarily for businesses.

Savings-Type Insurance Products

Savings-type insurance products combine the characteristics of long-term non-life insurance policies, such as fire and allied lines and personal accident, with those of savings accounts. These policies, the terms of which typically range between three and five years, have proven to be compatible with the particular needs of Japanese consumers.

The key terms of this type of policy are fixed at the inception of the policy and remain in effect during the policy period. The policyholder can terminate the savings-type insurance contract before the maturity date with a payment of a commission to us that equals to the interest earned for approximately six months. The policyholder is informed at policy inception of the maturity value related to the savings portion of the policy. The maturity value of the policy represents the savings portion of the premium paid by the policyholder plus credited interest. The maturity value is paid on the policy maturity date unless a total loss as defined by the policy occurs during the policy term. No amount is paid under the savings portion of the policy if a total loss occurs during the policy term. A total loss under this type of policy occurs when the aggregate amount of claims paid in connection with losses covered by the policy within any one insurance year reaches the insured amount covered by the policy, regardless of whether claims are caused by one or more events. If a total loss occurs, the policy is immediately terminated.

The contractual rate of interest credited to the policy varies by product and is established at the beginning of the policy period. The committed interest rate cannot be changed by us at any time during the policy term. Committed interest rates ranged from 0.3% to 1.81% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

There are several key reasons for the popularity of savings-type insurance products among the Japanese consumers. First, a substantial number of Japanese consumers have a negative view of the fact that premiums on a standard non-life insurance policy are not repaid at the end of the policy's term, and the refunding feature of savings-type policies has a strong appeal to such consumers. Second, the dual characteristics of such policies have been another appealing feature, especially as products with different premium payment and refund methods have been introduced to respond to various financial needs of consumers. Third, savings-type insurance products are sold through the numerous agents of Japanese insurance companies, who often visit customers' homes to offer insurance products, thereby allowing customers to conduct "one-stop shopping" for insurance and savings products at home. Fourth, the size of personal financial assets in Japan has risen along with the rise in personal income of Japanese consumers, and savings-type insurance products, with the dual characteristics mentioned above, have been an attractive investment target for such assets. However, the number of contracts for savings-type insurance products has decreased due to the adverse effect of extremely low rates of interest which have prevailed for over ten years.

The premiums received under savings-type insurance are generally invested in loans and fixed income securities. The investment return may exceed or fall short of the committed interest depending on, among other factors, the expected rate of interest, the market interest rates applicable to such loans and securities and the extent to which the terms of such loans and securities match the terms of the savings-type insurance policies. We adjust from time to time the committed interest applicable to new savings-type insurance policies in response to changes in market levels of interest rates.

Premium Rates

A premium under an insurance policy constitutes the "sales price" of that insurance product. There are two components to the premium: the "pure premium", which represents the cost of claims payment, and the "loading", which represents the agent commissions and certain other costs to the insurer. The pure premium is determined by multiplying the amount insured by the applicable premium rate, which represents the probability of the occurrence of the loss covered by the insurance policy. This premium rate is calculated by a formula which, on the basis of the "law of large numbers", purports to reflect the statistical likelihood of such an occurrence. The "law of large numbers" is a mathematical premise that states that the greater the number of exposures, (1) the more accurate the prediction, (2) the less the deviation of the actual losses from the expected losses and (3) the greater the credibility of the prediction. Out of a large group of policyholders, an insurance company can fairly accurately predict the number of policyholders who will suffer a loss, but not the specific policyholders who will suffer a loss, provided that its actuarial assumptions and empirical data are reasonably accurate and its risk models appropriate to analyze the risks insured. The Insurance Business Law and the regulations thereunder require that premium rates be "reasonable and appropriate in accordance with the mathematical principles of insurance" and that they not be "unfairly discriminatory".

Until 1998, for certain lines of non-life insurance that are considered to have particularly strong public aspects, such as automobile and fire insurance, the applicable non-life insurance rating organization established pursuant to the Law Concerning Non-Life Insurance Rating Organizations determined premium rates. Such organizations included the Automobile Insurance Rating Organization of Japan and the Property and Casualty Insurance Rating Organization of Japan. As discussed in "Regulation" below, the 1998 amendments to the Law Concerning Non-Life Insurance Rating Organizations abolished this arrangement. The role of the rating organizations in respect of these lines of insurance is now that of supporting the non-life insurers by calculating advisory rates, preparing standard forms of insurance contracts and collecting a wide range of insurance-related data. As a result of this liberalization, non-life insurance companies may set their own premium rates for their products. This has had the effect of intensifying the competition in the industry.

On July 1, 2002, the Automobile Insurance Rating Organization of Japan and the Property and Casualty Insurance Rating Organization of Japan merged to form the "Non-Life Insurance Rating Organization of Japan."

Loss and Expense Ratios

We calculated and disclosed publicly our loss ratio and expense ratio based on our consolidated financial statements. The following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, sets forth information with respect to our loss and expense ratios for each of the periods indicated. Net loss ratio represents the ratio of net loss incurred to net premiums earned.

	2005	2006	Year Ended March 3. 2007	2008	2008
	2005		dollars in thousands, o		2008
Voluntary Automobile:		(1 cm m minions, c	ionars in thousands, t	except percentages)	
Net premiums written	¥ 582,410	¥ 587,253	¥ 599,663	¥ 624,949	\$ 6,249,490
Net premiums earned	581,065	590,052	600,371	621,036	6,210,360
Net loss incurred	372,558	370,790	401,429	405,656	4,056,560
Net loss ratio	64.1%	62.8%	66.9%	65.3%	1,020,200
Compulsory Automobile Liability:	01.170	02.070	00.770	03.370	
Net premiums written	¥ 195,741	¥ 193,402	¥ 192,087	¥ 191,256	\$ 1,912,560
Net premiums earned	185,264	193,871	193,663	193,572	1,935,720
Net loss incurred	138,756	154,440	137,607	133,688	1,336,880
Net loss ratio	74.9%	79.7%	71.1%	69.1%	1,550,000
Fire and Allied Lines:	71.570	17.170	71.170	07.170	
Net premiums written	¥ 188,122	¥ 205,214	¥ 208,182	¥ 225,259	\$ 2,252,590
Net premiums earned	163,248	180,143	185,208	209,396	2,093,960
Net loss incurred	155,525	97,810	93,302	114,095	1,140,950
Net loss ratio	95.3%	54.3%	50.4%	54.5%	1,140,730
Personal Accident:	73.370	34.370	30.476	34.3 70	
Net premiums written	¥ 132,456	¥ 143,190	¥ 139,795	¥ 138,896	\$ 1,388,960
Net premiums earned	127,528	133,476	134,369	132,171	1,321,710
Net loss incurred	54,187	60,089	69,292	73,921	739,210
Net loss ratio	42.5%	45.0%	51.6%	55.9%	739,210
Cargo and Transit:	72.570	43. 0 /0	31.070	33.7 70	
Net premiums written	¥ 71,501	¥ 83,282	¥ 91,379	¥ 98,846	\$ 988,460
Net premiums written Net premiums earned	69,815	79,963	90,286	97,696	976,960
Net loss incurred	33,058	34,722	38,802	35,753	357,530
Net loss ratio	47.4%	43.4%	43.0%	36.6%	337,330
Hull:	47.4%	43.4%	43.0%	30.0%	
Net premiums written	¥ 14,405	¥ 16,564	¥ 19,602	¥ 21,867	\$ 218,670
Net premiums earned	13,616	15,551	18,496	21,508	215,080
Net loss incurred	12,199	14,508	16,620	15,933	
Net loss ratio	89.6%	93.3%	89.9%	74.1%	159,330
	89.0%	93.3%	69.9%	74.170	
Other:	¥ 218,342	¥ 229,602	¥ 238,671	¥ 236,543	¢ 2 265 420
Net premiums written					\$ 2,365,430
Net premiums earned	217,212	229,745	246,687	227,306	2,273,060
Net loss incurred Net loss ratio	152,488	149,264	152,604	127,211	1,272,110
	70.2%	65.0%	61.9%	56.0%	
Total:	V1 400 077	V1 450 507	V1 400 270	V1 527 (16	¢15 276 160
Net premiums written	¥1,402,977	¥1,458,507	¥1,489,379	¥1,537,616	\$15,376,160
Net premiums earned	1,357,748	1,422,801	1,469,080	1,502,685	15,026,850
Net loss incurred	918,771	881,623	909,656	906,257	9,062,570
Net loss ratio	67.7%	62.0%	61.9%	60.3%	
Net loss adjustment expenses incurred —	V (0 (14	V (0.055	W 70.001	V 02.270	Φ 022.700
unallocated	¥ 62,614	¥ 68,855	¥ 70,001	¥ 82,370	\$ 823,700
Ratio of losses and loss adjustment expenses	72.2 %	66.00	66.70	65.00	
incurred to net premiums earned (A)	72.3%	66.8%	66.7%	65.8%	
Underwriting and administrative expenses	** 40 6 000	** 440.000	** 400 700	** #0# #40	A # 0## 400
incurred (1)	¥ 426,333	¥ 448,832	¥ 482,592	¥ 505,549	\$ 5,055,490
Ratio of underwriting and administrative expenses	20.461	20.00	22 42	22.0~	
incurred to net premiums written (1)(B)	30.4%	30.8%	32.4%	32.9%	
Combined loss and expenses ratios (2)	102.7%	97.6%	99.1%	98.7%	
Net premiums/direct premiums written ratios	95.4%	95.0%	94.5%	94.6%	

⁽¹⁾ These data are for our property and casualty businesses only.

⁽²⁾ Sum of (A) and (B).

Reconciliation of Beginning and Ending Liabilities for Losses and Claims

The following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, is a summary reconciliation of the beginning and ending liabilities for losses and claims and claim adjustment expenses for each of the three fiscal years ended March 31, 2008:

		Year Ended March 31,		
	2006	2007	2008	
		(Yen in millions)		
Balance at beginning of year	¥ 937,057	¥1,056,517	¥1,153,550	
Less reinsurance recoverable	234,097	233,369	237,719	
Net balance at beginning of year	702,960	823,148	915,831	
Incurred related to:				
Current year insured events	1,009,061	1,049,859	1,094,832	
Prior year insured events	8,547	14,834	(7,191)	
Total Incurred	1,017,608	1,064,693	1,087,641	
Paid related to:				
Current year insured events	517,384	546,938	573,389	
Prior year insured events	390,252	437,353	485,355	
Total paid	907,636	984,291	1,058,744	
Adjustment in connection with the acquisition	10,216	12,281		
Net balance at end of year	823,148	915,831	944,728	
Plus reinsurance recoverable	233,369	237,719	253,092	
Balance at end of year	¥1,056,517	¥1,153,550	¥1,197,820	

Changes in Historical Liabilities for Losses and Claims

The table below represents on a non-consolidated basis loss reserve development data for our non-life insurance business, which include voluntary automobile, fire and allied lines, personal accident, cargo and transit, hull, liability, workers compensation, movables all risks and other lines except compulsory automobile liability and earthquake. Japan has special reinsurance schemes for compulsory automobile liability and earthquake under which each direct insurer is obliged to cede 100% of the risk and assume some portion of the risk as a form of retrocession, and detailed information on the losses and claims for such lines of business is not practically available. Therefore, the data for such lines of business was not included. The losses and claims for compulsory automobile liability and earthquake are generally settled within a short period.

These lines of business represent the majority of our business on a non-consolidated basis. Liabilities for losses and claims of these lines of business of the Company represent approximately 68% of our net balance of total liabilities for losses and claims on a consolidated basis (the average figure for the years ended March 31, 2004, 2005, 2006 and 2007). Consolidated loss reserves are less than 50% of stockholders' equity as of March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008.

The table illustrates the change over time of our liabilities for loss and claims at the end of the fiscal years indicated. The liabilities represent the estimated amount for loss and claims arising in the current and all prior accident years that are unpaid as of the balance sheet data.

The first section of the following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, shows net balance of total liabilities for losses and claims as initially established at the end of each stated fiscal year. The second section, reading down, shows the cumulative amounts paid, net of reinsurance and retrocessions, as of the end of the successive fiscal years with respect to the liability initially established. The third section shows the retroactive re-estimation of the initially established total liabilities for losses and claims as of the end of each successive fiscal year, which results primarily from our expanded awareness of additional facts and circumstances that pertain to open claims. The last section compares the latest re-estimated net balance of total liabilities for losses and claims to the ones initially established and indicates the cumulative development of the initially established net balance of total liabilities through March 31, 2008. For instance, the surplus, or deficiency, shown in the table for each year represents the aggregate amount by which the original estimates of liability at that fiscal year-end have changed in subsequent fiscal years. Accordingly, the cumulative surplus, or deficiency, for a fiscal year-end relates only to liabilities at that fiscal year-end and such amounts are not additive.

Liabilities for losses and claims are an accumulation of the estimated amounts necessary to settle outstanding claims as of the date for which the liability is stated. The liability estimates are based upon the factors discussed above.

Caution should be exercised in evaluating the information shown on this table, as each amount includes the effects of all changes in amounts for prior periods. Conditions and trends that have affected development of liability in the past may or may not necessarily occur in the future, and accordingly, conclusions about future results may not be derived from information presented in this table. Total liabilities for losses and claims and retroactive re-estimation of the liability are presented net of reinsurance.

	Year Ended March 31,			
	2004	2005	2006	2007
	(Yen in millions, except percentages)			
Total liabilities for losses and claims	¥434,111	¥483,572	¥525,520	¥572,729
Cumulative paid as of:				
One year later	238,206	268,580	283,053	294,937
Two years later	308,374	356,178	373,367	
Three years later	356,171	403,909		
Four years later	381,850			
Liability re-estimated as of:				
One year later	444,009	487,142	532,518	551,984
Two years later	437,203	495,621	519,718	
Three years later	437,617	487,139		
Four years later	436,074			
Cumulative surplus (deficiency)	¥ (1,963)	¥ (3,567)	¥ (5,802)	¥ 20,745
%	(0.5)%	(0.7)%	(1.1)%	3.6%

Operations

Sales, Marketing and Underwriting

In addition to our head office, we have 18 regional headquarters, 130 branches and 707 sub-branches located throughout Japan as of June 30, 2008. Regional headquarters are charged with overseeing the operations of branches and sub-branches in the respective regions. The head office has delegated to these regional headquarters powers necessary to manage and oversee the operations in their respective regions. The primary purpose of this delegation is to enable the regional headquarters to gauge and respond quickly to customers' needs and other local market conditions. Branches and sub-branches are each responsible for a specified geographical area in which they carry out ordinary insurance activities, including policy issuance, loss adjustment and settlement of claims at their own discretion within authorized limits. Certain activities are under the direct control of the head office in Tokyo, including all reinsurance business as well as transactions involving amounts which exceed the branches' authorized limits.

Instead of the brokering system common in Europe and North America, non-life insurance in Japan is sold primarily through a network of full- or part-time insurance agents. As of March 31, 2008, we had 47,294 insurance agents, approximately 50% of whom sell insurance exclusively for us. These exclusive agents accounted for approximately 40% of the total premiums written through our agents. Our agents include corporations and individuals. Agents in Japan are required to be registered with the Financial Services Agency.

We regard the establishment of strong sales agency channels as a key factor in enhancing our competitive edge to be successful in Japan's deregulating market environment. We stress educating our insurance agents thoroughly and on an ongoing basis, with the goal of maintaining and strengthening professional insurance agency operations. We seek to enable our agents to respond effectively to customers' needs with appropriate knowledge of products and the ability to deal with and meet consumer demands. In addition to inhouse education programs, we delegate certain of our training functions to MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Agency Service Company, Limited, one of our subsidiaries which promotes large-scale expansion of and business assistance to insurance agencies.

In an effort to increase customer services and to strengthen sales, we maintain an "agency qualification system" and seek to provide insurance agents with appropriate products and business knowledge, such as claims payment procedures and other information. This agency qualification system works in collaboration with our "business ranking evaluation" by which insurance agents are rated in order to determine their commission. Insurance agents are compensated on a commission basis and, depending on our business ranking evaluation, which is conducted once every year, rates may vary from agent to agent even when dealing with the same type of insurance, according to factors such as qualifications, business volume and profitability.

Insurance Brokers

Although we do not foresee in Japan an immediate development of a strong brokerage structure or significant increase in market scale of brokerage businesses, we will continue to monitor the potential market opportunities. In light of the continuing deregulation of the Japanese financial system, insurance brokers may in the future become an important sales channel, and we are exploring ways to take active measures to pave the way for future deployment of an effective brokerage organization.

Claims Processing

Claims of policyholders are accepted for processing either by insurance agents or by us at our branch offices. The processing of insurance claims is undertaken by our branch offices and, in cases of overseas claims, by our claim processing subsidiaries located in New York, London and Bangkok. There is great customer demand for quick claim processing conducted by a nearby office. In view of the intensifying competition in insurance and other financial markets in Japan, we have focused on expediting claim processing in order to satisfy customer needs. As of April 1, 2008, there were 283 offices, including our branch offices, throughout Japan that are staffed with an aggregate of approximately 8,000 specialized employees and engage in claim processing work. We have also set up a 24-hour a day, 365-day a year claim processing service and have provided our adjusters with hand-held portable personal computers in order to conduct quick and accurate repair-cost estimates.

Investment Trust Sales and Defined Contribution Pension Plans

In 1998, we started directly selling investment trusts through our network of insurance agents. In light of the expected growth of investment trusts among Japanese individual investors' financial assets and the expected positive effect of cross-selling investment trusts through our network of insurance agents, we have been focusing on expanding sales of investment trusts.

On October 1, 2001, a defined contribution pension system was introduced in Japan upon the effectiveness of the Defined Contribution Pension Law. We have developed insurance and investment trust products for defined contribution pension plans and have begun proposing those products to our corporate customers. Under corporate-type pension plan rules we have introduced products, centering on the JIP general 401K plans for small- and medium-sized companies, while proactively ascertaining needs of small- and medium-sized enterprises for defined contribution pension plans, thereby earning extensive acclaim from these customers. Mainly through tie-ups with banks, we are also aggressively cultivating business in pension schemes for individuals being introduced primarily by large companies, which are targeting persons leaving their companies mid-career.

Financial Guarantee

We have been engaged in the business of providing guarantees in financial transactions, including those involving asset-backed securities, securitization products and credit derivative contracts since the 1990s, in a position as a direct insurer, a reinsurer and a protection seller of credit derivative contracts.

In principle, we maintain a conservative policy for underwriting such financial guarantees and require that such transactions have at least an investment-grade credit rating. For example, with regard to credit derivative contracts, all the contracts of collateralized debt obligations which we are currently undertaking are rated AAA or higher.

Alternative Risk Transfer

Following the December 1998 amendment to the Insurance Business Law, in March 1999 we started our own derivatives business, including trading and sales of interest rate and currency derivatives, as part of the expansion of our financial services. Subsequently, our derivatives business has included the development and sales of ART, or alternative risk transfer products including weather and earthquake derivatives. In 2007, our weather derivatives business for customers who are financially affected by unexpected weather conditions expanded through domestic alliances with banks and other participants in the markets and through MSI GuaranteedWeather LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary which was established in April to expand our weather-related business. MSI GuaranteedWeather LLC was formed by acquiring the entire business of GuaranteedWeather, Kansas, U.S., a risk management company handling weather derivatives and our business alliance partner up to the date of acquisition.

Reinsurance

For a variety of purposes, insurers cede liabilities under their policies to reinsurers. The benefits of reinsurance include stabilization of profits by reducing fluctuations of loss ratios arising from large or multiple claims, procurement of greater capacities to write larger risks and control over exposures to extraordinary losses or catastrophes.

We cede a portion of the risks we underwrite and pay reinsurance premiums based upon the risks subject to the terms and conditions of reinsurance contract. Although a reinsurer is liable to us to the extent of the risks assumed, we remain liable as the direct insurer to policyholders on all such risks.

We cede liabilities under our policies to various reinsurers in the world, which we select primarily from the viewpoint of financial security. We believe that there are no material amounts uncollectible from our current reinsurers.

We utilize a variety of reinsurance arrangements, which are classified into two basic types: proportional reinsurance and excess-of-loss reinsurance.

Proportional reinsurance. In this type of reinsurance, reinsurers share a proportional part of the original premiums and losses under the reinsurance cession assumed. This type of reinsurance is used as a means to limit a loss amount on an individual-risk basis. In proportional reinsurance, the reinsurer customarily pays the ceding insurer a ceding commission, which is generally based upon the ceding insurer's cost of acquiring the business ceded and may also include the ceding insurer's margin. In most cases, this type of reinsurance is arranged in the form of a reinsurance treaty, where the ceding insurer is automatically authorized to cede any business under a set of terms and conditions previously agreed upon without obtaining a separate prior consent to each cession from the reinsurers. If the underwriting capacity provided by such a treaty is not sufficient, the ceding insurer would have to arrange for "facultative reinsurance" in which separate consent must obtain from each reinsurer before any cession.

Excess-of-loss reinsurance. This type of reinsurance indemnifies the ceding insurer against a specified level of losses on underlying insurance policies in excess of a specified agreed amount. Excess-of-loss reinsurance is usually arranged in layers to secure greater capacity with more competitive pricing by offering various levels of risk exposure with different terms for reinsurers with different preferences. This type of reinsurance is commonly used as a means of protecting against the occurrence of catastrophes such as earthquakes and windstorms by capping the total accumulated amount of losses from the retention of individual risks after recovery of losses from proportional reinsurance.

By establishing an efficient and stable retention/reinsurance program structure, we aim to achieve the following:

- Stabilize profits and maximize middle-term earnings;
- Increase return on equity;
- Improve our combined ratio and solvency ratio:
- Achieve cost savings and strengthen our overall competitiveness.

Taking account of these policies, we believe that we adequately control our exposure on both per risk and per occurrence basis.

Additionally, we utilize insurance-linked securities, which enable us to transfer insurance risks to capital markets as well as traditional reinsurance markets. Since the traditional reinsurance markets imply volatility in terms of capacity and cost, diversifying the method of transferring insurance risks stabilizes our financial status. We also assume reinsurance from our overseas affiliates, insurance pools and other insurers/reinsures as additional sources of revenue. In line with our group strategy to expand overseas business, assuming reinsurance from our overseas affiliates plays important role to strengthen their capability of providing effective and responsive insurance rates to our customers outside of Japan.

In addition, we assume reinsurance from overseas insurers and reinsurers through our reinsurance subsidiary operations in both Ireland and Bermuda. This improves our comprehensive group risk structure by diversifying our insurance portfolio in terms of perils and regions, and the premiums assumed from foreign insurers are generally in foreign currencies.

The following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, sets forth our reinsurance premiums assumed and ceded and retention ratio for each of the periods indicated:

Year Ended March 31,

2008 2006 2007 (Yen in millions, except percentages) ¥1,535,379 Direct premiums written ¥1,575,476 ¥1,625,732 Reinsurance premiums assumed 250,396 265,857 264,880 Reinsurance premiums ceded (327,268)(351,954)(352,996)Net premiums written ¥1,458,507 ¥1,489,379 ¥1,537,616 Retention ratio(1) 81.7% 80.9% 81.3%

Overseas Business

The overseas business is considered as one of our core operations, playing an important role in terms of both achieving group core profit and balancing our overall business structure. Along with the 3 overseas branches and 37 overseas offices of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance, the group has 29 overseas subsidiaries and affiliates engaged in providing insurance related services, including 2 subsidiaries engaged in underwriting reinsurance, as of March 31, 2008. As a whole, the group operates in 37 countries and has 313 offices worldwide outside of Japan. Our overseas underwriting activity is mainly conducted by the following branches, subsidiaries and affiliates:

Asia and Oceania — Thailand Branch, Taipei Branch and Korea Branch of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance, Mitsui Sumitomo
Insurance (China) Company Limited, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company (Hong Kong), Limited, MSIG Insurance (Hong Kong)
Limited, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (Singapore) Pte Ltd, MSIG Insurance (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., MSIG Insurance (Thailand) Co.,
Ltd., PT. Asuransi MSIG Indonesia, MSIG Insurance (Malaysia) Bhd., BPI/MS Insurance Corporation, FLT Prime Insurance
Corporation, Philippine Charter Insurance Corporation, United Insurance Company of Vietnam, Asia Insurance (Cambodia) Plc.,
MSIG Mingtai Insurance Co., Ltd. and Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company Limited

⁽¹⁾ Retention ratio is calculated by dividing the net premiums written by the aggregate of the direct premiums written and the reinsurance premiums assumed.

- *The Americas* Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance USA Inc., Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company of America and Mitsui Sumitomo Seguros S/A.
- Europe, the Middle East and Africa Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company (Europe), Ltd., MSI Corporate Capital Ltd. and Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (London) Limited
- Reinsurance Business Mitsui Sumitomo Reinsurance Limited and MS Frontier Reinsurance Limited

Along with the traditional area of underwriting commercial risks for overseas subsidiaries and affiliated companies of customers in Japan, we are extending our underwriting activities to non-Japanese risks including personal line insurance, thereby expanding while at the same time diversifying our global underwriting portfolio. We have also introduced a new decentralized operating framework to manage our widely diversified overseas business portfolio. Dividing our global network into three areas, Asia, Americas and Europe, where each have established a regional holding company to manage the regional business, the new framework is intended to realize prompt decision-making and business execution as well as to effectively manage and govern our overseas business.

In Asia, our history dates back to 1964 when we first opened our branch in Bangkok. Since then, the company has been successful in expanding its business throughout Asia offering a wide variety of non-life insurance products to serve the demands of various customers in the region. Along with steady organic growth, we accelerated our expansion in the region by acquiring the Asian non-life insurance operations of Aviva in September 2004, and Taiwan's 2nd largest non-life insurance company, Mingtai Fire and Marine (now MSIG Mingtai Insurance) in May 2005, thereby affirming our position as one of the leading non-life insurers in Asia. In order to effectively manage our widely spread Asian business, in 2006, we established a regional holding company in Singapore which now manages the business mainly in the ASEAN region. In China, we obtained a license from the China Insurance Regulatory Commission to incorporate our former Shanghai branch, which had been operating since 2004, into a wholly-owned subsidiary in 2007, while in India, our joint-venture company Cholamandalam MS, which was established in 2003, continues to successfully expand its business by rapidly creating an extensive nationwide network.

Outside of Asia, in January 2002 we established the first Japanese non-life insurance holding company in the United States, now placing 5 subsidiaries, including 2 insurance subsidiaries, under its management in order to strengthen the North American business. In Europe, our Lloyd's operation since its foundation in April 2000 has been successful in creating an innovative and dynamic business and now places itself within the top third of Lloyd's syndicates in terms of turnover. To further affirm our support to the syndicate, in October 2006, we successfully launched our own dedicated managing agent, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Underwriting at Lloyd's Limited, also confirming our commitment to the Lloyd's market. For our reinsurance business, in November 2006, we increased the capital base of our reinsurance subsidiary MS Frontier Reinsurance Limited (based in Hamilton, Bermuda) from US\$ 200 million to US\$ 300 million, in order to expand our group's global reinsurance operations.

Life Insurance Business

We view our life insurance business as one of our core operations, together with our non-life insurance business. We believe that the expansion of our life insurance business can contribute to long-term growth and increased profits. In October 2001, in conjunction with the Merger, Mitsui Mirai Life Insurance and The Sumitomo Marine Yu-Yu Life Insurance merged to become Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life Insurance Company, Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of us. Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life's principal office is located in Tokyo, and it has approximately 665 employees and 26 branches throughout Japan.

Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life utilizes a network of approximately 13,592 agents from our nationwide network to sell life insurance products, mainly consisting of whole life insurance, term insurance, income benefit insurance and living benefit insurance. Since it started operations, Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life has been steadily expanding its business. It had underwritten approximately 985,000 insurance contracts, excluding group insurance contracts, as of March 31, 2008, compared to approximately 917,000 contracts as of March 31, 2007. Furthermore, total insurance in force was ¥11.1 trillion as of March 31, 2008, compared to approximately ¥10.7 trillion as of March 31, 2007. Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life's net profit was ¥19.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

We established a joint venture with the U.S.-based Citigroup and began selling personal annuities in October 2002. Subsequently, in July 2005 Citigroup sold its life insurance and annuity business, including the aforementioned joint venture, to MetLife, Inc., of the United States, making MetLife our new partner in this joint venture. Later, on October 1, 2005, the name of this company was changed to Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd. The joint venture will continue to carry out sales centered on individual annuities.

In the last five years since its inception, Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Co. has expanded its sales channel and developed competitive new products. As a result, Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Co. has become one of the leaders in the industry. At the end of March 31, 2008, the net premiums written was ¥644.6 billion, the amount of insurance contracts in effect was ¥2,527.8 billion, and the number of insurance contracts in effect was 274,000.

In order to provide annuities for the long-term, the credibility of the company is crucial in gaining customer trust. Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Co. has received an insurance financial strength rating of AA from Standard & Poor's, and an insurance claims paying ability rating of AA form Rating and Investment Information, Inc. (As of June 30, 2008.)

We differentiate this joint venture from Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life through its unique sales channels and products.

Direct Marketing Non-Life Insurance

We have made Mitsui Direct General Insurance Company, Ltd. ("MDGI") its subsidiary by subscribing for the new shares that MDGI issued and by further acquiring MDGI's outstanding shares from the minority shareholders. MDGI was established by Mitsui & Co. Ltd. and other companies of Mitsui group in June 1999 and started business operations in June 2000. MDGI has expanded its internet non-life insurance business by focusing on the internet business model from the spread of internet users.

Financial Services

On December 1, 2002 Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management Company, Limited, the 17.5%-owner affiliate of the Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance, was formed through the merger of MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Asset Management Co., Ltd., the former wholly owned subsidiary, and four other asset management companies. MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Asset Management Co., Ltd. was consolidated until November 30, 2002, and Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management Company, Limited was accounted for under the equity method from December 1, 2002.

Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management is one of the largest asset management companies in Japan, with its operations consisting of two businesses: investment advisory services and management of investment trusts. The asset management market in Japan is expected to grow in the long term, and we expect the already fierce competition in the market to intensify. As of March 31, 2008, assets under management totaled approximately ¥11,668 billion for Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management.

We conduct our venture capital business through MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Venture Capital Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary. In addition to utilizing MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Venture Capital for the purpose of investing our own insurance assets, we seek to provide value-added venture capital asset management services to third party customers through MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Venture Capital. We are also seeking to expand our venture capital consulting capability.

Long-Term Care Services

With the introduction in April 2000 of the Long-term Care Insurance Law in Japan, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance moved to strengthen its capability with respect to nursing care services. In October 2001, three nursing care related companies, Life Services Net, Well Life Services and Sumitomo Marine Sawayaka Net, merged to become MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Care Network Company, Limited. MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Care Network plays a principal role for us in the nursing care field and provides home-visit long-term care, private nursing home services and long-term care training services in the Nagoya region in central Japan and in the Yokohama area near Tokyo. MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Care Network Company, Ltd. opened another private-pay nursing home named "Yu Life Setagaya" in Setagaya-Ward, Tokyo, in July 2006, following the previous nursing home, "Yu Life Yokohama," which was opened in 1995. Our group aims to develop a comprehensive nursing service business, centering on the private nursing home business, and to contribute to prosperous longevity in the light of the rapidly aging population.

Alliances with Other Financial Institutions

As part of our strategy to enhance our insurance business and to expand other operations such as financial businesses and risk related services, we have entered into the following alliances with other financial institutions:

In November 2001, we agreed with Mitsui Life, Sumitomo Life and Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation to execute a wide-ranging alliance to further strengthen our insurance business. The proposed strategies are (i) collaboration of distribution channels among Mitsui and Sumitomo group insurance companies, (ii) joint-research and development of hybrid life and non-life insurance and financial products, (iii) concentration of Mitsui Life's non-life subsidiary's business in us and (iv) reorganization of asset management businesses. The agreement in April 2002 for merger of our asset management subsidiaries, described above, is a result of this alliance. As a further result of this alliance, Mitsui Life's non-life insurance subsidiary, Mitsui Seimei General Insurance had transferred its policies to us until November 2003. Mitsui Life now promotes sales of our non-life insurance products.

In April 2002, American Appraisal Associates, the world's largest valuation consulting firm, and InterRisk Research Institute & Consulting, a general think tank and consulting firm within the Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance group, established a joint venture corporation, American Appraisal Japan, to begin a full-service professional valuation practice in the Japanese appraisal market. American Appraisal Japan will provide a wide array of valuation services including with respect to corporations, machines and equipment, land and intangible assets. We, as a group, seek increased growth and revenues through marketing appraisal services to our corporate insurance clients.

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance entered into a sales alliance with AXA Life Insurance Company, Ltd. in July 2004, with the aim of AXA Life introducing Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance defined contribution plans (Japanese 401k) and consulting services. We believe AXA Life has a competitive advantage in the market for small to medium-sized companies and has a special full-time advisor channel. We believe the alliance enables us to promote defined contribution plans through cross-selling to the life insurance customers of AXA. At the same time, AXA Life can provide higher-quality products and services to their customers for the convenience of the customers.

In May 2004, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance and Tokai Tokyo Securities Co., Ltd. ("TTS") entered into a business and capital alliance in order to provide attractive products and services to meet customer demands. Currently, TTS carries our life insurance, non-life insurance, and variable annuities products, and together, provides support services to small to medium-sized companies. TTS ranks top in the sales of our insurance products and variable annuities. We plan to continue the alliance with TTS and build an integrated securities and insurance business model using both companies' business knowledge.

Investments

We invest in a portfolio of assets funds which are either (i) such portion of deposit premiums by policyholders under deposit-type insurance that have not been due for refund to the policyholders or (ii) our other general funds including such portion of net premiums written that have not been disbursed as indemnity payments. The deposit premiums are to be refunded to policyholders at maturity of deposit-type insurance, together with interest which is calculated at pre-agreed rates of interest and a portion of the investment return on the relevant deposit premiums. The investment return on the deposit premiums directly affects the attractiveness to policyholders of our deposit type products. Other general funds are to be used by us for indemnity payments under insurance policies upon occurrence of the risks covered, for working capital and for other general corporate purposes. Our principal investment objectives are first, to maintain the high quality of our investment assets in order to strengthen our claim payment capabilities. Second, we seek to maintain sufficient liquidity to meet the requirements of timely indemnity payments and payments of maturity refunds and dividends under deposit-type insurance policies. Third, upon satisfying the first two objectives described above, we seek to obtain the highest possible return on our investments.

With regard to the distribution of our investment assets among different asset types, we seek to ensure that our general funds and premiums received on deposit-type insurance policies match investments with different risk profiles relating to the characteristics of the respective sources of the investment assets and thus respective corresponding liabilities. With regard to deposit-type insurance, because our liabilities consist of yen-denominated liabilities with respect to maturity refunds and dividends, we endeavor to secure stable investment income sources, as well as sufficient liquidity and relatively low risk, by allocating the corresponding investment assets primarily among yen-denominated deposits and savings, call loans, bonds and loans. With regard to our general funds, in addition to the above-mentioned yen-denominated assets, we diversify our investments among Japanese equities and foreign securities, real estate and other investments, thereby seeking stable investment income sources while at the same time seeking higher returns on investments.

In connection with the amendment of the Insurance Business Law, which came into force in April 1996, most government regulations relating to our investments were eliminated. The remaining regulations limit the percentage of the book value of our assets that may be invested in specified categories of investment products without the approval of the Commissioner of the Financial Services Agency. For example, without such approval, investments in shares in Japanese companies are limited to 30%, investments in assets denominated in foreign currencies are limited to 30%, and investments in real estate are limited to 20%, in each case, of the book value of our total assets, less reserves for deposit-type policies and certain specified assets, under Japanese GAAP.

The following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, sets forth our investments as of each date indicated:

	As of March 31,		
	2006 2007		2008
		(Yen in millions)	
Investments — other than investments in affiliates:			
Securities available for sale:			
Fixed maturities, at fair value	¥3,193,503	¥3,317,804	¥3,334,185
Equity securities, at fair value	3,105,217	3,312,574	2,547,773
Securities held to maturity:			
Fixed maturities, at amortized cost	261,170	384,215	449,474
Mortgage loans on real estate	15,129	11,511	9,859
Investment real estate, at cost less depreciation	53,034	49,192	43,151
Policy loans	38,615	38,523	39,536
Other long-term investments	721,491	715,972	749,385
Short-term investments	93,829	113,671	120,086
Total investments	¥7,481,988	¥7,943,462	¥7,293,449
Cash and cash equivalents	¥ 385,165	¥ 369,941	¥ 368,290
Investments in and indebtedness from affiliates:			
Investments	¥ 59,480	¥ 46,198	¥ 56,351
Indebtedness	2,164	3,008	2,961
Total investments in and indebtedness from affiliates	¥ 61,644	¥ 49,206	¥ 59,312

A substantial portion of our investments consists of our direct investments by Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance and Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life. As of March 31, 2008, investments by Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance represented 80.4% of our total investments and investments by Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life represented 12.7%.

Securities available for sale

We invest in a diversified portfolio of securities. The following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, sets forth our securities by type as of each date indicated:

	As of March 31,			
	2006 20		7 2008	
		(Yen in millions)		
Japanese bonds	¥2,188,253	¥2,243,740	¥2,305,653	
Foreign bonds	1,005,250	1,074,064	1,028,532	
Total bonds other than affiliates	3,193,503	3,317,804	3,334,185	
Japanese equities	2,881,991	3,057,218	2,276,543	
Foreign equities	223,226	255,356	271,230	
Total equities other than affiliates	3,105,217	3,312,574	2,547,773	
Securities available for sale	¥6,298,720	¥6,630,378	¥5,881,958	

Japanese bonds. We invest in Japanese government bonds, local government bonds and corporate bonds, which generally yield higher returns on investment, yet are nearly as liquid, when compared with deposits and savings or call loans. Fluctuations in market interest rates, in the absence of countervailing hedging or other procedures, could result in losses or gains in the carrying value of our investments in such bonds. We use interest rate swaps and futures contracts to manage and control such market risks within certain parameters.

Japanese equities. As stated above, we seek to combine the above-mentioned objectives of diversifying investments and obtaining high investment returns while maintaining and enhancing business relationship with major corporate customers in Japan through ownership of shares in such customers on a long-term basis. However, stocks are exposed to volatility risk that is substantially higher than that of other assets in which we generally invest, and we believe that this type of stock holding generates significant risk for our portfolio. Accordingly, we seek to reduce our levels of stock holdings.

Foreign bonds. We invest in government and corporate bonds of foreign issuers with a view toward generating interest income which is generally higher as compared with investments in Japanese bonds under recent market conditions, as well as toward ensuring a certain degree of liquidity in our assets in the event of a major natural disaster in Japan that temporarily incapacitates the Japanese financial and monetary system and necessitates indemnity payments under our policies. We manage and control foreign exchange exposures within certain parameters primarily by using forward exchange contracts and currency options and interest rate exposures by using interest rate swaps and futures.

Loans

Loans are one of our primary investment assets. Loans generally generate relatively high interest income. Credit risk management is the key element in operating loans. The following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, sets forth our loans, other than those to affiliates, outstanding as of each date indicated:

	As of March 31,			
	2006 2007		2008	
		(Yen in millions)		
Mortgage loans on real estate	¥ 15,129	¥ 11,511	¥ 9,859	
Other long-term investments:				
Mortgage loans on vessels and facilities	708	526	277	
Collateral and guaranteed loans	353,389	376,405	403,488	
Unsecured loans	364,704	337,662	345,467	
Policy loans	38,615	38,523	39,536	
Total	¥772,545	¥764,627	¥798,627	

Mortgage loans on vessels and facilities, collateral and guaranteed loans and unsecured loans are included in other long-term investments.

About half of our loans are to corporate borrowers in Japan and most of the others are to individual borrowers in Japan. Since major corporate borrowers tend to look more to capital markets in raising funds, the amount of our loans outstanding to corporate borrowers has declined over the last few years. On the other hand, our efforts to expand our loan businesses have led to an increase in the amount of loans outstanding to individual borrowers, such as housing loans and consumer loans. Of our outstanding corporate loans, approximately 60% are fixed-rate loans and 40% are floating-rate loans, while the respective percentages are 70% and 30% for our outstanding individual loans.

Short-term Investments

Short-term investments consists of invested cash and money trusts. The following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, shows the amounts of short-term investments through money trusts, invested cash and commercial paper as of each date indicated:

	As of March 31,		
	2006	2007	2008
		(Yen in millions)	·
Money trust	¥49,892	¥ 51,069	¥ 47,832
Invested cash	23,914	47,410	56,948
Commercial paper	10,440	7,908	7,620
Other	9,583	7,284	7,686
Total	¥93,829	¥113,671	¥120,086

Cash and cash equivalents

We seek to hold adequate levels of deposits, savings and call loans in cash and cash equivalents in order to maintain liquidity for indemnity payments which may become due any time upon occurrence of the risks covered by the policies.

Call loans are short-term loans, generally overnight to three weeks, made to banks, securities companies or money market dealers.

Investment Results

The following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, sets forth our investment results for each period indicated:

	As of March 31,		
	2006	2007	2008
		(Yen in millions)	
Interest income, net of investment expenses:			
Interest on fixed maturities	¥ 76,713	¥ 89,052	¥ 89,704
Dividends from equity securities	60,339	66,828	69,050
Interest on mortgage loans on real estate	434	420	328
Rent from investment real estate	6,361	6,194	4,926
Interest on policy loans	1,286	1,326	1,352
Interest on other long-term investments	11,666	12,408	13,871
Interest on short-term investments	2,328	2,490	3,078
Others	7,646	11,070	12,480
Gross investment income	166,773	189,788	194,789
Less investment expenses	10,671	10,599	9,524
Net investment income	156,102	179,189	185,265

	As of March 31,		
	2006	2008	
		(Yen in millions)	
Realized gains (losses) on investments:			
Fixed maturities	3,332	975	6,273
Equity securities	57,348	23,955	10,788
Other investments	(10,481)	(615)	(34,431)
Total net investment income and realized gains on investments	¥206,301	¥203,504	¥167,895

Competition

The Japanese non-life insurance market expanded steadily until the 1980s. However, as the Japanese bubble economy burst, the economic growth became sluggish. Consequently, the growth of non-life insurance market also slowed down. According to the General Insurance Association of Japan, the average annual growth rate of non-life insurance market was only 1.0% (excluding direct net premiums and investment income on deposit premiums from policyholders) for the period of 2001 to 2005. Amidst this sluggish and increasingly competitive market environment, there was active reorganization in the non-life insurance industry in the early 2000s. In April 2001, three mergers of insurance companies took place: The Nippon Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. and The Koa Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. merged into NIPPONKOA Insurance Co., Ltd.; The Dai-Tokyo Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. and The Chiyoda Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. merged into Aioi Insurance Co., Ltd.; and The Dowa Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. and Nissay General Insurance Co., Ltd. merged into Nissay Dowa General Insurance Co., Ltd. In October 2001, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co., Ltd. was established through a merger of Mitsui Marine & Fire Insurance Co., Ltd. and The Sumitomo Marine & Fire Insurance Co., Ltd. In July 2002, SOMPO JAPAN Insurance Inc. was formed by a merger of Yasuda Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. and The Nissan Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. Furthermore, The Tokio Marine & Fire Insurance Co., Ltd. and The Nichido Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. established a joint holding company, Millea Holdings, Inc., in April 2002 and merged into Tokio Marine & Nichido Fire Insurance Co., Ltd. in October 2004. Millea Holdings, Inc., which was renamed Tokio Marine Holdings, Inc. in July 2008, made Nisshin Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. its wholly owned subsidiary in September 2006. As a result, only 7 listed non-life insurance groups survived out of the 14 listed non-life insurance companies as of March 31, 2001. These top 6 groups represented 86% of the market share of the total net premium income in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2005. In addition, the competition remains severe in the non-life industry.

With regard to competition with foreign companies, while major insurance companies with global operations, such as American Home Assurance Co. and Zurich Insurance Co., have entered the Japanese insurance market, we believe that their current strategy focuses on marketing methods and products that are yet to be cultivated in Japan, including direct marketing to individual customers as well as risk-segmented automobile insurance. According to "Insurance — Non-life Insurance Statistics" issued by the Insurance Research Institute, in the area of voluntary automobile insurance, the market share of foreign insurance companies is still around 4% as of March 31, 2006. However, we believe that it is probable that, over time, some foreign insurers will succeed in increasing their sales through such strategies, given the nature of the Japanese individual non-life insurance market, where customers prefer to deal with their insurance companies and agents on a face-to-face basis.

As for Japan's life insurance companies, they have already been competing directly with the non-life insurance companies in the "third sector" insurance business, and in 1996 many life insurers established non-life insurance subsidiaries as permitted under the 1995 amendments to the Insurance Business Law. However, while life insurance subsidiaries of non-life insurers have been growing steadily, many non-life insurance subsidiaries of life insurers have faced sluggish growth. As a result, those non-life insurance subsidiaries of life insurers integrated with, merged with, or transferred business to traditional non-life insurance companies. As of February 1, 2007, there only remained two non-life insurance subsidiaries of life insurers: Sumi-Sei General Insurance Co., Ltd. and Meiji Yasuda General Insurance Co., Ltd.

In addition, non-life insurance is likely to progress even further, which may further intensify competition. The sale channels have changed, and are expected to change further in connection with the complete deregulation of bank channels to sell insurance products. Therefore, non-life insurance companies are developing new sales channels utilizing financial institutions, while simultaneously working to increase profitability and added value at existing insurance agencies, as the priority concerns.

Regulation

The Japanese insurance market is regulated by the Insurance Business Law, as amended, as well as by cabinet orders, ministerial ordinances and various rules and regulations made by the Financial Services Agency and relevant ministries. Under the Insurance Business Law and the regulations thereunder, all insurance companies must be either joint stock corporations or mutual companies, and they must each obtain a license (non-life or life insurance) from the Prime Minister. Although the same entity cannot obtain both of non-life and life insurance licenses, non-life insurance companies are allowed to establish subsidiaries to engage in the life insurance business and life insurance companies are also allowed to establish subsidiaries to engage in non-life insurance business. The Insurance Business Law and the regulations thereunder also contain detailed provisions regarding, among other things, accounting principles and restrictions relating to the investment of insurance companies' funds, the registration of insurance agents and insurance brokers with the Prime Minister and the nature of their soliciting activities. Foreign insurance companies which intend to conduct insurance business in Japan are also subject to the Insurance Business Law.

The business operations and financial condition of insurance companies are under the supervision of the Financial Services Agency and must comply with the internal regulations that must be approved by the Financial Services Agency, prescribing methods of operations, general policy conditions and the basis of calculation of premiums and reserves for unexpected risks. The Financial Services Agency may require insurance companies to submit reports and other documents and may carry out inspections at the companies' offices. It is the practice of the Financial Services Agency to review the business operations of insurance companies regularly.

Under the Insurance Business Law, an insurance holding company is prohibited from carrying on business other than the administration of the management of its subsidiaries and other incidental business. An insurance holding company may have as its subsidiaries life and non-life insurance companies, banks, securities companies, trust companies, foreign companies engaging in the insurance, banking, securities or trust business and certain other companies. An insurance holding company is also subject to the supervision of the Financial Services Agency. The Financial Services Agency may require an insurance holding company or its subsidiaries to submit reports and other documents and carry out inspections at an insurance holding company's or its subsidiaries' offices. In addition, if an insurance holding company has a bank or a securities company as its subsidiary, such insurance holding company is also subject to supervision by the Financial Services Agency under the Banking Law or the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law, as applicable.

Japanese insurance companies are limited by the Insurance Business Law and the regulations thereunder as to the types of investment which they may make and as to the percentage of their total assets (as defined in the regulations under the Insurance Business Law and calculated on the basis of Japanese GAAP) which can be invested in each type of investment. Under these provisions, insurance company's investment portfolio must, in general, be held in the form of cash on deposit, loans, shares, bonds, money trusts and real estate and other investments. Investments in shares and assets denominated in foreign currencies are each limited to 30% of the book value of its total assets. The aggregate investment in real estate is limited to 20% of the book value of its total assets. Investments in debt securities, loans and loaned securities are each limited to 10% of the book value of its total assets. In addition, investments in any one company (including its affiliates) is, in general, limited to 10% (in case of the loans and guarantees, 3%) of the book value of its total assets. Similar limitation also applies to an insurance company's group on an aggregated basis.

Under the Insurance Business Law, as amended in 1998, (1) the Non-life Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation and the Life Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation were established, (2) an early warning measure for insurance companies was introduced, under which the regulatory authorities, such as the Financial Services Agency, may take appropriate measures against an insurance company, including an order to suspend its business operation, based upon their inspection of the operational soundness of the company in accordance with the solvency margin ratios of the company, and (3) non-life and life insurance companies became able to sell beneficiary interest certificates of securities investment trusts. In addition to the foregoing, under the Insurance Business Law as amended in 1998, non-life and life insurance companies were permitted to enter into the banking business through their subsidiaries in October 1999, and banks were permitted to enter into non-life and life insurance businesses through their subsidiaries in October 2000. Furthermore, amendments were made in 1998 to the Law Concerning Non-Life Insurance Rating Organizations abolishing the obligation previously imposed on non-life insurance companies to use the tariffs established by these organizations. As a result, non-life insurance companies may set their own premiums for the products that they offer, and competition has also increased. In addition, the Insurance Business Law as amended in 1998 liberalized the approval procedure for certain changes to the internal regulations prescribing methods of operations, general policy conditions and the basis of calculations of premiums and reserves for unexpected risks by introducing a notification procedure. Such liberalization has also caused an increase in competition among non-life insurance companies.

In the "third sector" insurance business, including accident, sickness and nursing-care insurance, the entry of life and non-life insurance companies through their subsidiaries has been fully allowed since January 2001. As from July 1, 2001, life and non-life insurance companies have been allowed to directly conduct this business without using their subsidiaries. Foreign insurance companies have concentrated on this field, and deregulation of the Japanese insurance industry has intensified competition in the "third sector" insurance business among non-life and life insurance companies, as well as foreign insurance companies.

In April 2001, the Consumer Contracts Law and the Law on Sales of Financial Products were enacted, which regulate soliciting and selling activities of non-life insurance products.

From April 2001, in further liberalization of the Japanese financial industry as a whole, non-life insurance companies can sell certain types of their products (including household fire and credit long term disability insurance, if these are provided in connection with housing loans made by banks, and overseas travel insurance) through banks' branch offices. In October 2002, the scope of non-life insurance products which can be distributed through banks' branch offices was expanded to include pension-type refundable personal accident insurance and asset formation injury insurance. In December 2005, insurance policies that can be sold through banks were expanded to include savings-type personal accident insurance and personal property and casualty insurance, except for automobile and business related insurances, which are non-group contracts. The restrictions on the scope of insurance policies that can be sold through banks will be abolished as from December 22, 2007.

From August 2003, insurance companies under difficulty to continue operations have been allowed to change the terms of their insurance policies (including reductions of insurance payments) subject to the approvals of the Commissioner of the Financial Services Agency and the shareholders meeting of such insurance company, implementing procedures to protect the interests of policyholders and other conditions and procedures prescribed in the Insurance Business Law.

On September 30, 2007, in line with the enactment of the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law, certain amendments to the Insurance Business Law became effective. Under the amendments, among other things, the regulations on the solicitation and selling activities of certain insurance products with market risks (such as variable insurance or annuity) have been enhanced.

On December 22, 2007, the restrictions on the scope of insurance policies that can be sold through banks were abolished.

Under the Law Concerning Prohibition of Private Monopolization and Maintenance of Fair Trade of Japan, or the Japanese Anti-Monopoly Law, no insurance company can acquire or hold more than 10% of the total voting rights of all shareholders of any other company in Japan without obtaining the prior approval of the Fair Trade Commission except in certain limited circumstances. Additionally, the Insurance Business Law and the regulations thereunder prohibit an insurance company and its subsidiaries from acquiring or holding, on an aggregated basis, more than 10% of the total voting rights of all shareholders of any other company in Japan except certain companies listed in the Insurance Business Law. These restrictions do not apply to an insurance holding company.

The Insurance Law, which is the successor to the insurance section of the Commercial Code and which governs the contractual relationship between the insurer and the insured, passed the Diet on May 30, 2008 and will come into effect within two years from June 6, 2008. The Insurance Law enhanced protection of those who are insured and provides that, among other things, (i) an applicant for insurance is only required to answer inquiries from the insurer in connection with his/her obligation to tell the truth, (ii) an insurer shall be defaulted on payment of claims and benefits to the insured after reasonable time for necessary verification or investigation has elapsed (even if the insurance contract provides for a longer payment term), and (iii) any agreement that is inconsistent with the above as well as certain other provisions of the Insurance Law, and unfavorable to the insured, shall be null and void. Amendments to the Insurance Business Law, which regulates insurance business in line with the enactment of the Insurance Law, are currently under discussion.

C. Organizational Structure.

Subsidiaries and Affiliates

The following table represents our significant subsidiaries and affiliates.

Name	Country of Incorporation	Equity Held by Us, Directly or Indirectly (%)	Main Business
MSIG Holdings (Americas), Inc.	U.S.A.	100.0%	Holding Company
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance USA Inc.	U.S.A.	100.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company of America	U.S.A.	100.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
MSIG Holdings (Europe) Limited	U.K.	100.0%	Holding Company
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company (Europe), Limited	U.K.	100.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (London Management) Ltd	U.K.	100.0%	Holding Company
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (London) Limited	U.K.	100.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
MSI Corporate Capital Limited	U.K.	100.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (Singapore) Pte Ltd	Singapore	100.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
MSIG Holdings (Asia) Pte. Ltd.	Singapore	100.0%	Holding Company
MSIG Insurance (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.	Singapore	100.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company (Hong Kong), Limited	China (Hong Kong)	100.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
MSIG Insurance (Hong Kong) Limited	China (Hong Kong)	100.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
MSIG Mingtai Insurance Co., Ltd.	Taiwan	100.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
MSIG Insurance (Thailand) Co., Ltd.	Thailand	69.8%	Property and Casualty Insurance
PT. Asuransi MSIG Indonesia	Indonesia	80.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
MSIG Insurance (Malaysia) Bhd.	Malaysia	73.9%	Property and Casualty Insurance
Mitsui Sumitomo Seguros S/A.	Brazil	98.3%	Property and Casualty Insurance
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (China) Company Limited	China	100.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
Mitsui Sumitomo Reinsurance Limited	Ireland	100.0%	Reinsurance
MS Frontier Reinsurance Limited	Bermuda	100.0%	Reinsurance
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited	Japan	100.0%	Property and Casualty Insurance
Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life Insurance Company, Limited	Japan	100.0%	Life Insurance
Mitsui Direct General Insurance Company, Limited	Japan	$66.5\%^{(2)}$	Property and Casualty Insurance
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Venture Capital Co., Ltd.	Japan	100.0%	Venture Capital
Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management Company, Limited (1)	Japan	17.5%	Asset Management
Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd. (1)	Japan	$50.0\%^{(3)}$	Life insurance

⁽¹⁾ This company is accounted for by the equity method.

D. Property, Plants and Equipment.

Property, Plants and Equipment

We own real estate properties either for use in our operations or for investment purposes. We lease some of our office space in Japan. Our head office is located in Tokyo. Our other major offices in Japan are located in Tokyo, Chiba, Osaka, Nagoya and Kobe.

⁽²⁾ We hold 69.6% of voting rights of this company.

⁽³⁾ We hold 51.0% of voting rights of this company.

As of March 31, 2008, the net book value of the land and buildings owned by us was \\ \pm 402 \text{ billion}, and the net book value of equipment owned by us, including communications and data processing facilities, was \\ \pm 76 \text{ billion}. We lease other equipment we use in our operations.

The following table sets forth information, as of March 31, 2008, with respect to our significant properties:

Principal Facilities or Subsidiary Name	Location	Principal Uses	Floor Space (Square Meters)
Chiba New Town Center	2-2-1, Otsuka, Inzai-city, Chiba	Computer Center	78,703.06
Surugadai Building	3-9, Kanda-Surugadai, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo	Sales Office	75,500.62
Osaka Yodoyabashi Building	4-3-1, Kitahama, Tyuuou-ku, Osaka-city, Osaka	Sales Office	45,742.58
Hachioji Center	1-41-1, Koyasu-cho, Hachioji-city, Tokyo	Computer Center	20,193.34
Nagoya Building	1-2-1, Nishiki, Naka-ku, Nagoya-city, Aichi	Sales Office	15,260.80
Kobe Building	1-1-18, Sakaedori, Tyuuou-ku, Kobe-city, Hyougo	Sales Office	11,100.99

None of the above properties owned by us was subject to mortgages or other liens as of March 31, 2008. We know of no material defect in the title to any of our properties or of any material adverse claim with respect to any of our properties, either pending or contemplated.

We consider our office and other facilities to be well maintained and adequate for our current requirements.

Item 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments.

Not applicable.

Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects.

A. Operating Results.

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations together with our consolidated financial statements and other information included in this annual report. We prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and accordingly the following discussion is based on our U.S. GAAP financial information.

This discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual results may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including, but not limited to, those set forth under Item 3.D and elsewhere in this annual report.

Overview

Our financial condition and results of operations are generally affected by economic conditions in Japan and, to a lesser extent, other parts of the world in which we and our subsidiaries conduct business.

Japan's economy experienced a significant downturn throughout the 1990s and early 2000s. After a long recession and deflationary economic conditions, the economy turned upward due to the deregulation and structural changes in the economy, as well as stabilization of the financial system. Japan enjoyed five consecutive years of positive growth in real terms. In the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, Japan's real gross domestic product, or GDP, increased by 1.6% as compared with the previous fiscal year.

As the economy grew steadily and corporate earnings increased, the Japanese stock markets have generally recovered from a record low in 2003. The Nikkei 225 recovered from less than 8,000 in 2003 to 17,000 in 2005, though the stock markets were relatively flat in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. We have invested in securities of Japanese and foreign issuers, primarily marketable equity securities, for relationship and other purposes. Substantially all of our marketable equity securities are classified as available-for-sale securities. The fair value of these securities exposes us to equity price risks that can affect our earnings. The carrying amounts of equity securities classified as available-for-sale securities in our consolidated balance sheets were \(\frac{x}{2}\),547,773 million as of March 31, 2008 and \(\frac{x}{3}\),312,574 million as of March 31, 2007. Changes in the value of these securities affect our financial statements in two ways. First, they are carried on the balance sheet at fair value, and any gains or losses resulting from changes in values of these securities are reported, net of related taxes, as a separate item under stockholders' equity, but are not reflected in earnings for the current period unless sold. Second, if these securities have experienced a decline in value below their respective costs that are considered to be other than temporary, the declines are recorded as a loss and charged against current earnings.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our selected income statement information for each of the periods indicated:

	Year Ended March 31,			
	2006	2007	2008	2008
		(Yen in millions,	dollar in thousands)	
Revenues:				
Net premiums written	¥1,458,507	¥1,489,379	¥1,537,616	\$15,376,160
Less increase in unearned premiums	35,706	20,299	34,931	349,310
Net premiums earned	1,422,801	1,469,080	1,502,685	15,026,850
Premium income for life insurance contracts	179,430	193,551	192,731	1,927,310
Investment income, net of investment expenses	156,102	179,189	185,265	1,852,650
Net realized gains (losses) on investments	50,199	24,315	(17,370)	(173,700)
Total revenue	1,808,532	1,866,135	1,863,311	18,633,110
Expenses:				
Losses, claims and loss adjustment expenses:				
Losses and claims incurred and provided for	881,623	909,656	906,257	9,062,570
Related adjustment expenses	68,855	70,001	82,370	823,700
Policyholder benefits for life insurance contracts	151,365	156,591	156,683	1,566,830
Amortization of policy acquisition costs	340,878	367,224	372,025	3,720,250
Investment income credited to investment deposits by policyholders	50,840	48,482	48,498	484,980
Other expenses, net	133,994	146,742	143,719	1,437,190
Total expenses	1,627,555	1,698,696	1,709,552	17,095,520
Income before income taxes	180,977	167,439	153,759	1,537,590
Income taxes:				
Current	35,497	43,747	25,368	253,680
Deferred	25,030	9,208	22,769	227,690
Total income taxes	60,527	52,955	48,137	481,370
Minority interests	560	568	826	8,260
Net income	¥ 119,890	¥ 113,916	¥ 104,796	\$ 1,047,960

Vear Ended March 31

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2008 compared with the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007

Net Premiums Written. In non-life insurance business, although net premiums written of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited decreased by ¥13.7 billion due to reduced revenue from our main products, automobile insurance and fire and allied line insurance, overall net premiums written increased 3.2% from ¥1,489.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥1,537.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, reflecting the inclusion of Mitsui Direct's premiums of ¥26.5 billion in the consolidated accounts and business expansion in European subsidiaries. Net premiums earned increased 2.3% from ¥1,469.1 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥1,502.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

Net premiums written for voluntary automobile insurance increased 4.2% from ¥599.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥624.9 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. This was mainly due to the inclusion of Mitsui Direct's premiums in the consolidated accounts. Voluntary automobile insurance premiums account for approximately 40% of our net premiums, and thus voluntary automobile insurance underwriting results significantly affect our overall profit.

Net premiums written for compulsory automobile liability insurance decreased 0.4% from ¥192.1 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥191.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

Net premiums written for fire and allied lines insurance increased 8.2% from ¥208.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥225.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, mainly due to business expansion in European subsidiaries.

Net premiums written for personal accident insurance decreased 0.6% from ¥139.8 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥138.9 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, mainly due to a decline of net premiums written for 3rd sector insurance products such as whole-life medical insurance.

Net premiums written for cargo and transit insurance increased 8.2% from ¥91.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥98.8 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, due to rising materials costs and brisk cargo movement.

Net premiums written for hull insurance increased 11.6% from ¥19.6 billion for the year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥21.9 billion for the year ended March 31, 2008, due to efforts to expand our sales foundation.

Net premiums written for other types of insurance decreased 0.9% from ¥238.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥236.5 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

Premium Income for Life Insurance Contracts. In the life insurance business, measures taken to promote cross-sales at Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life, a wholly-owned subsidiary, as well as increased direct sales and proactive sales activities, led to growth in the amount of individual insurance and individual annuity insurance in force. However, due to a fall in premium income for group insurance, overall life insurance premiums slightly decreased 0.4% from \mathbb{1}193.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to \mathbb{1}192.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

Investment Income. Investment income, net of investment expenses, increased 3.4% to ¥185.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 from ¥179.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, due to an increase in the number of companies raising or restoring dividends amid an overall recovery in corporate earnings in Japan and an increase in investible funds.

Realized Gains (Losses) on Investments. We recorded realized losses on investments in the amount of ¥17.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 compared to realized gains in the amount of ¥24.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. For the year ended March 31, 2007, we recorded realized gains on equity securities in the amount of ¥24.0 billion, and for the year ended March 31, 2008, we recorded realized gains of ¥10.8 billion. This decrease was mainly due to the effects of the Japanese stock market slowdown toward the end of the fiscal year. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, we recorded realized gains on fixed maturity securities in the amount of ¥1.0 billion, and for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, realized gains on fixed maturity securities in the amount of ¥6.3 billion. With respect to other investments, we recorded realized losses in the amount of ¥0.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 and we recorded realized losses in the amount of ¥34.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. This reflected an increase in realized losses on credit derivatives, caused by the credit crunch stemming from the subprime loan problems, and realized losses relating to demolition of investments as part of the urban redevelopment plan. With regard to the non-performing loan situation, although the amount of impaired loans slightly increased from ¥4.3 billion as of March 31, 2007 to ¥4.5 billion as of March 31, 2008, the amount of total allowance for credit losses decreased from ¥1.7 billion as of March 31, 2007 to ¥1.1 billion as of March 31, 2008.

Losses, Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses. Losses, claims and loss adjustment expenses increased 0.9% from ¥979.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥988.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. Of these expenses, losses and claims incurred and provided for, or net loss incurred, decreased 0.4% from ¥909.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥906.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. The overall net loss ratio, which is the ratio of net loss incurred to net premiums earned, decreased from 61.9% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to 60.3% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

Net loss incurred for voluntary automobile insurance increased 1.1% from ¥401.4 billion for the year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥405.7 billion for the year ended March 31, 2008. This was mainly due to the inclusion of Mitsui Direct's losses in the consolidated accounts. The net loss ratio for this line of business declined 1.6% from 66.9% for the year ended March 31, 2007 to 65.3% for the year ended March 31, 2008.

Net loss incurred for compulsory automobile liability insurance decreased 2.8% from ¥137.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥133.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. The net loss ratio for compulsory automobile liability insurance declined 2.0% from 71.1% for the year ended March 31, 2007 to 69.1% for the year ended March 31, 2008. This was mainly due to a decrease in unreported losses from the previous fiscal year.

Net loss incurred for fire and allied lines insurance increased 22.3% from ¥93.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥114.1 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. This reflected business expansion in European subsidiaries and large-scale losses from a flood disaster in Europe. The net loss ratio for this line of business also increased 4.1% to 54.5% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 compared to 50.4% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

Net loss incurred for personal accident insurance increased 6.7% from ¥69.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥73.9 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. The net loss ratio for this line of business increased 4.3% from 51.6% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to 55.9% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, due to increasing claim payouts especially for general and family-type personal accident insurance products, and decreased net premiums written.

Net loss incurred for cargo and transit insurance decreased 7.9% from ¥38.8 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥35.8 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. The net loss ratio for this line of business declined 6.4% from 43.0% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to 36.6% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

Net loss incurred for hull insurance decreased 4.1% from ¥16.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥15.9 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. The net loss ratio for this line of business declined 15.8% from 89.9% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to 74.1% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

Net loss incurred for other types of insurance decreased 16.6% from ¥152.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥127.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. This reflected a decrease in losses and claims liability denominated in foreign currencies owing to the appreciation of the yen, and the reverse impact compared to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, which was brought about by the usage of more adequate data to estimate the amount of unreported losses and consequently the net loss incurred for the year ended March 31, 2007 was higher compared with that for the year ended March 31, 2008. The net loss ratio for other types of business declined 5.9% from 61.9% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to 56.0% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

Policyholder Benefits for Life Insurance Contracts. Policyholder benefits for life insurance contracts slightly increased 0.1% from ¥156.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥156.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, reflecting the expansion of the life insurance business.

Policy Acquisition Costs. Policy acquisition costs increased 1.3% from ¥367.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥372.0 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. In non-life insurance business, policy acquisition costs increased ¥16.1 billion from the previous fiscal year, reflecting the business expansion including Mitsui Direct's operations. On the other hand, in life insurance business, policy acquisition costs decreased ¥11.3 billion from the previous fiscal year, due to the suspension of the sale of "increasing term life insurance" in Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life and an effect of incorporating the company experience for those types of products that are subject to such accounting requirements.

Investment Income Credited to Investment Deposits by Policyholders. Investment income credited to investment deposits by policyholders was ¥48.5 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, as well as for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. This was due to a slight rise in the credited interest rate reflecting investment performance, although investment deposits by policyholders decreased from ¥2,196.6 billion as of March 31, 2007 to ¥2,119.2 billion as of March 31, 2008.

Other expenses. Other expenses decreased 2.1% from ¥146.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 to ¥143.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. This was mainly due to an increase in investment gains in equity included in "other expenses, net", from ¥3.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

Income Before Income Taxes. As a result of the foregoing, income before income taxes decreased 8.2% to ¥153.8 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 from ¥167.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

Income Taxes. We recorded income tax expense in the amount of ¥48.1 billion for the year ended March 31, 2008, representing an effective income tax rate of 31.3%, compared to income tax expense in the amount of ¥53.0 billion for the year ended March 31, 2007, representing an effective income tax rate of 31.6%.

Net Income. As a result of the foregoing, net income decreased 8.0% to ¥104.8 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 compared to ¥113.9 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007 compared with the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2006

Net Premiums Written. In non-life insurance business, partly due to an order for partial suspension of business we received from the Financial Services Agency of Japan, which was effective from June 2006 to February 2007, net premiums written in the parent company decreased by ¥7.9 billion. On the other hand, net premiums written increased by ¥38.7 billion at overseas subsidiaries due mainly to the business expansion in European subsidiaries and the fact that certain Asian subsidiaries acquired in 2006 contributed their net premium written only in the second half of the year to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2006. As a result, net premiums written increased 2.1% from ¥1,458.5 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥1,489.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. Net premiums earned increased 3.3% from ¥1,422.8 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥1,469.1 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

Net premiums written for voluntary automobile insurance increased 2.1% from ¥587.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥599.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. This was due mainly to the fact that certain Asian subsidiaries acquired in 2006 contributed their net premium written only in the second half of the year to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2006 and the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2007 include the account of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (Malaysia) Bhd. which was accounted for under the equity method for the year ended March 31, 2006. Voluntary automobile insurance premiums account for approximately 40% of our net premiums, and thus voluntary automobile insurance underwriting results significantly affect our overall profit.

Net premiums written for compulsory automobile liability insurance decreased 0.7% from ¥193.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥192.1 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, due to the implementation of a reduction in the basic premium rates (a decline in the government subsidies for compulsory automobile liability insurance premiums) in April 2005.

Net premiums written for fire and allied lines insurance increased 1.4% from ¥205.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥208.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, due to the business expansion in reinsurance subsidiaries and the fact that certain Asian subsidiaries acquired in 2006 contributed their net premium written only in the second half of the year to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2006.

Net premiums written for personal accident insurance decreased 2.4% from ¥143.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥139.8 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, due to an order for partial suspension of business from the Financial Services Agency of Japan, which was effective from June 2006 to February 2007.

Net premiums written for cargo and transit insurance increased 9.7% from ¥83.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥91.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, due to the efforts to expand sales foundation.

Net premiums written for hull insurance increased 18.3% from ¥16.6 billion for the year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥19.6 billion for the year ended March 31, 2007, due to the efforts to expand sales foundation.

Net premiums written for other types of insurance increased 3.9% from ¥229.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥238.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, reflecting the business expansion in European subsidiaries.

Premium Income for Life Insurance Contracts. In the life insurance business, measures taken to promote cross-sales at Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life, a wholly-owned subsidiary, as well as increased direct sales and proactive sales activities, led to growth in the amount of individual insurance and individual annuity insurance in force. As a result, life insurance premiums increased 7.9% from \mathbb{1}179.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to \mathbb{1}193.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

Investment Income. Investment income, net of investment expenses, increased 14.8% to ¥179.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 from ¥156.1 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, due to an increase in the number of companies raising or restoring dividends amid an overall recovery in corporate earnings in Japan, an increase in investible funds, a rise in overseas stock prices and a trend toward a weakening of the yen.

Realized Gains (Losses) on Investments. We recorded realized gains on investments in the amount of ¥24.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 compared to realized gains in the amount of ¥50.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. For the year ended March 31, 2006, we recorded realized gains on equity securities in the amount of ¥57.3 billion, and for the year ended March 31, 2007, we recorded realized gains of ¥24.0 billion. This decrease was mainly due to a decrease in sales of equity securities that had been in an unrealized gain position, and also relates to the gain of ¥15.3 billion for a nonmonetary exchange of marketable equity securities recorded for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. This gain was calculated in accordance with EITF No. 91-5, "Nonmonetary Exchange of Cost-Method Investments", which was determined as the difference between acquisition costs of pre-merger Sankyo Co., Ltd. shares that we had held and the fair market value of post-merger Daiichi Sankyo Co., Ltd. shares that we received in exchange for shares of Sankyo Co., Ltd. following the merger between Daiichi Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. and Sankyo Co., Ltd. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, we recorded realized gains on fixed maturity securities in the amount of ¥3.3 billion and realized gains in the amount of ¥10.5 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 and we recorded realized losses in the amount of ¥0.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. This reflected decrease in realized losses on derivatives for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. Our non-performing loan situation improved between the two fiscal years, as the amount of impaired loans decreased from ¥9.0 billion as of March 31, 2006 to ¥4.3 billion as of March 31, 2007.

Losses, Claims and Loss Adjustment Expenses. Losses, claims and loss adjustment expenses increased 3.1% from ¥950.5 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥979.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. Of these expenses, losses and claims incurred and provided for, or net loss incurred, increased 3.2% from ¥881.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥909.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. The overall net loss ratio, which is the ratio of net loss incurred to net premiums earned, slightly decreased from 62.0% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to 61.9% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

Net loss incurred for voluntary automobile insurance increased 8.3% from \(\pm\)370.8 billion for the year ended March 31, 2006 to \(\pm\)401.4 billion for the year ended March 31, 2007. The net loss ratio for this line of business increased 4.1% from 62.8% for the year ended March 31, 2006 to 66.9% for the year ended March 31, 2007. This was due mainly to an increase in bodily injury losses for the year ended March 31, 2007.

Net loss incurred for compulsory automobile liability insurance decreased 10.9% from ¥154.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥137.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. The net loss ratio for compulsory automobile liability insurance declined 8.6% from 79.7% for the year ended March 31, 2006 to 71.1% for the year ended March 31, 2007. This reflected the reverse impact compared to the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006, which was brought by a review and update of assumptions and underlying data to more appropriately project the ultimate loss and consequently the net loss incurred for the year ended March 31, 2006 was higher, compared with that for the year ended March 31, 2007.

Net loss incurred for fire and allied lines insurance decreased 4.6% from ¥97.8 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥93.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. This reflected a substantial decrease in losses in the reinsurance subsidiary, which suffered from claims for natural disasters for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. The net loss ratio for this line of business also decreased 3.9% to 50.4% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 compared to 54.3% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.

Net loss incurred for personal accident insurance increased 15.3% from ¥60.1 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥69.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. The net loss ratio for this line of business increased 6.6% from 45.0% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to 51.6% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, due mainly to increases in losses for *Viv Shusin* whole life medical insurance and general overseas travel insurance.

Net loss incurred for cargo and transit insurance increased 11.8% from ¥34.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥38.8 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. The net loss ratio for this line of business decreased 0.4% from 43.4% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to 43.0% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. An increase in net loss incurred for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 resulted from the business expansion of cargo and transit insurance. The net loss ratio remained almost unchanged.

Net loss incurred for hull insurance increased 14.6% from ¥14.5 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥16.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. The net loss ratio for this line of business decreased 3.4% from 93.3% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to 89.9% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. An increase in net loss incurred for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 resulted from the business expansion of hull insurance, which led to a slight decline in the net loss ratio.

Net loss incurred for other types of insurance increased 2.2% from ¥149.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥152.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. Although net loss incurred for other types of insurance increased, the increase in the ratio of net earned premiums exceeded that of net loss incurred, due mainly to the business expansion in European subsidiaries for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. Consequently, the net loss ratio for other types of business declined 3.1% from 65.0% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to 61.9% for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

Policyholder Benefits for Life Insurance Contracts. Policyholder benefits for life insurance contracts increased 3.5% from ¥151.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥156.6 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, reflecting the expansion of the life insurance business.

Policy Acquisition Costs. Policy acquisition costs increased 7.7% from ¥340.9 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥367.2 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. This reflected business expansion at certain subsidiaries.

Investment Income Credited to Investment Deposits by Policyholders. Investment income credited to investment deposits by policyholders decreased 4.6% to ¥48.5 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 from ¥50.8 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. This reflected a decline in investment deposits by policyholders from ¥2,265.3 billion as of March 31, 2006 to ¥2,196.6 billion as of March 31, 2007.

Other expenses. Other expenses increased 9.5% from ¥134.0 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006 to ¥146.7 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. This reflected the business expansion in overseas subsidiaries.

Income Before Income Taxes. As a result of the foregoing, income before income taxes decreased 7.5% to ¥167.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 from ¥181.0 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.

Income Taxes. We recorded income tax expense in the amount of ¥53.0 billion for the year ended March 31, 2007, representing an effective income tax rate of 31.6%, compared to income tax expense in the amount of ¥60.5 billion for the year ended March 31, 2006, representing an effective income tax rate of 33.4%. This represents a decrease of 1.8 percentage points over the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.

Net Income. As a result of the foregoing, net income decreased 5.0% to ¥113.9 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007 compared to ¥119.9 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.

Liabilities for Losses and Claims

For a summary reconciliation of the beginning and ending liabilities for our losses and claims, see Note 9 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report.

Credit Losses and Non-Performing Loans

During the late 1980s, reflecting the boom in the Japanese real estate market, Japanese financial institutions actively made loans to corporate and individual borrowers with real estate as collateral. In the early 1990s, reflecting a tighter monetary policy, strengthened regulations on land transactions and substantial declines in equity prices, the Japanese economy entered a recession and land prices began falling precipitously. This led to a substantial increase in the amount of non-performing loans in Japanese financial institutions' portfolios. Under these circumstances, Japanese non-life insurers, including us, have seen their non-performing loans increase, although not as much as other types of financial institutions. The main reason for this is that the Japanese non-life insurers are required to maintain high levels of liquidity compared with other types of financial institutions, in order to be able to make claim payments, which led them to diversify their investment portfolios.

Since the fiscal year ended March 31, 2000, our amount of non-performing loans decreased dramatically, reflecting a decline in large-scale bankruptcies due to the recent economic recovery in Japan and our efforts to dispose of non-performing loans.

A = -6 M = --- l- 21

The following table sets forth, for each period indicated, our recorded investment in impaired loans and valuation allowance:

	As of March 31,		
	2006	2007	2008
		(Yen in millions)	
Recorded investment in impaired loans:			
Mortgage loans on real estate	¥ 1,563	¥ 1,160	¥ 1,150
Mortgage loans on vessels and facilities	8	4	4
Collateral and guaranteed loans	_	_	1,724
Unsecured loans	7,383	3,185	1,575
Total	¥ 8,954	¥ 4,349	¥ 4,453
Valuation allowance:			
Mortgage loans on real estate	¥ 335	¥ 259	¥ 254
Collateral and guaranteed loans	_	_	104
Unsecured loans	4,230	692	294
Total	¥ 4,565	¥ 951	¥ 652

Solvency Margin Ratio

The solvency margin ratio is the solvency margin amount (i.e., payment ability, for example, capital and reserves) as a percentage of total risk, which is calculated as "risk exceeding ordinary forecast" based on Article 130 of the Insurance Business Law, Articles 86 and 87 of the Enforcement Regulations of the Insurance Business Law and the Japanese Ministry of Finance's Notification No. 50, issued in 1996.

Solvency margin ratio is used as an indicator of an insurance company's ability to pay insurance claims and other obligations in the event of losses exceeding ordinary forecasts. In the event the solvency margin ratio falls below a fixed level, regulatory authorities may require an insurance company to submit a plan for management reform. According to Notification No. 3 of the Ministry of Finance and the Financial Services Agency of Japan, a solvency margin ratio of 200% indicates that an insurance company has sufficient capability to pay insurance claims and other obligations.

The Company's solvency margin ratio as of March 31, 2008 decreased 194.6 percentage points from the previous fiscal year-end to 955.4%, due mainly to a decline in the fair value of Company-held stocks.

	As of M	As of March 31,			
	2007	2008	Change		
	(Yen in bill	(Yen in billions, except		(Percentage	
	percer	ıtages)	billions)	or points)	
Solvency margin total amount	¥3,527.6	¥2,782.9	¥(744.7)	(21.1)%	
Risk amount	613.5	582.5	(31.0)	(5.1)%	
Solvency margin ratio	1,150.0%	955.4%		(194.6) points	

Effects of Inflation

Because a substantial portion of our assets are highly liquid, they are not significantly affected by inflation. However, inflation may result in increases in our expenses, which may not be readily recoverable in the prices of services offered. To the extent that inflation results in rising interest rates and has other adverse effects on the capital markets and on the value of financial instruments, it may adversely affect our financial position and profitability.

Exposure to Currency Fluctuations

Some portion of our business is conducted in currencies other than yen, primarily U.S. dollars. Such business includes some hull and marine cargo insurance operations and some reinsurance operations, as well as investments in financial products denominated in foreign currencies. We are exposed to risks arising from fluctuations in exchange rates on assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. We seek to manage such exposures primarily by using forward exchange contracts, currency options and other derivatives. We also seek to control currency exposure by holding offsetting foreign currency positions in order to reduce the risk of loss from currency fluctuations.

Our Credit Rating

Standard & Poor's and Moody's Investors Service are rating agencies that rate the debt performance capability (creditworthiness) of debt issuers. Their evaluations are based on periodic reviews of financial data as well as management strategies and are results of analyses done using the proprietary models of each rating agency.

We receive ratings on our capability to service our obligations from insurance contracts and from the issuance of bonds, commercial paper, and other specific debt obligations. Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's ratings on its capability to service debt obligations from insurance contracts are presented below.

As of September 17, 2008

Rating Agency and Category	Rating (1)
Standard & Poor's Insurer Financial Strength Rating	AA
Long-term Counterparty Rating	AA
Long-term Senior Debt Rating	AA
Short-term Counterparty Rating	A-1+
Moody's Investors Service Insurance Financial Strength Rating	Aa3
Issuer Rating	Aa3
Commercial Paper Rating	P-1

⁽¹⁾ These ratings are entirely the opinion of the respective rating agencies and are thus not to be construed as payment guarantees. These ratings are subject to revision by the respective rating agencies.

Critical Accounting Policies

The accounting policies that we follow when preparing U.S. GAAP consolidated financial statements are fundamental to understanding our financial condition and results of operations. Many of these accounting policies require management to make difficult, complex or subjective judgments regarding the valuation of assets and liabilities.

Our significant accounting policies are summarized in the notes to our U.S. GAAP consolidated financial statements included in this registration statement. The following is a summary of our critical accounting policies.

Insurance Reserves

Loss, Claim and Loss Adjustment Expense Liability

Our loss, claim and loss adjustment expense liability represents estimates of future payments that we will make in respect of property and casualty insurance claims, including expenses relating to those claims for insured events that have already occurred as of the balance sheet date.

As of March 31, 2008, our loss, claim and loss adjustment expense liability accrued by line of business was as follows:

Line of Business

	As	of March 31, 2008
	(Y 6	en in millions)
Property and casualty loss, claim and loss adjustment expense liability:		
Voluntary automobile	¥	325,606
Compulsory automobile liability		211,553
Fire and allied lines		134,890
Personal accident		56,466
Cargo and transit		43,669
Hull		33,795
Other		381,615
Total	<u>¥</u>	1,187,594

The establishment of our loss, claim and loss adjustment expense liability is an inherently uncertain process, involving assumptions as to factors such as court decisions, changes in laws, social, economic and demographic trends, inflation and other factors affecting claim costs.

We estimate loss, claim and loss adjustment expense liability for reported claims on a case-by-case basis, based on the facts known to us at the time reserves are established. We periodically adjust these estimates to recognize the estimated ultimate cost of a claim. In addition, we establish reserves in our property and casualty business to recognize the estimated cost of losses that have occurred but about which we have not yet been notified. When actual claims experience differs from our previous estimate, the resulting difference will be reflected in our reported results for the period of the change in the estimate. See "Business of the Company — Loss and Expense Ratios".

As claims are reported over time, not all claims incurred during a fiscal period will be reported to us by the balance sheet date. Accordingly, we estimate incurred but not yet reported amounts using actuarial methods. We apply actuarial methods appropriate for each line of business. The majority of the loss, claim and loss adjustment expense liability is determined utilizing an incurred loss triangle method. Under the incurred loss triangle method, reported losses (i.e., paid claims plus case reserves) and loss ratios are tracked by accident year for each line of business to determine loss development factors. These historical loss development factors, along with any known or anticipated trends in claims development, are considered by management in determining the loss development factor to be utilized in calculating the appropriate level of reserve for the current fiscal year.

Changes in reported losses may affect our historical loss development factors, which in turn may affect our estimate of the amount of losses, claims and loss adjustment expense liability. For example, we estimate that a 1% increase in paid claims during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, together with a 1% increase in case reserves as of March 31, 2008, would have increased our aggregate losses, claims and loss adjustment expense liability as of March 31, 2008 by approximately 1.24%.

We consider property and casualty reserves expected to be paid after five years to be of a longer-tailed nature. Our longer-tailed balances consist primarily of bodily-injury claims. Settlement of claims involving longer-tailed reserves is inherently more risky and uncertain as claims cost may escalate as time progresses. We estimate that approximately 5% of our property and casualty reserves as of March 31, 2008 relate to claims that will be paid after five or more years.

For the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, our adverse development for claims expenses for all lines of business related to prior years (net of reinsurance) was as follows:

Claims expenses recognized in the current year relating to prior years, net of reinsurance Claims expenses recognized in the current year relating to prior years as a percentage of opening reserves for losses, claims and loss adjustment expenses, net of reinsurance Claims expenses recognized in the current year relating to prior years as a percentage of net incurred losses, net of reinsurance

ar Ended March 31	••
2007	2008
illions, except perce	entages)
¥14,834	Y(7,191)
1.8%	(0.8)%
	(010)/1
1 10%	(0.7)%
	illions, except perce

As set forth in the above table, subsequent development on prior years' claims represented an immaterial portion of the current year's claims expense for the periods presented.

Future Policy Benefits for Life Insurance Contracts

We estimate future policy benefits for life insurance contracts using long-term actuarial assumptions of future investment yields, mortality, morbidity, policy terminations and expenses. These assumptions include provisions for adverse deviations and generally vary by characteristics such as type of coverage, year of issue and policy duration. Future investment yield assumptions are determined at the time the policy is issued based upon prevailing investment yields as well as estimated reinvestment yields. Mortality, morbidity and policy termination assumptions are based on our experience and on industry experience prevailing at the time the policies are issued. Expense assumptions are based on our general experience and include expenses to be incurred beyond the premium-paying period.

Amortization of Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

We defer certain costs incurred in acquiring new business to the extent such costs are deemed recoverable from future profits. These costs are principally external sales agents' commissions, other compensation and other underwriting costs which vary with and are directly related to the acquisition of business. For property and casualty insurance products, we defer and amortize (i.e., expense) these costs over the period in which the related premiums written are earned. For traditional life insurance products, we generally defer and amortize these costs over the premium paying period of the policy. For investment contracts, we defer and amortize these costs with interest, in relation to the incidence of estimated gross profits to be realized over the estimated lives of the contracts. We review our deferred policy acquisition costs periodically to determine if they are likely to be offset by future premium revenue recognition. If any of these deferred policy acquisition costs are not considered recoverable, we write off those costs in the current year. For the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, we did not have any material write-offs of deferred policy acquisition costs reflected in our statements of income.

Estimates of future gross profits are made at a specific point in time based upon relevant available information. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment, and changes in assumptions made could significantly affect these estimates.

Investment Valuation and Impairments

Valuation of investments

Securities Available for Sale

At March 31, 2007 and 2008, the fair value of our fixed maturity securities available for sale was \(\frac{\pmatural}{3}\),317.8 billion and \(\frac{\pmatural}{3}\),334.2 billion, respectively, and the fair value of our equity securities available for sale was \(\frac{\pmatural}{3}\),312.6 billion and \(\frac{\pmatural}{2}\),547.8 billion, respectively. Changes in the fair value of our securities available for sale can have a significant impact on our results of operations, as we are required to recognize losses for declines in fair value below cost that we determine to be "other than temporary" in nature. See "Operating and Financial Results and Prospects — Critical Accounting Policies — Investment Impairments — Securities Available for Sale".

For fixed maturity securities available for sale, we use quoted market values to determine fair value. If quoted market values are not available, we instead use quoted market values for similar securities. For equity securities available for sale, which include common stock and non-redeemable preferred stock, we primarily use quoted market prices to determine fair value.

The following table shows the fair value of our securities available for sale, broken down by security rating, as of March 31, 2007:

	Fair Value				
	Fixed Maturity Securities	Equity Securities (1) (Yen in m	Total Securities	% of Total Securities Available for Sale	
To the state of th	V 2.064.920	`	,	05.60	
Investment grade	¥ 2,964,830	¥2,706,717	¥5,671,547	85.6%	
Non-investment grade	637	1,096	1,733	0.0	
Not rated	352,337	604,761	957,098	14.4	
Total securities available for sale	¥ 3,317,804	¥3,312,574	¥6,630,378	100.0%	

⁽¹⁾ We classify equity securities based upon issuer's long-term bond rating.

The following table shows the fair value of our securities available for sale, broken down by security rating, as of March 31, 2008:

	Fair Value				
	Fixed Maturity Securities	Equity Securities (1)	Total Securities	% of Total Securities Available for Sale	
	(Yen in millions)				
Investment grade	¥ 3,249,925	¥2,012,101	¥5,262,026	89.5%	
Non-investment grade	_	723	723	0.0	
Not rated	84,260	534,949	619,209	10.5	
Total securities available for sale	¥ 3,334,185	¥2,547,773	¥5,881,958	100.0%	

⁽¹⁾ We classify equity securities based upon issuer's long-term bond rating.

The following table shows gross unrealized losses on our securities available for sale, broken down by security rating, as of March 31, 2007:

	Gross Unrealized Losses					
		ed Maturity securities		quity <u>rities (1)</u> (Yen in mill	Total Securities	% of Total Securities Available for Sale
	**	12.016			/	0 7 6 7
Investment grade	¥	13,046	¥	332	¥13,378	85.6%
Non-investment grade		_		_	_	_
Not rated		1,287		964	2,251	14.4
Total securities available for sale	¥	14,333	¥	1,296	¥15,629	100.0%

⁽¹⁾ We classify equity securities based upon issuer's long-term bond rating.

The following table shows gross unrealized losses on our securities available for sale, broken down by security rating, as of March 31, 2008:

	Gross Unrealized Losses					
		d Maturity ecurities		Equity <u>urities (1)</u> (Yen in mill	Total Securities	% of Total Securities Available for Sale
Investment grade	¥	28,207	¥	1,654	¥29,861	48.2%
Non-investment grade		_		_	_	_
Not rated		3,913		28,135	32,048	51.8
Total securities available for sale	¥	32,120	¥	29,789	¥61,909	100.0%

⁽¹⁾ We classify equity securities based upon issuer's long-term bond rating.

The following table shows gross unrealized gains on our securities available for sale, broken down by security rating, as of March 31, 2007:

	Gross Unrealized Gains				
		Fixed Maturity Securities		Total Securities	% of Total Securities Available for Sale
		(Yen in millions)			
Investment grade	¥	85,586	¥1,991,071	¥2,076,657	90.5%
Non-investment grade		50	698	748	0.0
Not rated		2,625	216,577	219,202	9.5
Total securities available for sale	¥	88,261	¥2,208,346	¥2,296,607	100.0%

⁽¹⁾ We classify equity securities based upon issuer's long-term bond rating.

The following table shows gross unrealized gains on our securities available for sale, broken down by security rating, as of March 31, 2008:

	Gross Unrealized Gains				
	Fixed Maturity Securities		Equity Securities (1)	Total Securities	% of Total Securities Available for Sale
	(Yen in millions)				
Investment grade	¥	89,726	¥1,267,575	¥1,357,301	88.9%
Non-investment grade		_	338	338	0.0
Not rated		483	168,601	169,084	11.1
Total securities available for sale	¥	90,209	¥1,436,514	¥1,526,723	100.0%

⁽¹⁾ We classify equity securities based upon issuer's long-term bond rating.

The following table shows the amounts and the periods of time for which securities available for sale have been in an unrealized loss position as of March 31, 2007:

		Gross Unrealized Losses				
		Fixed Maturity Securities		Securities		
			(Yen in mi	illions)		
Less than one year	¥	2,262	¥	751	¥ 3,013	
Over one year		12,071		545	12,616	
Total	¥	14,333	¥	1,296	¥15,629	

The following table shows the amounts and the periods of time for which securities available for sale have been in an unrealized loss position as of March 31, 2008:

		Gross Unrealized Losses				
	Fixed Maturity Equity Securities Securities (Yen in millions)		Securities	Total Securities		
Less than one year	¥	22,998	¥29,067	¥52,065		
Over one year		9,122	722	9,844		
Total	¥	32,120	¥29,789	¥61,909		

The following table shows gross unrealized losses on and the fair value of fixed maturity securities available for sale that were in an unrealized loss position as of March 31, 2007, by contractual maturities at that date:

Fair Value
en in millions)
¥ 20,872
401,550
430,432
280,009
1,132,863
148,054
¥1,280,917

The following table shows gross unrealized losses on and the fair value of fixed maturity securities available for sale that were in an unrealized loss position as of March 31, 2008, by contractual maturities at that date:

	Gross	
	Unrealized	
	Losses	Fair Value
	(Yen in	millions)
Due in one year or less	¥ 2,803	¥ 76,156
Due after one year through five years	11,058	376,324
Due after five years through ten years	10,034	135,198
Due after ten years	7,148	186,852
Subtotal	31,043	774,530
Securities held by overseas subsidiaries	1,077	34,061
Total	¥ 32,120	¥808,591

The following table shows gross unrealized losses on our securities available for sale as of each of the dates indicated:

	As of M	As of March 31,	
	2007	2008	
	(Yen in	(Yen in millions)	
Equity securities	¥ 1,296	¥ 29,789	
Fixed maturity securities	14,333	32,120	
Total gross unrealized losses	¥ 15,629	¥ 61,909	

Set forth below is certain other information relating to our portfolio of securities available for sale as of March 31, 2007 and 2008:

Investment concentration

As of March 31, 2007, we held investments in Japanese government bonds that were valued at ¥1,176.4 billion, representing approximately 40.9% of our consolidated stockholders' equity as of that date. As of March 31, 2007, we also held investments, mainly equity securities, in Toyota Motor Corporation and its affiliates that were valued at ¥693.1 billion, representing approximately 24.1% of our consolidated stockholders' equity as of that date. No other investment in a single company including its affiliates exceeded 10% of our consolidated stockholders' equity as of that date. As of March 31, 2008, we held investments in Japanese government bonds that were valued at ¥1,232.4 billion, representing approximately 51.2% of our consolidated stockholders' equity as of that date. As of March 31, 2008, we also held investments, mainly equity securities, in Toyota Motor Corporation and its affiliates that were valued at ¥483.1 billion, representing approximately 20.1% of our consolidated stockholders' equity as of that date. No other investment in a single company including its affiliates exceeded 10% of our consolidated stockholders' equity as of that date.

Maturity profile

As of March 31, 2007, we held ¥560.1 billion of fixed maturity securities available for sale (measured at fair value) with an original term to maturity of ten years or longer and ¥2,757.7 billion of fixed maturity securities available for sale (measured at fair value) with an original term to maturity of less than ten years. As of March 31, 2008, we held ¥739.7 billion of fixed maturity securities available for sale (measured at fair value) with an original term to maturity of ten years or longer and ¥2,594.5 billion of fixed maturity securities available for sale (measured at fair value) with an original term to maturity of less than ten years. Fixed maturity securities with longer maturities are more sensitive to interest rate fluctuations than securities with shorter maturities.

Unrealized losses of fixed maturity securities

As of March 31, 2007, our unrealized losses of fixed maturity securities available for sale amounted to ¥14,333 million. As of March 31, 2008, our unrealized losses of fixed maturity securities available for sale amounted to ¥32,120 million. Such losses primarily resulted from changes in interest rates, and, consistent with our critical accounting policy "Investment Impairments — Securities Available for Sale", we recorded an impairment loss for such fixed maturity securities in the amount of ¥1,538 million for the year ended March 31, 2008.

In addition, based on our determinations in accordance with our critical accounting policy "Investment Impairments — Securities Available for Sale", during the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008, we did not record any material loss in connection with sales of securities that were in an unrealized loss position at March 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Investment Impairments

Securities Available for Sale

Under U.S. GAAP, we are required to recognize an impairment loss for "other than temporary" declines in the fair value of equity and fixed maturity securities available for sale. Determinations of whether a decline is other than temporary often involve estimating the outcome of future events. Management judgment is required in determining whether existing factors indicate that an impairment loss should be recognized at any balance sheet date. These judgments are based on subjective as well as objective factors.

When it is determined that a decline in value is other than temporary, the carrying value of the security is reduced to its fair value, with a corresponding charge to earnings. This corresponding charge is referred to as an impairment and is reflected in "Net realized gains (losses) on investments" in the consolidated statements of income.

Among the factors that management considers when determining whether declines in the value of securities below their costs are other than temporary is the likelihood that those declines will be reversed. For marketable fixed maturities securities, management evaluates each of the securities and considers fundamental valuation issues such as credit deterioration of the issuer and other facts including the extent and period of time that the value of the securities is below cost, such as whether the value of the securities continued to be more than 20% below cost during six-month period. For marketable equity securities, management evaluates each of the securities and considers a variety of facts, including (i) whether the value of the securities continued to be more than 12 months, (ii) whether the value of the securities continued to be more than 20% below cost during six-month period and (iii) whether there has been a decline in value to below 50% of cost as measured at the end of any fiscal year. For non-marketable securities, management considers whether declines in value reflect fundamental valuation issues such as the deterioration of the issuer's financial position and credit rating.

After considering these and other factors, we write down individual securities holdings to fair value when management determines that a decline in fair value below the acquisition cost of the securities is other than temporary.

See Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements for more information on the amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturity securities available for sale by contractual maturity and for the fair value of equity securities available for sale.

Valuation Allowances for Loan Losses

The following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, sets forth our loans, other than those to affiliates, outstanding as of each date indicated:

	AS OF WIATCH 31,		
	2006	2007	2008
		(Yen in millions)	
Mortgage loans on real estate	¥ 15,129	¥ 11,511	¥ 9,859
Other long-term investments			
Mortgage loans on vessels and facilities	708	526	277
Collateral and guaranteed loans	353,389	376,405	403,488
Unsecured loans	364,704	337,662	345,467
Policy loans	38,615	38,523	39,536
Total	¥772,545	¥764,627	¥798,627

The allowance for credit losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for credit losses charged to earnings. Credit losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for credit losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management's periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, the estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance is based on two principles of accounting: (1) SFAS No. 114 "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan" and SFAS No. 118, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan — Income Recognition and Disclosures", which require that losses be accrued based on the difference between the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, the fair value of collateral or the loan's observable market value and the loan balance and (2) SFAS No. 5 "Accounting for Contingencies", which requires that losses be accrued when they are probable of occurring and reasonably estimable.

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific allowance is established for loans that are classified as impaired when the discounted cash flows or collateral value of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of the loan.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. We determine the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfalls in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for mortgage and commercial loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent.

Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans and other loans which are not specifically identified as impaired are collectively evaluated for impairment. For large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans, the general allowance is calculated for loan losses to reflect loss contingencies underlying individual loan portfolios. Based on our past experience, it is probable that a certain percentage of our loans are impaired at any balance sheet date even if there is no specific loss information for individual loans. We calculate the amount of the general allowance for any period by taking aggregate loans, which excludes loans covered by specific allowances, for each credit category and multiplying the amount by the average of each category's overall loan loss ratio in the past three years. This estimated allowance is then adjusted for qualitative factors in accordance with the current macroeconomic conditions prevailing at each period and current lending policies and practices. The amount of the general allowance has varied from year to year due in part to fluctuations in the historical loan loss ratios.

Determination of the adequacy of allowances for loan losses requires an exercise of considerable judgment and the use of estimates, such as those discussed above. To the extent that actual losses exceed management's estimates, additional allowance for loan losses may be required that could have a materially adverse impact on our operating results and financial condition in future periods.

The following table, prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis, sets forth, for each period indicated, our recorded investment in impaired loans and valuation allowance:

As of March 21

	As of March 31,			
	2006 2007		2008	
		(Yen in millions)		
Record investment in impaired loans:				
Mortgage loans on real estate	¥ 1,563	¥ 1,160	¥ 1,150	
Mortgage loans on vessels and facilities	8	4	4	
Collateral and guaranteed loans	_	_	1,724	
Unsecured loans	7,383	3,185	1,575	
Total	¥ 8,954	¥ 4,349	¥ 4,453	
Valuation allowance:				
Mortgage loans on real estate	¥ 335	¥ 259	¥ 254	
Collateral and guaranteed loans		_	104	
Unsecured loans	4,230	692	294	
Total	¥ 4,565	¥ 951	¥ 652	

During the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, loan losses of ¥4,746 million, ¥2,381 million and ¥48 million, respectively, were recorded, which represented 0.61%, 0.31% and 0.01%, respectively, of the average loan portfolio during the period. As of March 31, 2007 and 2008, the allowance for loan losses, including general allowance in addition to the above, was ¥1,650 million and ¥1,098 million, respectively, which represented 0.21% and 0.14%, respectively, of the outstanding loans.

Our loan portfolio consists mainly of loans to individuals and corporations resident in Japan. Therefore, the level of impairment losses can generally be expected to increase when economic conditions in Japan deteriorate and decrease when economic conditions in Japan improve. If the Japanese economy performs differently from management's expectations, actual impairment losses could be different from the estimates.

Financial Instruments with No Available Market Prices

Certain assets and liabilities, including fixed maturity securities available for sale and financial derivatives, are reflected at their estimated fair values in our U.S. GAAP consolidated financial statements. As of March 31, 2008, 6.8% of the equity securities available for sale, virtually all financial derivatives and a small portion of the fixed maturity securities available for sale that we held in our investment portfolio were not listed or quoted, meaning there were no available market prices for these financial instruments.

For financial instruments with no available market prices, we determine fair values for the substantial majority of our portfolios based upon externally verifiable model inputs and quoted prices, such as exchange-traded prices and broker-dealer quotations of other comparable instruments, and use market interest rates in determining discount factors. All financial models, which are used solely for pricing each financial instrument, must be validated and periodically reviewed by qualified personnel independent of the division that created the model.

We determine fair values of equity securities with no available market price principally based upon an adjusted net asset value. The fair value of derivatives is determined based upon liquid market prices evidenced by exchange-traded prices, or broker-dealer quotations. If available, quoted market prices provide the best indication of fair value. If quoted market prices are not available for derivatives, we discount expected cash flows using market interest rates commensurate with the credit quality and maturity of the investment. Alternatively, we may use model pricing to determine an appropriate fair value (for example, option pricing models). In determining fair values, we consider various factors, including time value, volatility factors and the values of underlying options and derivatives.

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time, based upon relevant market information and information about the financial instruments. These estimates are subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment, and changes in assumptions made could significantly affect these estimates. See "— Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk".

Accounting for Deposit-Type Insurance Products

We allocate premiums for the indemnity and investment portions of deposit-type insurance products at the inception of the policy. The premium for the indemnity portion is calculated the same way that the premium for a traditional indemnity policy with no savings portion is calculated. The premium for the savings portion represents the present value of the lump-sum or annuity refund, discounted using the committed interest rate and the "total loss termination" rate. Total loss termination occurs when a full payout is made for the indemnity portion of the contract, in which case the policy terminates without any maturity refund being paid to the policyholder. The annual frequency of total loss of major saving-type insurance contracts ranges from 0.04% to 0.26%.

Premiums for the savings portion of the contract are accounted for as an increase to the liability for refunds captioned "Investment deposits by policyholders". At the end of each fiscal year, the present value of future payments of maturity refunds of contracts in force, net of the present value of the savings portion of future premiums, is accounted for as "Investment deposits by policyholders". The present value of future cash flows is calculated using the committed interest rate and the total loss termination rate, which are both set at the inception of the contracts.

Policy acquisition costs are not charged to the savings portion of the contracts. Costs associated with policy acquisition of deposit-type products are charged to the insurance portion and amortized over the contract period. This is based on the observation that there is no substantial difference in the level of policy acquisition costs depending on whether the savings feature is incorporated.

Business Segment Analysis

The Company operates principally in two business segments: property and casualty insurance and life insurance. The property and casualty insurance segment offers automobile, fire, personal accident, liability and other forms of property and casualty insurance products. The Company's financial services business, financial guarantee business and derivatives business are classified within the property and casualty insurance segment. Life insurance operations are conducted by our wholly owned subsidiary, Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life Insurance Co., Ltd., which offers a wide range of traditional life insurance products such as term-life, whole-life and annuity insurance, and a joint venture company, Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd., which offers variable annuity plans that combine the appeal of fund management, insurance, and annuity products, and fixed annuities denominated in foreign currencies.

The business segment information is based on financial information prepared on a Japanese GAAP basis with certain limited presentation differences from that utilized in the Company's external Japanese GAAP financial reporting. Additionally, the format and information presented in the internal management reporting are not consistent with the consolidated financial statements prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis.

Summarized financial information with respect to the business segments as of and for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 is as follows:

	Property and Casualty <u>Insurance</u>	Life Insurance (Yen in	Adjustment and Elimination millions)	Consolidated
2006				
Net premiums written	¥ 1,464,107	¥ —	¥ —	¥1,464,107
Net claims paid	792,941	_	_	792,941
Life insurance premiums		162,226	_	162,226
Life insurance claims		20,912	_	20,912
Commission and collection expenses	239,798	17,873	_	257,671
Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses	233,692	17,209	(3,556)	247,345
Interests and dividends received, net	90,937	11,613	(253)	102,297
Ordinary profit (loss)	129,830	(2,129)	9	127,710
Total assets	¥ 7,800,763	¥793,107	¥ (997)	¥8,592,873

	Property and Casualty Insurance	Life <u>Insurance</u> (Yen in n	Adjustment and <u>Elimination</u> nillions)	Consolidated
2007	V 1 402 000	¥	V	V1 402 000
Net premiums written Net claims paid	¥ 1,492,808 846,445	* —	¥ —	¥1,492,808 846,445
Life insurance premiums	040,443	165,364	_	165,364
Life insurance claims	_	24,850		24,850
Commission and collection expenses	241,089	17,003	(433)	257,659
Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses	244,912	20,790	(2,713)	262,989
Interests and dividends received, net	107,953	13,856	(50)	121,759
Ordinary profit (loss)	94,307	(2,643)	20	91,684
Total assets	¥ 8,106,558	¥906,006	¥ (912)	¥9,011,652
	Property and Casualty Insurance	Life Insurance	Adjustment and Elimination	Consolidated
2008		(Yen in m	illions)	
Net premiums written	¥ 1,541,032	¥ —	¥ —	¥1,541,032
Net claims paid	879,725		_	879,725
Life insurance premiums		156,528	_	156,528
Life insurance claims		31,703	_	31,703
Commission and collection expenses	234,640	14,740	(395)	248,985
Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses	271,198	21,560	(2,416)	290,342
Interests and dividends received, net	114,403	16,232	(20)	130,615
Ordinary profit (loss)	66,591	(5,724)	_	60,867
Total assets	¥ 7,388,669	¥1,009,780	¥ (731)	¥8,397,718
Information on major lines of Property and Casualty insurance is as follows:	lows:			
		Direct Premiums Written (Including Deposit Premiums from Policyholders)	Net Premiums Written	Net Claims Paid
			(Yen in millions)	
2006				

¥

304,177

101,462

341,536

595,745

181,757

269,308

1,793,985

206,373

84,788

143,316

590,423

193,402

245,805

¥ 1,464,107

¥ 88,203 35,176

56,049

364,208

130,518

118,787

¥792,941

Fire and Allied Lines

Voluntary Automobile

Compulsory Automobile Liability

Personal Accident

Marine

Other

Total

	Written (Including Deposit Premiums from Policyholders)	Net Premiums Written (Yen in millions)	Net Claims Paid
2007			
Fire and Allied Lines	¥ 301,692	¥ 208,951	¥100,229
Marine	113,006	95,487	38,685
Personal Accident	327,519	139,531	62,909
Voluntary Automobile	611,148	601,354	375,298
Compulsory Automobile Liability	176,826	192,087	134,908
Other	276,517	255,398	134,416
Total	¥ 1,806,708	¥ 1,492,808	¥846,445
	Direct Premiums Written (Including		
	Deposit Premiums from	Net Premiums	Net Claims
	Policyholders)	Written	Paid
		(Yen in millions)	
2008			
Fire and Allied Lines	¥ 317,882	¥ 225,161	¥104,817
Marine	121,969	104,127	44,367
Personal Accident	298,155	138,217	70,233
Voluntary Automobile	634,948	624,950	391,878
Compulsory Automobile Liability	165,851	191,255	136,542
Other	287,460	257,322	131,888
Total	¥ 1,826,265	¥1,541,032	¥879,725

Direct Premiums

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2008 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007

Non-Life Insurance

In the non-life insurance business, net premiums written of ¥1,541.0 billion in the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 increased ¥48.2 billion from the previous fiscal year, due partly to an increase of net premiums written in connection with Mitsui Direct General Insurance Company, Limited which was newly included for consolidation purposes, and to an expansion in business operations by subsidiaries in Europe. "Interest and dividends received, net" also increased ¥6.4 billion to ¥114.4 billion. On the other hand, net claims paid rose ¥33.3 billion to ¥879.7 billion due mainly to an increase in connection with Mitsui Direct General Insurance Company, Limited. As a result, consolidated ordinary profit declined ¥27.7 billion to ¥66.6 billion.

Fire and Allied Insurance Net premiums written rose 7.8% to ¥225.2 billion. This rise was due to an expansion in the business operations of subsidiaries in Europe. On the other hand, net claims paid amounted to ¥104.8 billion, an increase of 4.6%, owing to a rise in claims paid for natural disasters by subsidiaries.

Marine Insurance Net premiums written increased 9.0% to ¥104.1 billion, reflecting efforts to expand the sales network and sharp increases in raw material prices. Net claims paid rose 14.7% to ¥44.4 billion.

Personal Accident Insurance Net premiums written declined 0.9% to ¥138.2 billion due to a decline in revenues of 3rd sector insurance products such as whole life medical insurance. Net claims paid rose 11.6% to ¥70.2 billion.

Voluntary Automobile Insurance Net premiums written rose 3.9% to ¥625.0 billion. This rise was due to the inclusion of the results of Mitsui Direct General Insurance Company, Limited. Net claims paid rose 4.4% to ¥391.9 billion.

Compulsory Automobile Liability Insurance Net premiums written declined 0.4% to ¥191.3 billion. Net claims paid rose 1.2% to ¥136.5 billion.

Other Property and Casualty Insurance Net premiums written rose 0.8% to \(\frac{4}{257.3}\) billion due to an expansion in the business operations of subsidiaries in Europe. Net claims paid decreased 1.9% to \(\frac{4}{131.9}\) billion.

Life Insurance

In the life insurance business, due to an increase in insurance contract dissolutions in our wholly owned subsidiary Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life Insurance Company, Limited, life insurance premium income decreased ¥8.8 billion to ¥156.5 billion. "Interest and dividends received, net" increased ¥2.4 billion to ¥16.2 billion. "Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses" rose ¥0.8 billion from the previous fiscal year to ¥21.6 billion. "Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses" included a ¥6.2 billion investment loss in equity in Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Company, Limited. This loss resulted mainly from the upfront advance payment of sales commissions to financial institution agents, accompanying an increase in contracts. As a result, an ordinary loss of ¥5.7 billion was recorded, which was ¥3.1 billion higher than in the previous fiscal year.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007 Compared to Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2006

Non-Life Insurance

In the non-life insurance business, the administrative measures imposed by the Financial Services Agency (FSA) on June 21, 2006 had the effect of reducing net premiums written by ¥7.8 billion compared with the previous fiscal year. Nonetheless, total net premiums written increased ¥28.7 billion to ¥1,492.8 billion due to an expansion in business operations by subsidiaries in Europe and because of the full-year contribution to consolidated results by insurance companies acquired in Asia in the previous fiscal year, for which results were included only for the second-half of the previous fiscal year. "Interest and dividends received, net" also increased ¥17.0 billion to ¥108.0 billion. On the other hand, net claims paid rose ¥53.5 billion to ¥846.4 billion due to an increase in provision for outstanding claims and a rise in net claims paid in relation to an increase in natural disasters as well as to the full-year inclusion of claims by insurance companies acquired in Asia in the previous fiscal year for which claims were included only for the second-half results of the previous fiscal year. As a result, consolidated ordinary profit declined ¥35.5 billion to ¥94.3 billion.

Fire and Allied Insurance During the year, net premiums written rose 1.2% to \(\frac{\pman}{2}\) 209.0 billion. This rise is due to an expansion in the business operations of reinsurance companies and the full-year inclusion of the results of insurance companies acquired in Asia in the previous fiscal year, for which the results were included only for the second-half of the previous fiscal year. On the other hand, net claims paid amounted to 100.2 billion, an increase of 13.6%, owing to a rise in claims paid for natural disasters.

Marine Insurance Net premiums written increased 12.6% to ¥95.5 billion reflecting efforts to expand the sales network. Net claims paid rose 10.0% to ¥38.7 billion.

Personal Accident Insurance Net premiums written declined 2.6% to ¥139.5 billion due to a decline in revenues resulting from the effects of the imposition of administrative measures by the FSA. Net claims paid rose 12.2% to ¥62.9 billion.

Voluntary Automobile Insurance During the year, net premiums written rose 1.9% to ¥601.4 billion. This rise was due to the full-year inclusion of the results of insurance companies acquired in Asia in the previous fiscal year, for which the results were included only for the second-half of the previous fiscal year. Net claims paid rose 3.0% to ¥375.3 billion.

Compulsory Automobile Liability Insurance Net premiums written declined 0.7% to ¥192.1 billion. Net claims paid rose 3.4% to ¥134.9 billion.

Other Property and Casualty Insurance During the year net premiums written rose 3.9% to ¥255.4 billion due to an expansion in the business operations of subsidiaries in Europe. Net claims paid increased 13.2% to ¥134.4 billion.

Life Insurance

In the life insurance business, despite an increase in insurance contract dissolutions, wholly owned subsidiary Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life Insurance Company, Limited recorded a \(\frac{2}{3}\).1 billion increase in life insurance premium income to \(\frac{2}{165}\).4 billion by commencing sales of comprehensive income guarantee insurance and new medical insurance as commemorative products marking the 10th anniversary of the start-up of its operations. "Interest and dividends received, net" also increased \(\frac{2}{2}\).2 billion to \(\frac{2}{13}\).9 billion. On the other hand, "Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses" rose \(\frac{2}{3}\).6 billion from the previous fiscal year to \(\frac{2}{2}\).8 billion. "Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses" included a \(\frac{2}{3}\).1 billion investment loss in equity in Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Company, Limited.

Nevertheless, this loss resulted from an expansion of business operations by promoting new commissions with financial institution agents, mainly regional banks, as well as the upfront advanced payment of sales commissions accompanying an increase in contracts. As a result, an ordinary loss of \(\frac{2}{2}\).6 billion was recorded, \(\frac{2}{3}\).500 million higher than in the previous fiscal year.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In September 2005, Statement of Position ("SOP") 05-1, "Accounting by Insurance Enterprises for Deferred Acquisition Costs in Connection with Modifications or Exchanges of Insurance Contracts," was issued. SOP 05-1 provides guidance on accounting for deferred acquisition costs on internal replacements of insurance and investment contracts other than those specifically described in SFAS No.97. SOP 05-1 is effective for internal replacements occurring for fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company adopted SOP 05-1 effective for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. Significant portions of the insurance contracts of the Company are short duration contracts and the adoption of SOP 05-1 did not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, SFAS No.157, "Fair Value Measurements," was issued. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No.157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February 2008, FASB Staff Position ("FSP") No. FAS 157-1, "Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13" and FSP No. FAS 157-2, "Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157," were issued. FSP No. FAS 157-1 removes certain leasing transactions from its scope and FSP No. FAS 157-2 partially delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for one year for certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities. The effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements is currently evaluated.

In February 2007, SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities," was issued. SFAS No. 159 provides companies with an option to report financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements is currently evaluated.

In December 2007, SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), "Business Combinations" ("SFAS No. 141R") was issued. SFAS No. 141R establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired. SFAS No. 141R also establishes disclosure requirements to enable the evaluation of the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 141R is applied prospectively to business combinations on and after the beginning of the fiscal year beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 141R will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements is currently evaluated.

In December 2007, SFAS No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51" was issued. SFAS No. 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest, changes in a parent's ownership interest, and the valuation of retained noncontrolling equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. SFAS No. 160 also establishes disclosure requirements that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 160 will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements is currently evaluated.

In March, 2008, SFAS No. 161, "Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" was issued. SFAS No. 161 requires enhanced disclosures about an entity's derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 161 will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements is currently evaluated.

In May, 2008, SFAS No. 163 "Accounting for Financial Guarantee Insurance Contracts, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 60" was issued. SFAS No. 163 clarifies how SFAS No. 60 applies to financial guarantee insurance contracts, including the recognition and measurement of premium revenue and claim liabilities. SFAS No. 163 also requires expanded disclosures about financial guarantee insurance contracts. SFAS No. 163 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 except for some disclosures. The effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 163 will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements is currently evaluated.

B. Liquidity and Capital Resources.

Liquidity

In the insurance industry, liquidity generally refers to the ability of an enterprise to generate adequate amounts of cash from its normal operations, including its investment portfolio, in order to meet its financial commitments, which are principally obligations under its insurance or reinsurance contracts. The liquidity of a property-casualty insurer's operations is generally affected by the frequency and severity of losses under its policies, as well as by the persistency of its products. Future catastrophic events, the timing and effect of which are inherently unpredictable, may also increase liquidity requirements for a property-casualty insurer's operations. The liquidity of a life insurer's operations, including our life insurance subsidiary, is generally affected by trends in actual mortality experience relative to the assumptions with respect thereto included in the pricing of its life insurance policies, by the extent to which minimum returns or crediting rates are provided in connection with its life insurance products and by the level of surrenders and withdrawals.

Our sources of liquidity include insurance premiums and deposit premiums received, investment income and cash provided from maturing or liquidated investments. In addition, our investments held in liquid securities represent potential sources of liquidity.

The principal sources of our funds are premiums and investment income, as well as funds that may be raised from time to time from the issuance of debt or equity securities.

Capital Resources

We typically generate substantial positive cash flow from operations as a result of insurance premiums being received in advance of the time when claim payments, as the case may be, are required. These positive operating cash flows, a portion of the investment portfolio that is held in highly liquid securities, and commercial paper borrowings and bank lines of credit have met, and we expect will continue to meet, our liquidity requirements.

Our capital requirements consist principally of capital expenditures and debt repayment. Capital expenditures for the fiscal years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were \(\xi\$15,957 million, \(\xi\$24,905 million and \(\xi\$45,074 million, respectively, in each case primarily for operational purposes.

Our long-term debt amounted to ¥100.0 billion as of March 31, 2008. This long-term debt consisted of ¥70.0 billion of 0.80% Japanese yen debentures due December 18, 2009, and ¥30.0 billion of 1.31% Japanese yen debentures due December 20, 2012.

Our policy is to fund our capital requirements principally from cash flow from operating activities and external sources, such as issuances of debentures and common stock. In the future, we intend to explore funding opportunities from diversified external sources within the framework of applicable regulations.

Cash Flows

	Year Ended March 31,			
	2006 2007			
		(Yen in millions)		
Net cash provided by operating activities	¥ 402,040	¥ 325,256	¥ 308,007	
Net cash used in investing activities	(258,459)	(217,400)	(197,879)	
Net cash used in financing activities	(128,879)	(132,431)	(106,473)	
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents	4,235	9,351	(5,306)	
Net change in cash and cash equivalents	18,937	(15,224)	(1,651)	
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year	366,228	385,165	369,941	
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year	¥ 385,165	¥ 369,941	¥ 368,290	

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2008 compared with the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to ¥308.0 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, compared to ¥325.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. This decrease was primarily attributable to a rise in losses and claims paid.

Net cash used in investing activities was ¥197.9 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, compared to ¥217.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007. This reflected a decrease in purchases of securities.

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to \(\frac{\pm}{106.5}\) billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, compared to \(\frac{\pm}{132.4}\) billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007.

The operating, investing and financing activities described above resulted in net cash and cash equivalents of \(\frac{\pmathcase}{368.3}\) billion as of March 31, 2008, compared to \(\frac{\pmathcase}{369.9}\) billion as of March 31, 2007, representing a decrease of 0.4%.

Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2007 compared with the Fiscal Year Ended March 31, 2006

Net cash provided by operating activities amounted to ¥325.3 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, compared to ¥402.0 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. This decrease was primarily attributable to a rise in income tax paid and losses and claims paid.

Net cash used in investing activities was \(\xi\)217.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, compared to \(\xi\)258.5 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006. This reflected a decrease in purchases of securities.

Net cash used in financing activities amounted to \(\xi\$132.4 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, compared to \(\xi\$128.9 billion for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2006.

The operating, investing and financing activities described above resulted in net cash and cash equivalents of ¥369.9 billion as of March 31, 2007, compared to ¥385.2 billion as of March 31, 2006, representing a decrease of 4.0%.

C. Research and Development, Patents and Licenses, etc.

Our business does not depend to a material extent on research and development or on patents, licenses or other intellectual property.

D. Trend Information.

The information required by this item is set forth in Item 4.A, under the headings "Overview" and "The Japanese Non-Life Insurance Industry".

E. Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements.

We have no material off-balance sheet arrangements or transactions.

F. Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments.

The following tables summarize our contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of March 31, 2008 that will affect our liquidity position for the next several years. Since commitments associated with financing arrangements may expire unused, the amounts shown do not necessarily reflect actual future cash funding requirements.

Contractual Obligations

		Payments Due by Period				
Contractual Obligations	Total	Total Less than 1 year		1-3 years	3-5 years	After 5 years
	·			(Yen in millions)		
Losses, claims and loss adjustment expenses (1)	¥1,197,820	¥	678,836	¥ 342,738	¥114,078	¥ 62,168
Future policy benefits for life insurance contracts (2)	2,489,689		105,501	239,708	246,634	1,897,846
Investment deposits by policyholders (3)	3,291,494		361,635	685,737	569,758	1,674,364
Long-term debt	103,085		953	71,346	30,786	_
Capital lease obligations	2,038		921	978	130	9
Operating leases	6,485		1,690	2,220	944	1,631
Total (4)	¥7,090,611	¥	1,149,536	¥1,342,727	¥962,330	¥3,636,018

- (1) We estimate the timing of cash flows with respect to losses, claims and loss adjustment expenses based on our historical loss development payment patterns.
- (2) We estimate the timing of cash flows with respect to future policy benefits for life insurance contracts based on our historical experience and expectations of future payment patterns. Uncertainties exist, however, particularly with respect to mortality, morbidity, expenses, customer lapse and renewal premiums for life policies. Accordingly, our actual experience may differ from our estimates. In addition, the amounts set forth in the table above do not reflect our estimates of future premiums and reinsurance recoveries.
 - The total amount of future policy benefit for life insurance contracts set forth in the table above (¥2,489,689 million) exceeds the amount of corresponding liabilities of ¥911,165 million reflected in our consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2008, as the amounts set forth in the table above are undiscounted and do not reflect the impact of future premium revenue.
- (3) We estimate the timing of cash flows and our expectation of future payment patterns with respect to investment deposits by policyholders based on our historical experience, taking into account contractual maturity dates and expected customer lapse and withdrawal activity. Customer lapse and withdrawal activity, however, are inherently uncertain and outside of our control. Accordingly, our actual experience may differ from our estimates. In addition, the amounts set forth in the table above do not reflect our estimates of future premiums and reinsurance recoveries. The total amount of investment deposits by policyholders set forth in the table above (¥3,291,494 million) exceeds the amount of corresponding liabilities of ¥2,119,153 million reflected in our consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2008, as the amounts set forth in the table above are undiscounted and do not reflect the impact of future premium revenue.
- (4) The total amount of expected future pension payments has not been included in this table as such amount was not determinable as of March 31, 2008. We expect to contribute approximately \(\frac{1}{2}\),450 million to our pension plans for the year ending March 31, 2009. See Note 15 to our consolidated financial statements.

Commercial Commitments

		Amount of Commitment Expiration per Perio			
		Less than 1			After 5
Other Commercial Commitments	Total	year	1-3 Years	3-5 Years	Years
			(Yen in millions)		
Guarantees	¥ 589	¥ —	¥ —	¥ —	¥ 589

Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees.

A. Directors and Senior Management.

The following table provides information about our directors and corporate auditors:

Name	Position	Date of Birth	Current Term Expires	Director or Corporate Auditor Since	Number of shares owned as of August 31, 2008
Directors:					
Yoshiaki Shin	Chairman and Director	November 4, 1945	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	28,788
Toshiaki Egashira	President and Director	November 30, 1948	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	6,300
Toshihiro Nakagawa	Senior Managing Director	July 14, 1948	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	13,800
Isamu Endo	Senior Managing Director	November 13, 1948	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	3,900
Hiromi Asano	Director	December 13, 1950	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	10,444
Katsuaki Ikeda	Director	September 8, 1951	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	8,100
Hitoshi Ichihara	Director	June 19, 1951	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	5,400
Yasuyoshi Karasawa	Director	October 27, 1950	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	5,100
Susumu Fujimoto	Director	December 5, 1948	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	3,000
Eiko Kono	Director	January 1, 1946	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	_
Kenji Koroyasu	Director	April 16, 1942	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	300
Iwao Taka	Director	March 10, 1956	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	900
Toshihiko Seki	Director	February 28, 1941	June, 2009	April 1, 2008	900
Corporate Auditors:					
Takashi Yamashita	Corporate Auditor	July 7, 1946	June, 2012	April 1, 2008	8,400
Yoshio Iijima	Corporate Auditor	September 7, 1949	June, 2012	April 1, 2008	4,827
Sosuke Yasuda	Corporate Auditor	December 15, 1943	June, 2012	April 1, 2008	_
Daiken Tsunoda	Corporate Auditor	January 29, 1967	June, 2012	April 1, 2008	_

Further information about our directors and corporate auditors is provided below:

Yoshiaki Shin Chairman and Director since April 1, 2008

(November 4, 1945) (Chairman and Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance since 2006)

1995 Director of Sumitomo Marine

1998 Managing Director of Sumitomo Marine

2001 Managing Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance 2002 Senior Managing Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2005 Director and Vice President Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

Toshiaki Egashira

President and Director since April 1, 2008

(November 30, 1948)

(President and Director, and CEO of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance since 2006)

2001 Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2003 Managing Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

Toshihiro Nakagawa (July 14, 1948)

Senior Managing Director since April 1, 2008

In charge of Human Resources Dept., Compliance Dept., Corporate Risk Management Dept. and Internal Audit

2000 Executive Officer of Sumitomo Marine

2001 Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2004 Managing Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance 2006 Senior Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

Isamu Endo

(November 13, 1948)

Senior Managing Director since April 1, 2008

In charge of Corporate Planning Dept., Business Development Dept., Corporate Communications Dept.,

Shareholders Relations & Legal Dept., Accounting Dept. and Internal Audit Dept. (concerning internal audit to

the departments of which Director Mr. Nakagawa is in charge.)

2003 Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2005 Managing Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2006 Senior Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

Hiromi Asano

(December 13, 1950)

Director since April 1, 2008

(Director and Senior Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance since 2006)

2000 Executive Officer of Sumitomo Marine

2001 Director of Sumitomo Marine

2001 Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2004 Managing Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2005 Director and Senior Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

Katsuaki Ikeda

(September 8, 1951)

Director since April 1, 2008

(Director and Managing Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance since 2005)

2003 Director and Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2005 Director and Managing Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

Hitoshi Ichihara

(June 19, 1951)

Director since April 1, 2008

(Director and Managing Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance since 2005)

2004 Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2006 Director and Managing Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

Yasuyoshi Karasawa

(October 27, 1950)

Director since April 1, 2008

(Director and Senior Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance since 2008)

2004 Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2006 Director and Managing Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

Susumu Fujimoto

(December 5, 1948)

Director since April 1, 2008

(Director and Managing Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance since 2008)

1998 Director-General of Yokohama Customs, Ministry of Finance (the "MOF")

1999 Deputy Director-General, Customs and Tariff Bureau, MOF

2002 Executive Director, European Bank for Reconstruction and Development

2005 Advisor of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance 2007 Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

Eiko Kono

Director since April 1, 2008

(January 1, 1946)

(Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance since 2005)

1984 Director of Recruit Co., Ltd.

1985 Managing Director of Recruit Co., Ltd.

1986 Senior Managing Director of Recruit Co., Ltd.

1994 Vice President and Director of Recruit Co., Ltd.

1997 President and Director of Recruit Co., Ltd.

2003 Chairman and Director, and CEO of Recruit Co., Ltd.

2004 Chairman and Director of Recruit Co., Ltd.

2004 Corporate Auditor of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2005 Special Advisor, Recruit Co., Ltd.

Kenji Koroyasu (April 16, 1942)

Director since April 1, 2008

(Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance since 2005)

1996 Deputy Vice-Minister of Justice

1997 Director of the General Affairs Department, Supreme Public Prosecutors Office

1999 Director of the Criminal Affairs Department, Supreme Public Prosecutors Office

1999 President, Research and Training Institute of the Ministry of Justice

2001 Superintending Public Prosecutor, Sapporo High Public Prosecutors Office

2002 Superintending Public Prosecutor, Nagoya High Public Prosecutors Office

2003 Superintending Public Prosecutor, Osaka High Public Prosecutors Office

2004 Admitted as Attorney-at-Law

Of Counsel, Tokyo Eiwa Attorneys At Law

2008 Of Counsel, TMI Associates

Iwao Taka (March 10, 1956)

Director since April 1, 2008

(Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance since 2005)

1996 Associate Professor, Reitaku University International School of Economics and Business Administration

2001 Professor, Reitaku University International School of Economics and Business Administration and Senior Director, Reitaku University Business Ethics and Compliance Research Center

2002 Professor, Reitaku University C. Hiroike School of Graduate Studies of Economics and Business

Administration and Senior Director, Reitaku University Business Ethics and Compliance Research Center

2003 Professor, Reitaku University C. Hiroike School of Graduate Studies of Economics and Business Administration and Chief Director, Reitaku University Business Ethics and Compliance Research Center

Toshihiko Seki (February 28, 1941)

Director since April 1, 2008

1977 Associate Professor, School of Law, Tohoku University

1984 Professor, School of Law, Tohoku University

2000 Professor, Tohoku University Law School

2004 Honorary Professor, Tohoku University Professor, Hosei University Law School

2004 Admitted as Attorney-at-law

2007 Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

Takashi Yamashita (July 7, 1946)

Corporate Auditor since 2008

(Corporate Auditor of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance since 2007)

2000 Executive Officer of Mitsui Marine

2001 Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2002 Managing Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2004 Senior Managing Director of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

2005 Director and Vice President Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

Yoshio Iijima

Corporate Auditor since 2008

(September 7, 1949)

2003 Executive Officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance

Sosuke Yasuda Corporate Auditor since 2008

(December 15, 1943) (Corporate Auditor of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance since 2005)

1979 Registered as Certified Public Accountants

1980 Representative, Sousuke Yasuda Tax Accountant Office (present)

1983 Representative, Tokyo Akasaka CPA Joint Office

1993 Senior Partner, Tokyo Akasaka & Co.

1999 Managing Partner, Tokyo Hokuto & Co. (currently Gyosei & Co.) 2001 Supervising Officer, Japan Prime Realty Investment Corporation

2008 Representative Partner, Gyosei & Co.

Daiken Tsunoda Corporate Auditor since 2008

(January 29, 1967) 1994 Admitted to the Bar, Attorney-at-law

2003 Attorney at Law, Nakamura & Tsunoda (currently, Nakamura, Tsunoda & Matsumoto)

Messrs. Nakagawa, Endo and Iijima devote themselves to the Company's business on a full time basis.

All of the above directors, with the exception of Messrs. Nakagawa, Endo and Seki, hold positions as directors of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance. Of them, Messrs. Egashira, Asano, Ikeda, Ichihara, Karasawa and Fujimoto also hold an executive capacity at Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance. Corporate Auditors Messrs. Yamashita and Yasuda hold positions as corporate auditors of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance.

Ms. Kono, Messrs. Koroyasu, Taka and Seki are outside directors as defined under Article 2, Paragraph 15 of the Corporate Law of Japan. Messrs. Yasuda and Tsunoda are outside corporate auditors as defined under Article 2, Paragraph 16 of the Corporate Law.

There are no family relationships between any director or corporate auditor and any other director or corporate auditor.

Our board of directors has the ultimate responsibility for the administration of our affairs. Our Articles of Incorporation provide for a maximum of 15 directors. Directors are elected at a general meeting of shareholders, and the term of office of directors provided for under our Articles of Incorporation is one year, although they may serve any number of consecutive terms. Our board of directors elects from among its members one or more representative directors, who have the authority individually to represent us in all matters. From among its members, our board of directors also may elect one or more Chairman and Directors, Vice Chairman and Directors, President and Directors, Vice President and Directors, Senior Managing Directors, and Managing Directors.

Our Articles of Incorporation provide for not more than 6 corporate auditors. Corporate auditors may not at the same time be any of the director, manager or employee of our company or the director, executive officer (shikko-yaku), manager or employee of any of our subsidiaries. Corporate auditors, of whom at least half must be outside corporate auditors, each of whom has not been any of the director, executive officer (shikko-yaku), manager or employee of the Company or any of its subsidiaries preceding the date on which such person assumes the office of corporate auditor, are elected at a general meeting of shareholders from among those candidates nominated by our board of directors with prior consent of, or upon request by, our board of corporate auditors and, if any, by shareholders. The term of office of a corporate auditor provided for under the Corporate Law and our Articles of Incorporation is 4 years, although they may serve any number of consecutive terms. Corporate auditors are under a statutory duty to oversee the administration of our affairs by our directors, to examine our financial statements and business reports to be submitted by our board of directors to the general meetings of our shareholders and to report to the shareholders regarding any actions by our board of directors that are seriously unreasonable or which are in violation of laws, ordinances or our Articles of Incorporation. They are required to attend meetings of our board of directors and to express their opinions if they deem necessary, but they are not entitled to vote. Under the Corporate Law, the corporate auditors collectively constitute the board of corporate auditors. The board of corporate auditors has a statutory duty to prepare and submit an audit report to our board of directors each year. A corporate auditor may note his opinion in the audit report if his opinion is different from the opinion expressed in the audit report. The board of corporate auditors is empowered to establish audit principles, the methods of examination by corporate auditors of our affairs and financial position and other matters concerning the performance of the corporate auditors' duties.

B. Compensation.

The aggregate compensation paid, including benefits in kind granted, by us to our directors and corporate auditors (19 persons) during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008 was ¥604 million, of which ¥537 million was for directors, including ¥45 million for outside directors, and ¥67 million was for corporate auditors, including ¥22 million for outside corporate auditors.

We abolished retirement benefits for a retiring director or corporate auditor on March 31, 2005. Therefore, no future retirement benefit for a director or corporate auditor accrued during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, we paid ¥316 million of retirement benefits that had accrued prior to the abolishment of the benefits, to directors and corporate auditors, including directors and corporate auditors who had retired prior to the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. Of this amount, ¥299 million was paid to directors, including directors who had retired prior to the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, and ¥17 million was paid to corporate auditors, including corporate auditors who had retired prior to the beginning of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008.

We are not required by Japanese law to disclose the amount of compensation paid to directors or corporate auditors on an individual basis.

C. Board Practices.

The information required by this item is set forth in Item 6.A of this annual report.

D. Employees.

As of March 31, 2008, we had 20,237 employees on a consolidated basis, of whom 19,572 were in the property and casualty insurance business and 665 were in the life insurance business, compared with 18,882 employees on a consolidated basis as of March 31, 2007, of whom 18,329 were in the property and casualty insurance business and 553 were in the life insurance business. As of March 31, 2006 we had 18,154 employees on a consolidated basis, of whom 17,668 were in the property and casualty insurance business and 486 were in the life insurance business. Overseas, as of March 31, 2008, we had 4,714 employees on a consolidated basis.

Most of our employees are members of the Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Workers' Union, which is affiliated with the Federation of Non-Life Insurance Workers' Unions of Japan and which negotiates with us concerning remuneration and working conditions. As is customary in Japan, we negotiate annually with the union and usually grant annual wage increases and semiannual bonuses. We also renew the terms and conditions of labor contracts, other than those relating to wages and bonuses, every other year. We have not experienced any labor disputes in Japan for nearly a quarter-century and consider our labor relations to be excellent.

E. Share Ownership.

The information required by this item is set forth in Item 6.A of this annual report.

Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions.

A. Major Shareholders.

As of April 1, 2008, 421,320,739 shares of our common stock were outstanding.

To our knowledge, there were no beneficial owners or holders of 5% or more of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's outstanding common stock as of April 1, 2008, except as discussed below. We are not required by Japanese law to monitor or disclose beneficial ownership of our common stock.

Any person who becomes, beneficially and solely or jointly, a holder of more than 5% of the total issued shares of a company listed on any Japanese stock exchange or whose shares are traded on the over-the-counter market in Japan, as calculated pursuant to the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan, must file with the competent Local Finance Bureau of the Ministry of Finance within five business days a report concerning such shareholding. See Item 10.B "Memorandum and Articles of Association" below.

We are aware that Brandes Investment Partners L.P. made such a filing on May 2, 2008, in which it stated that it owned 54,132 thousand shares of our common stock as of April 1, 2008, representing 12.8% of our then outstanding common stock.

None of our shares of common stock entitles the holder thereof to any preferential voting rights.

According to our register of shareholders and register of beneficial owners, as of April 1, 2008, there were 49,648 holders of common stock of record worldwide, including 134 shareholders of record with addresses in the United States who held 96,131,431 shares, representing approximately 22.8% of our outstanding common stock as of that date. Because some of these shares were held by brokers or other nominees, the number of record holders with addresses in the United States may be fewer than the number of beneficial owners in the United States.

To our knowledge, we are not, directly or indirectly, owned or controlled by any other corporation or by any government or by any other natural or legal persons severally or jointly. We know of no arrangements the operation of which may at a later time result in a change of control of the Company.

B. Related Party Transactions.

Not applicable.

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel.

Not applicable.

Item 8. Financial Information.

A. Consolidated Statements and Other Financial Information.

Financial Statements

The information required by this item is set forth in our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report.

Legal or Arbitration Proceedings

We are involved in normal claims and other legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business and are not involved in any litigation or other legal proceedings that, if determined adversely to us, we believe would individually or in the aggregate have a material adverse effect on us or our financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Dividend Policy

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc. hopes to respond to the support of its shareholders by providing a dividend commensurate with the company's performance, implementing an appropriate profit distribution policy, based on the maintenance of a stable dividend, while taking into consideration the future management environment and development of its business. At the same time, we also believe that, given the nature of the non-life insurance business, we need to improve our retained earnings in order to prepare for occurrences of earthquakes and other catastrophes.

We have therefore established a basic policy of keeping a trend of an increase in dividend per share in the medium to long term, and returning 40% of the Company's core profit to shareholders in the form of dividends or the repurchase of our shares.

B. Significant Changes.

There has been no significant change since March 31, 2008, the date of our most recent audited financial statements.

Item 9. The Offer and Listing.

A. Offer and Listing Details.

See Item 9.C of this annual report for information on the stock exchanges on which our common stock is listed.

The following table indicates the reported closing high and low sale prices and the average trading volume of our common stock on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, the closing highs and lows of the Nikkei Stock Average and the closing highs and lows of the TOPIX for the periods indicated, as adjusted as explained below. The information for periods prior to April 1, 2008 is that of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance, and the information for periods starting on or after that date is that of the Holding Company. Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's common stock was delisted from the Tokyo Stock Exchange on March 26, 2008, and the Holding Company's common stock was listed on that Exchange on April 1, 2008. Accordingly, the share price and trading volume data of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance for the fiscal year and quarter ended March 31, 2008 does not include information for March 27, 28 and 31, 2008. Also, in connection with the formation of the Holding Company on April 1, 2008, the then outstanding shares of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's common stock were exchanged with shares of the Holding Company's common stock at the exchange ratio of 0.3 shares of the Holding Company's common stock to each share of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's common stock. For purposes of easy comparison, the share price and trading volume data of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's common stock in the table below has been adjusted to show the equivalent share price and trading volume data of the Holding Company using the above exchange ratio.

	Price per Share of Common Stock on Tokyo Stock Exchange		Average Daily Trading Volume of	Trading		Closing Nikkei Stock Average	
	High	Low	Common Stock	High	Low	High	Low
Fiscal Year Ended/Ending							
March 31,							
Annual highs and lows							
2004	3,850	1,690	1,493,595	1,179.23	773.10	11,770.65	7,607.88
2005	3,953	2,840	1,336,249	1,217.87	1,053.77	12,163.89	10,505.05
2006	5,420	3,060	1,549,768	1,728.16	1,109.19	17,059.66	10,825.39
2007	5,647	4,087	1,669,600	1,816.97	1,458.30	18,215.35	14,218.60
$2008^{(1)}$	5,760	3,070	1,887,336	1,792.23	1,149.65	18,261.98	11,787.51
Quarterly highs and lows 2007:							
First quarter	5,647	4,087	1,896,677	1,783.72	1,458.30	17,563.37	14,218.60
Second quarter	5,030	4,087	1,358,438	1,651.35	1,475.28	16,385.96	14,437.24
Third quarter	5,200	4,303	1,523,158	1,681.07	1,532.95	17,225.83	15,725.94
Fourth quarter	5,390	4,353	1,917,122	1,816.97	1,656.72	18,215.35	16,642.25
2008:							
First quarter	5,760	4,807	1,643,961	1,789.38	1,682.49	18,240.30	17,028.41
Second quarter	5,307	3,750	1,807,887	1,792.23	1,480.39	18,261.98	15,273.68
Third quarter	4,857	3,590	1,829,521	1,677.52	1,437.38	17,458.98	14,837.66
Fourth quarter	3,870	3,070	2,316,420	1,424.29	1,149.65	14,691.41	11,787.51
2009:							
First quarter ⁽¹⁾	4,500	3,400	1,737,798	1,430.47	1,230.49	14,489.44	12,656.42
Calendar Period 2008:							
March	3,870	3,280	2,702,719	1,287.55	1,149.65	13,215.42	11,787.51
April	4,280	3,400	2,243,686	1,361.75	1,230.49	13,894.37	12,656.42
May	4,500	3,890	1,449,205	1,408.14	1,341.76	14,338.54	13,655.34
June	4,490	3,610	1,506,762	1,430.47	1,320.10	14,489.44	13,481.38
July	3,890	3,330	1,624,895	1,332.57	1,249.28	13,603.31	12,754.56
August	3,640	3,120	1,346,686	1,280.00	1,216.42	13,430.91	12,666.04
= -							

⁽¹⁾ Excludes March 26, 27, 28 and 31, 2008.

On September 26, 2008, the reported closing price of our shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange was ¥3,840 per share, the closing Nikkei Stock Average was ¥11,893.16 and the closing TOPIX was 1,147.89.

B. Plan of Distribution.

Not applicable.

C. Markets.

Our securities are listed on the first sections of the Tokyo Stock Exchange, Osaka Securities Exchange and Nagoya Stock Exchange.

D. Selling Shareholders.

Not applicable.

E. Dilution.

Not applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue.

Not applicable.

Item 10. Additional Information.

A. Share Capital.

Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Set forth below is information relating to our common stock, including brief summaries of the relevant provisions of our articles of incorporation and share handling regulations as currently in effect, and of the Corporate Law of Japan and related legislation.

General

Our authorized share capital as of the date of the filing of this Form 20-F is 900 million shares of common stock, of which 421,320,739 shares were issued. Under the Corporate Law, shares must be registered and are transferable by delivery of share certificates. In order to assert shareholders' rights against us, a shareholder must have its name and address registered on our register of shareholders, in accordance with our share handling regulations.

A holder of shares may choose, at its discretion, to participate in the central clearing system for share certificates under the Law Concerning Central Clearing of Share Certificates and Other Securities of Japan. Participating shareholders must deposit certificates representing all of the shares to be included in this clearing system with the Japan Securities Depository Center, Inc. (the "Securities Center"). If a holder of shares is not a participating institution in the Securities Center, it must participate through a participating institution, such as a securities company or a bank having a clearing account with the Securities Center. All shares deposited with the Securities Center will be registered in the name of the Securities Center on our register of shareholders. Each participating shareholder will in turn be registered on our register of beneficial shareholders and be treated in the same way as shareholders registered on our register of shareholders. For the purpose of transferring deposited shares, delivery of share certificates is not required. Entry of the share transfer in the books maintained by the Securities Center for participating institutions, or in the book maintained by a participating institution for its customers, has the same effect as delivery of share certificates. The registered beneficial owners may exercise the rights attached to the deposited shares, such as voting rights, and will receive dividends (if any) and notices to shareholders directly from us. The shares held by a person as a registered shareholder and those held by the same person as a registered beneficial owner are aggregated for these purposes. Beneficial owners may at any time withdraw and receive their share certificates from the Securities Center.

A law to establish a new central book entry clearing system for shares of listed companies and to eliminate the issuance and use of certificates for such shares was promulgated in June 2004 and the part of such law that is relevant to our shares is expected to come into effect on January 5, 2009. On the effective date, a new book entry central clearing system will be established and will become responsible for handling the shares of all Japanese companies listed on any Japanese stock exchange, including our shares. On the same day, all existing share certificates of those companies will become null and void. The transfer of shares will be effected by book-entry in the accounts maintained under the new central clearing system.

Objects and Purposes

Article 2 of our articles of incorporation states that our purpose is to engage in the following businesses as an insurance holding company:

- administration of the management of non-life insurance companies, life insurance companies and other companies that we may own as a subsidiary under the Insurance Business Law; and
- any other business incidental to the business provided for in the preceding item.

Dividends

General

Under the Corporate Law, distribution of cash or other assets by a joint stock corporation to its shareholders, or so called "dividends", take the form of distribution of Surplus (as defined in "Restriction on Distribution of Surplus" below). Under the Corporate Law, a joint stock corporation may distribute dividends in cash and/or in kind any number of times per fiscal year, subject to certain limitations described in "Restriction on Distribution of Surplus" below.

Under the Corporate Law and our articles of incorporation, we may, (a) following shareholders' approval, make distribution of year-end dividends to shareholders of record as of March 31 in each year, (b) by resolution of the board of directors, make interim dividend payments in cash to shareholders of record as of September 30 in each year, and (c) following shareholders' approval, make distribution of dividends to shareholders of record date as set for such distribution from time to time. Under our articles of incorporation, we are not obligated to pay any dividends in cash unclaimed for a period of three years after the date on which they first become payable.

Distributions of dividends may be made in cash or in kind in proportion to the number of shares held by each shareholder. A resolution of a general meeting of shareholders or the board of directors authorizing a distribution of dividends must specify the form and aggregate book value of the assets to be distributed, the manner of allotment of such assets to shareholders, and the effective date of the distribution. If a distribution of dividends is to be made in kind, we may grant a right to shareholders to require us to make such distribution in cash instead of in kind, pursuant to a resolution of a general meeting of shareholders. If no such right is granted to shareholders, the relevant distribution of dividends must be approved by a special resolution of a general meeting of shareholders.

Restriction on Distribution of Surplus

Under the Corporate Law, in making a distribution of Surplus, we must set aside in our additional paid-in capital and/or legal reserve an amount equal to one-tenth of the amount of Surplus so distributed, until the sum of our additional paid-in capital and legal reserve reaches one-quarter of our stated capital.

The amount of Surplus at any given time must be calculated in accordance with the following formula:

A + B + C + D - (E + F + G)

In the above formula:

- "A" = the total amount of other capital surplus and other retained earnings, each such amount being that appearing on our non-consolidated balance sheet as of the end of the last fiscal year
- "B" = (if we have disposed of our treasury stock after the end of the last fiscal year) the amount of the consideration for such treasury stock received, less the book value thereof
- "C" = (if we have reduced our stated capital after the end of the last fiscal year) the amount of such reduction less the portion thereof that has been transferred to additional paid-in capital or legal reserve (if any)
- "D" = (if we have reduced our additional paid-in capital or legal reserve after the end of the last fiscal year) the amount of such reduction less the portion thereof that has been transferred to stated capital (if any)
 - "E" = (if we have cancelled our treasury stock after the end of the last fiscal year) the book value of such treasury stock
- "F" = (if we have distributed Surplus to our shareholders after the end of the last fiscal year) the total book value of the Surplus so distributed
 - "G" = certain other amounts set forth in an ordinance of the Ministry of Justice of Japan

The aggregate book value of Surplus distributed by us may not exceed a prescribed distributable amount (the "Distributable Amount"), as calculated on the effective date of such distribution. The Distributable Amount at any given time shall be the amount of Surplus less the aggregate of (a) the book value of our treasury stock, (b) the amount of consideration for any of our treasury stock disposed of by us after the end of the last fiscal year and (c) certain other amounts set forth in an ordinance of the Ministry of Justice.

If we have become at our option a company with respect to which its consolidated balance sheet should also be considered in the calculation of the Distributable Amount (*renketsu haito kisei tekiyo kaisha*), we shall further deduct from the amount of Surplus the excess amount, if any, of (x) the total amount of the shareholders' equity appearing on our non-consolidated balance sheet as of the end of the last fiscal year and certain other amounts set forth by an ordinance of the Ministry of Justice over (y) the total amount of the shareholders' equity and certain other amounts set forth by an ordinance of the Ministry of Justice appearing on our consolidated balance sheet as of the end of the last fiscal year.

If we have prepared interim financial statements as described below, and if such interim financial statements have been approved by the board of directors or, if so required by the Corporate Law, by a general meeting of shareholders, then the Distributable Amount must be adjusted to take into account the amount of profit or loss, and the amount of consideration for any of our treasury stock disposed of by us, during the period in respect of which such interim financial statements have been prepared. We may prepare non-consolidated interim financial statements consisting of a balance sheet as of any date subsequent to the end of the last fiscal year and an income statement for the period from the first day of the current fiscal year to the date of such balance sheet. Interim financial statements so prepared by us must be audited by our corporate auditors and/or outside accounting auditor, as required by an ordinance of the Ministry of Justice.

In our first fiscal year, each amount of the Surplus and the Distributable Amount above is, in general, calculated by replacing "the end of the last fiscal year" in preceding paragraphs with "the date of incorporation".

Capital and Reserves

The entire amount of the issue price of the shares to be issued in the future will generally be required to be accounted for as stated capital. However, we may account for an amount not exceeding one-half of such issue price as additional paid-in capital by resolution of the board of directors in accordance with the Corporate Law. We may at any time reduce the whole or any part of our additional paid-in capital or transfer them to stated capital by resolution of a general meeting of shareholders. The whole or any part of surplus may also be transferred to stated capital, additional paid-in capital or legal reserve by resolution of a general meeting of shareholders.

Stock Splits

We may at any time split our shares into a greater number of shares by resolution of the board of directors. When the board of directors approves a stock split, it may also amend our articles of incorporation without approval of shareholders to increase the number of our authorized shares in proportion to the stock split, so long as we do not issue more than one class of shares.

Upon stock splits, shareholders will not be required to exchange share certificates held by them for new share certificates. In respect of deposited shares, new shares resulting from the stock split will be deposited with the Securities Center, and shareholders who directly possess share certificates will receive additional certificates representing the additional shares resulting from the stock split.

Consolidation of Shares

We may at any time consolidate the shares into a smaller number of shares by a special resolution of the general meeting of shareholders. A representative director of us must disclose the reason for the consolidation of the shares at the general meeting of shareholders.

Unit Share System

We have adopted a "unit share system". Our articles of incorporation provide that 100 shares of our common stock constitute one "unit" of shares. The board of directors is permitted to reduce the number of shares constituting one unit or abolish the unit share system without approval by shareholders. The number of shares constituting a unit may not exceed one thousand (1,000) under the Corporate Law.

Our articles of incorporation provide that we shall not issue any share certificates representing shares less than the number of shares constituting one unit. As the transfer of shares normally requires delivery of the relevant share certificates, any shares constituting less than one unit for which no share certificates are issued will not be transferable. Upon demand from a holder of shares constituting less than one unit, we are obligated to purchase such shares. In addition, pursuant to our articles of incorporation, any such holders may demand us to sell to them shares constituting less than one unit which, when added to the shares already held by such holder, will constitute a full unit unless we do not own a sufficient number of treasury shares. Such purchase and sale of shares will be effected at the market price as of the date of such demand.

A holder of less than one unit of shares has no voting rights.

In accordance with Corporate Law, our articles of incorporation provide that a holder of shares constituting less than one unit does not have any other rights of a shareholder in respect of those shares, other than those provided by the articles of incorporation including the following rights:

- to receive distributions of dividends,
- to receive cash or other assets in case of consolidation or split of shares, exchange or transfer of shares or corporate merger,
- to be allotted rights to subscribe for free for new shares and stock acquisition rights when such rights are granted to shareholders,
 and
- to participate in any distribution of surplus assets upon liquidation.

Voting Rights

We hold our ordinary general meeting of shareholders in June of each year. In addition, we may hold an extraordinary general meeting of shareholders whenever necessary by giving at least two weeks' advance notice. Under the Corporate Law, notice of any shareholders' meeting must be given to each shareholder having voting rights or, in the case of a non-resident shareholder, to his resident proxy or mailing address in Japan in accordance with our share handling regulations, at least two weeks prior to the date of the meeting.

A shareholder of us is generally entitled to one vote per voting unit of shares as described in this paragraph and under "Unit Share System" above. In general, under the Corporate Law and our articles of incorporation, a resolution may be adopted at a meeting of shareholders by a majority of the number of voting rights of the shareholders represented at the meeting. The Corporate Law and our articles of incorporation require a quorum for the election of directors and corporate auditors of not less than one-third of the total number of voting rights of the shareholders who are entitled to exercise their voting rights. Our shareholders are not entitled to cumulative voting in the election of directors. A corporate shareholder whose voting rights are in turn more than one-quarter directly or indirectly owned by us may not exercise its voting rights with respect to our shares that it owns.

Shareholders may exercise their voting rights through proxies, provided that those proxies are also shareholders who have voting rights. Shareholders who intend to be absent from a general meeting of shareholders may exercise their voting rights in writing. In addition, they may exercise their voting rights by electronic means if the board of directors decides to accept such means.

Under the Corporate Law, in order to approve certain significant matters of a corporation, a stricter requirement for the quorum or the number of voting rights to approve is provided. Our articles of incorporation provide that such resolution may be adopted at a meeting of shareholders by two thirds of the voting rights of the shareholders present at the meeting representing at least one third of the total number of the voting rights of the shareholders who are entitled to exercise their voting rights. Such significant matters include, but are not limited to:

- the determination of the matters relating to acquisition of its own shares from a specific shareholder,
- the determination as to acquisition of special shares all of which may be acquired by a corporation (*zembu shutoku joukou tsuki shurui kabushiki*),
- the determination of consolidation of the shares.
- the determination of discharge of a part of liabilities of directors, corporate auditors or accounting auditors,
- the determination of the matters concerning distribution of surplus by property other than cash (only in the case that no cash distribution is allowed to shareholders as an alternative),
- the determination of the matters concerning amendments to the articles of incorporation, transfer of whole or important part of business or dissolution of a corporation,
- the determination of the matters concerning reorganization of a corporation.

Subscription Rights and Stock Acquisition Rights

Holders of shares have no preemptive rights under our articles of incorporation. Under the Corporate Law, the board of directors may, however, determine that shareholders be given subscription rights in connection with a particular issue of new shares. In this case, such rights must be given to all shareholders as of a specified record date by at least two weeks' prior public notice to shareholders of the record date. In addition, individual notice must be given to each of these shareholders at least two weeks prior to the date of expiration of the subscription rights.

We also may decide to grant the stock acquisition rights (shinkabu-yoyakuken), with or without bonds, to any person including shareholders, by resolution of its board of directors unless issued under specially favorable conditions. The holder of such rights may exercise its rights within the exercise period by paying subscription moneys all as prescribed in the terms of such rights.

Liquidation Rights

In the event of a liquidation of us, the assets remaining after payment of all debts, liquidation expenses and taxes will be distributed among the shareholders in proportion to the number of shares they own.

Liability to Further Calls or Assessments

All of the Company's currently issued shares are fully paid and nonassessable.

Shareholders' Register Manager

The Sumitomo Trust & Banking Co., Ltd. is the Shareholders' Register Manager for the shares. The Sumitomo Trust & Banking's office is located at 4-5-33 Kitahama, Chuo-ku, Osaka-shi, Osaka 540-8639, Japan. The Sumitomo Trust & Banking maintains our register of shareholders and records transfers of record ownership upon presentation of share certificates.

Record Date

As mentioned above, the record date for our year-end dividends is March 31, if paid. A holder of shares constituting one or more whole voting units who is registered as a holder on our register of shareholders at the close of business as of March 31 is entitled to exercise shareholders' voting rights at the ordinary general meeting of shareholders with respect to the fiscal year ended on March 31. In addition, we may set a record date for determining the shareholders entitled to other rights and for other purposes by giving at least two weeks' prior public notice.

The shares generally trade ex-dividend or ex-rights on the Japanese stock exchanges on the third business day before a record date (or if the record date is not a business day, the fourth business day prior thereto), for the purpose of dividends or rights offerings.

Acquisition by the Company of Shares

We may acquire our own shares:

- (i) by purchase on any stock exchange on which our shares are listed or by way of a tender offer under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan, pursuant to a resolution of the board of directors as provided in our articles of incorporation;
- (ii) through procedures under which all shareholders in the same class may apply to sell their shares pursuant to a resolution of the general meeting of shareholders;
- (iii) by purchase from a specific party other than any of subsidiaries, pursuant to a special resolution of a general meeting of shareholders; and
 - (iv) by purchase from any of our subsidiaries, pursuant to the resolution of the board of directors.

In the case of (iii) above, any other shareholder may demand that such other shareholder be included as a seller in the proposed purchase, unless the purchase price will not exceed the market price on the day immediately preceding the date on which the resolution mentioned in (iii) above was adopted.

In general, the total acquisition price of the shares to be purchased by us may not exceed the Distributable Amount. See "Dividends" above for further details regarding this amount.

Shares acquired by us may be held as treasury stock for any period or cancelled by resolution of the board of directors. We may also transfer the shares held by us to any person, subject to the resolution of the board of directors and other requirements similar to those applicable to the issuance of new shares.

Reports to Shareholders

We currently furnish shareholders with notices of shareholders' meetings, business reports, including financial statements, and notices of resolutions adopted at the shareholders' meetings, all of which are in Japanese. Such notices as described above may be furnished by electronic means to those shareholders who have approved such way of furnishing notices. Pursuant to our articles of incorporation, our method of public notice is electronic public notice in Japanese.

Report of Substantial Shareholdings

The Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan and regulations under such Law require any person who has become a holder (together with its related persons) of more than 5% of the total issued shares of a corporation listed on any Japanese stock exchange or whose shares are traded on the over-the-counter market to file with the Director of a competent Local Finance Bureau, within five business days, in general, a report concerning those shareholdings. A similar report must also be filed to reflect any change of 1% or more in any shareholding or any change in material matters set out in reports previously filed. Copies of any report must also be furnished to the corporation and to all Japanese stock exchanges on which the corporation's shares are listed or in the case of shares traded on the over-the-counter market, the Japan Securities Dealers Association. For this purpose, shares issuable or transferable to such person upon exercise of exchangeable securities, conversion of convertible securities or exercise of warrants or stock acquisition rights are taken into account in determining both the number of shares held by that holder and the corporation's total issued share capital.

Under the Insurance Business Law, a shareholder of an insurance holding company including us that holds more than 5% of the total voting rights of the insurance holding company is required to file a report of its shareholdings with the Director of the competent Local Finance Bureau of the Ministry of Finance within five days after the acquisition of the shares and other reports concerning changes in the reported matters (including any increase or decrease of more than 1% in the shareholding ratio).

Daily Price Fluctuation Limits under Japanese Stock Exchange Rules

Share prices on Japanese stock exchanges are determined on a real-time basis by the equilibrium between bids and offers. These exchanges are order-driven markets without specialists or market makers to guide price formation. To prevent excessive volatility, these exchange set daily upward and downward price fluctuation limits for each share, based on the previous day's closing price. Although transactions may continue at the upward or downward limit price if the limit price is reached on a particular trading day, no transactions may take place outside these limits. Consequently, an investor wishing to sell at a price above or below the relevant daily limit may not be able to sell his shares at such price on a particular trading day, or at all.

On September 26, 2008, the closing price of our shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange was ¥3,840 per share. The following table shows the daily price limit for a stock on the Tokyo Stock Exchange with a closing price of between ¥3,000 and ¥5,000 per share, as well as the daily price limit if our per share price were to rise to between ¥5,000 and ¥10,000, or fall to between ¥2,000 and ¥3,000. Other daily price limits would apply if our per share price moved to other ranges.

Selected Daily Price Limits

	Maximum Daily Price Movement			
Over	¥2,000	Less than	¥ 3,000	¥ 400
Over	3,000	Less than	5,000	500
Over	5,000	Less than	10,000	1,000

For a history of the trading price of our shares on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, see Item 9.A of this annual report.

C. Material Contracts.

We have not entered into any material contract, other than in the ordinary course of business, within the two years immediately preceding the date of this document or any contract.

D. Exchange Controls.

There are no laws, decrees, regulations or other legislation which materially affect our ability to import or export capital for our use or our ability to pay dividends to non-resident holders of our shares.

E. Taxation.

United States Federal Income Taxation

This section describes the material United States federal income tax consequences of owning shares. It applies to you only if you are a U.S. holder (as defined below) and hold your shares as capital assets for tax purposes. This section does not apply to you if you are a member of a special class of holders subject to special rules, including:

- a dealer in securities;
- a trader in securities that elects to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for securities holdings;
- a tax-exempt organization;
- a life insurance company;

- a person liable for alternative minimum tax;
- a person that actually or constructively owns 10% or more of our voting stock;
- a person that holds shares as part of a straddle or a hedging or conversion transaction; or
- a person whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar.

If a partnership holds the shares, the United States federal income tax treatment of a partner will generally depend on the status of the partner and the tax treatment of the partnership. If you are a partner in partnership holding the shares, you should consult your tax advisor with regard to the United States federal income tax treatment of owning the shares

This section is based on the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, its legislative history, existing and proposed regulations, published rulings and court decisions, all as currently in effect, as well as on the Convention Between the Government of the United States of America and the Government of the Japan for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income (the "Treaty"). These laws are subject to change, possibly on a retroactive basis.

You are a U.S. holder if you are a beneficial owner of shares and you are for United States federal income tax purposes:

- a citizen or resident of the United States;
- a domestic corporation;
- an estate whose income is subject to United States federal income tax regardless of its source; or
- a trust if a United States court can exercise primary supervision over the trust's administration and one or more United States persons are authorized to control all substantial decisions of the trust.

You should consult your own tax advisor regarding the United States federal, state and local and the Japanese and other tax consequences of owning and disposing of shares in your particular circumstances.

Taxation of Dividends

Under the United States federal income tax laws, and subject to the passive foreign investment company rules discussed below, if you are a U.S. holder, the gross amount of any dividend paid by us out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits (as determined for United States federal income tax purposes) is subject to United States federal income taxation. If you are a non corporate U.S. holder, dividends paid to you in taxable years beginning before January 1, 2011 that constitute qualified dividend income will be taxable to you at a maximum tax rate of 15% provided that you hold the shares for more than 60 days during the 121-day period beginning 61 days before the ex-dividend date and meet other holding period requirements. Dividends paid by us with respect to our shares or generally will be qualified dividend income.

You must include any Japanese tax withheld from the dividend payment in this gross amount even though you do not in fact receive it. The dividend is taxable to you when you receive the dividend, actually or constructively. The dividend will not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction generally allowed to United States corporations in respect of dividends received from other United States corporations. The amount of the dividend distribution that you must include in your income as a U.S. holder will be the U.S. dollar value of the Japanese yen payments made, determined at the spot Japanese yen/U.S. dollar rate on the date the dividend distribution is includible in your income, regardless of whether the payment is in fact converted into U.S. dollars. Generally, any gain or loss resulting from currency exchange fluctuations during the period from the date you include the dividend payment in income to the date you convert the payment into U.S. dollars will be treated as ordinary income or loss and will not be eligible for the special tax rate applicable to qualified dividend income. The gain or loss generally will be income or loss from sources within the United States for foreign tax credit limitation purposes. Distributions in excess of current and accumulated earnings and profits, as determined for United States federal income tax purposes, will be treated as a nontaxable return of capital to the extent of your basis in the shares and thereafter as capital gain.

Subject to certain limitations, the Japanese tax withheld in accordance with the Treaty and paid over to Japan will be creditable against your United States federal income tax liability. To the extent a refund of the tax withheld is available to you under Japanese law or under the Treaty, the amount of tax that is refundable will not be eligible for credit against your United States federal income tax liability. Please see "Japanese Taxation", below, for the procedures for obtaining a reduced rate of withholding under the Treaty or a tax refund. In addition, special rules apply in determining the foreign tax credit limitation with respect to dividends that are subject to the maximum 15% tax rate.

Dividends will be income from sources outside the United States and will, depending on your circumstances, be either "passive" or "general" income for purposes of computing the foreign tax credit allowable to you.

Taxation of Capital Gains

Subject to the passive foreign investment company rules discussed below, if you are a U.S. holder and you sell or otherwise dispose of your shares, you will recognize capital gain or loss for the United States federal income tax purposes equal to the difference between the U.S. dollar value of the amount that you realize and your tax basis, determined in U.S. dollars, in your shares. Capital gain of a non-corporate U.S. holder that is recognized in taxable years beginning before January 1, 2011 is generally taxed at a maximum rate of 15% where the property is held for more than one year. The gain or loss will generally be income or loss from sources within the United States for foreign tax credit limitation purposes.

Passive Foreign Investment Company (PFIC) Rules

We do not expect our shares to be treated as stock of a passive foreign investment company, or "PFIC", for United States federal income tax purposes, but this conclusion is a factual determination that is made annually and thus may be subject to change. If we were to be treated as a PFIC, unless a U.S. holder elects to be taxed annually on a mark-to-market basis with respect to the shares, gain realized on the sale or other disposition of your shares would in general not be treated as capital gain. Instead, if you are a U.S. holder, you would be treated as if you had realized such gain and certain "excess distributions" ratably over your holding period for the shares and would be taxed at the highest tax rate in effect for each such year to which the gain was allocated, together with an interest charge in respect of the tax attributable to each such year. With certain exceptions, your shares will be treated as stock in a PFIC if we were a PFIC at any time during your holding period in your shares. In addition, dividends that you receive from us will not be eligible for the special tax rates applicable to qualified dividend income if we are treated as a PFIC with respect to you either in the taxable year of the distribution or the preceding taxable year, but instead will be taxable at rates applicable to ordinary income.

Japanese Taxation

The following is a summary of the principal Japanese tax consequences to owners of our shares who are non-resident individuals or non-Japanese corporations without a permanent establishment in Japan to which income from our shares is attributable. The tax treatment is subject to possible changes in the applicable Japanese laws or double taxation conventions occurring after that date. This summary is not exhaustive of all possible tax considerations that may apply to a particular investor. Potential investors should consult their own tax advisers as to:

- the overall tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of shares, including specifically the tax consequences under Japanese law;
- the laws of the jurisdiction of which they are resident; and
- any tax treaty between Japan and their country of residence.

Generally, a non-resident of Japan or a non-Japanese corporation is subject to Japanese withholding tax on dividends paid by Japanese corporations.

In the absence of any applicable tax convention or agreement reducing the maximum rate of withholding tax, the rate of Japanese withholding tax applicable to dividends paid by Japanese corporations to a non-resident of Japan or a non-Japanese corporation is 20%. With respect to dividends paid on listed shares issued by Japanese corporations (such as our shares) to a non-resident of Japan or a non-Japanese corporation, the aforementioned 20% withholding tax rate is reduced to (i) 7% for dividends to be paid until March 31, 2009, and (ii) 15% for dividends to be paid thereafter, except for dividends paid to any individual shareholder who holds 5% or more of the issued shares of us. Japan has entered into income tax treaties, conventions or agreements, whereby the maximum withholding tax rate is generally set at 15% for portfolio investors with, among others, Belgium, Canada, Denmark, Finland, Germany, Ireland, Italy, Luxembourg, the Netherlands, New Zealand, Norway, Singapore, Spain, Sweden, and Switzerland. Pursuant to the Convention Between the United States of America and Japan for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with Respect to Taxes on Income, a portfolio investor that is a U.S. holder is generally subject to Japanese withholding tax on dividends on shares at a rate of 10%. A similar withholding tax treatment applies under the new tax treaty between the United Kingdom and Japan for dividends taxed on or after January 1, 2007 due to the renewal of such treaty. The tax treaty between France and Japan was renewed, effective from December 1, 2007, under which the standard treaty withholding rate for portfolio investors on dividends was reduced from 15% to 10%. In addition, the tax treaty between Australia and Japan has been renewed (the effective date undetermined) under which the standard treaty withholding rate on dividends will be reduced in general from 15% to 10%. Under Japanese tax law, the maximum rate applicable under the tax treaties, conventions or agreements shall be applicable except when such maximum rate is higher than the Japanese statutory rate.

Gains derived from the sale outside Japan of common stock by a non-resident of Japan or a non-Japanese corporation, or from the sale of common stock within Japan by a non-resident of Japan or by a non-Japanese corporation not having a permanent establishment in Japan, are in general not subject to Japanese income or corporation taxes.

Japanese inheritance and gift taxes at progressive rates may be payable by an individual who has acquired common stock as a legatee, heir or donee, even if the individual is not a Japanese resident.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents.

Not applicable.

G. Statement by Experts.

Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display.

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and, in accordance therewith, file periodic reports with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These reports and other information can be inspected at the public reference room at the Securities and Exchange Commission at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. You can also obtain copies of such material by mail from the public reference room of the Securities and Exchange Commission at prescribed fees. You may obtain information on the operation of the Securities and Exchange Commission public reference room by calling the Securities and Exchange Commission in the United States at 1-800-SEC-0330. You can also access to the documents filed via the Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis, and Retrieval system on the SEC's website (http://www.sec.gov).

I. Subsidiary Information.

Not applicable.

Item 11. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Substantial portions of our investments are held at the level of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co., Ltd. Except as otherwise noted, the following discussion relates to market risk management of us at that level.

Market Risk Management

We invest in a portfolio of assets for our funds which are either (1) such portion of deposit premiums we receive on our deposit-type insurance policies that have not been due for refund to policyholders or (2) our other general funds including such portion of net premiums written that we have not disbursed to policyholders for claim payments. These investments are subject to market risk, which we define as the potential for sustained adverse changes in market prices or rates that may cause a loss in the "fair value" of an investment to occur. The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which it could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing counterparties other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Our primary market risk exposures are to potential changes in interest rates and equity prices, as well as foreign exchange rates. The composition of our insurance investments varies by line of business.

Our material market risk exposures consist of equities and interest rate-sensitive and foreign exchange rate-sensitive financial instruments held for other than trading purposes. During the fiscal year ended March 31, 1999, we started using derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. The risks with respect to this business are immaterial.

We have a risk of loss due to equity prices because the value of our equity securities may decline during a sustained general fall in equity price. Most of our equity investments are intended to be held for the long term. Our equity holdings are primarily in the Japanese market. We seek to reduce asset-fluctuation risks on Japanese equities by selling part of them.

For the purpose of market risk measurement, we define interest rate risk as the risk of a loss in the fair values of interest rate-sensitive assets and liabilities caused by changes in market interest rates. We are exposed to interest rate risk due to our investments in fixed-income instruments, in particular bonds and loans. We risk a loss because our assets and liabilities may fluctuate in value when market interest rates change. Our primary exposure for interest rate risk is to the Japanese mid- and long-term market interest rates. This results from our investment allocations reflecting our asset-liability management, especially for our deposit-type insurance fund. We endeavor to mitigate interest rate risk by investing in securities that match the nature of our liabilities with respect to each of our deposit-type insurance fund and our general fund reserves, based on the asset allocation mentioned in "Allocation of Investments" below.

Foreign exchange rate risk is the risk of a loss in the fair values of instruments denominated in currencies other than our functional currency, which is the yen. We are exposed to foreign exchange rate risk because some of our assets are denominated in currencies different from the yen. If the foreign exchange rates of the non-yen currencies decline against the yen, the fair values of the corresponding assets would also decline. Our primary exposures for foreign exchange risk are to the Untied States dollar and the Euro.

We hold and use many different financial instruments in managing our businesses. Grouped according to risk category, the following are the most significant assets according to their fair values:

- Equity price risk: common shares;
- Interest rate risk: bonds, loans and liabilities; and
- Foreign exchange rate risk: non-yen denominated equities and bonds.

We also selectively use derivative financial instruments such as swaps, swaptions, options, forwards and futures to manage the risk profile of equity, foreign exchange rate and interest rate exposures. In our use of derivatives, we comply with applicable regulatory requirements and also follow internal compliance guidelines. We use derivatives both for reducing our own exposures and for trading purposes. Grouped according to risk category, the following are the most significant derivatives used by us:

- Equity price risk: options and futures;
- Interest rate risk: swaps, swaptions, futures and options; and
- Foreign exchange rate risk: forwards and others.

For additional information on our use of derivatives, see Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report.

Risk Exposure Estimates. As well as using a value-at-risk methodology based on our assessment of market risk factors, we use a risk modeling technique known as "sensitivity analysis" to analyze the implications of changes in market conditions on the financial instruments we hold. Our sensitivity analysis measures the potential loss in fair values of market sensitive instruments resulting from selected hypothetical changes in equity prices, interest rates, and foreign exchange rates at a selected time.

The aggregate equity sensitivity measure shown in the table below illustrates the effect on fair values of our Japanese equity holdings assuming a 10% decline in the Tokyo Stock Price Index, or TOPIX, which is a leading index of prices of stocks traded on the First Section of the Tokyo Stock Exchange.

Interest rate risk sensitivity is estimated under the assumption of a 50 basis point parallel shift in interest rates. If yen interest rates fall, our net asset value of general and segregated accounts may decrease, and interests and dividends received may diminish. If foreign interest rates rise, the table below sets forth the aggregate effect on the fair value of our interest rate-sensitive investments assuming a 50 basis point fall or rise that occurs simultaneously and instantaneously across all markets and maturities in each country.

In a similar manner to equity risk, foreign exchange rate risk is estimated by assuming a 10% decline in all currency exchange rates against Japanese yen. Consequently, the aggregate fair value sensitivity shown in the table below illustrates the effect on fair values if, simultaneously and uniformly, the value of the yen appreciates by 10% against all non-yen currencies.

We believe that the scenarios chosen make reasonable assumptions based on past observations about market conditions.

The tables below set forth the sensitivity of our investments, by market risk category, as of March 31, 2008. Certain investments are included in more than one risk category, e.g., bonds denominated in non-yen currencies are affected by changes in both interest rates and foreign exchange rates.

Investment Objectives

We have the following primary investment objectives:

- Maintain high-grade investment assets in order to strengthen our ability to meet insurance payment obligations;
- Maintain sufficient liquidity in our investment assets to meet insurance payment obligations, repayment of deposit-type products upon maturity and payment of dividends on those products on a timely basis; and
- Achieve the highest possible returns on our investment assets while meeting the two objectives above.

Allocation of Investments

We believe that, in terms of the asset allocation of our investments, the most important goal is to make investments that best match different risk profiles arising from the specific nature of liabilities corresponding to each of our general fund and deposit-type insurance fund reserves. We determine "Strategic Asset Allocation", a model for determining medium-term asset allocation ratios, based upon expected risk-to-return ratios and our liability structures, in order to set a benchmark for portfolio management. We then compare our actual asset allocation activities with the results produced by the Strategic Asset Allocation model and analyze the status of our portfolio through the dual standpoint of acquired risks and generated returns. The results of the analysis are reported to our Investment Committee, which oversees asset allocation, on a quarterly basis. For the general fund reserve, we diversify our investments among yen-denominated assets, Japanese equities, foreign currency denominated bonds, real estate and other investments, to obtain a stable income source and relatively high return at the same time. For deposit-type insurance fund reserves, in light of the fact that payments upon maturity and dividend payments must be made in yen, investments are made primarily in highly liquid and relatively low-risk yen-denominated assets. In particular, with respect to deposit-type insurance reserves, in order to deal with the risk that a large amount may become due at any particular point in time and the risk that the market interest rate may be below the assumed rate of interest, we use our own asset-liability management system which quantifies the risks arising from the mismatch of our assets and liabilities. The results of these calculations are reported to our Asset Liability Management Committee Meeting on a monthly basis, and that committee deliberates and decides appropriate levels of risks and returns.

Risk Management Functions

We have an independent financial risk management section in place and have a market risk management organization which is designed to ensure that each of our front, middle and back offices effectively monitor one another with respect to our market management processes. Market risk management matters are periodically reported to our Board of Directors and Risk Management Committee Meeting. The Board of Directors is accountable for the overall risk management of us and our subsidiaries. The functions and responsibilities of the Board of Directors and the Risk Management Committee with respect to market risk management are established in accordance with our overall risk management policies as well as relevant laws and regulations of Japan and other jurisdictions where we conduct business.

Sensitivity Analysis and Risk Category (As of March 31, 2008)

Equity risk10% decline-206 billion yenInterest rate risk50bp move-22 billion yenForeign exchange risk10% decline-67 billion yen

Data Verification and Model Accuracy Confirmation. Ensuring the quality of source data and calculations is a key priority for our risk management function. Our back and middle offices collect data at least on a monthly basis and verify them for reasonableness, consistency and completeness. For interest rate analysis, the calculation of sensitivity values is based on the scheduled cash flows and the appropriate yield curves.

Other Risk Management

Insurance Underwriting and Pricing. Our insurance businesses are subject to underwriting and pricing risks. Insurance underwriting involves a determination of the type and amount of risk which an insurer is willing to accept. We evaluate policy applications on the basis of information provided by the applicant and others. We follow detailed underwriting practices and procedures designed to properly assess and qualify risks before issuing coverage to qualified applicants. Our insurance underwriting standards attempt to produce results consistent with the assumptions used in product pricing. In addition, we manage our overall exposure to single risks or events through the purchase of reinsurance coverage.

The pricing of insurance products involves the risk that, once a determination that coverage should be provided through the underwriting process has been made, the price charged for the coverage may be inadequate. The pricing of our insurance products takes into consideration the expected frequency and severity of claims; the costs of providing the necessary coverage, including the cost of administering policy benefits, sales and other administrative and overhead costs; and a margin for profit. Additional factors considered in setting premiums and prices for our life insurance products include assumptions as to future investment returns, expenses, persistency, mortality, morbidity and taxes, where appropriate. The long-term profitability of our products is affected by the degree to which future experience deviates from these assumptions. We endeavor to appropriately price our products according to risk with a margin for profit.

We have managed to maintain the appropriate level of the risk retention by controlling the large exposure due to massive catastrophes, for individual policies and group policies. We calculate the Probable Maximum Loss ("PML") using field research for each risk category and arrange adequate reinsurances to mitigate the impact from such risks. We aim to hold sufficient capital to ensure that it is financially strong, even after an extreme loss event. We manage 99% VaR one-year time horizon measures of required capital. In addition to the 99% VaR, we also consider other measures, including the 99% Tail VaR and the 99.5% VaR. For the future accumulated loss due to natural disasters as typhoons and earthquakes, we estimate PML by using statistical models and arrange reinsurances properly.

Insurance Claims and Reserves. We are subject to risk associated with claims settlement, including the risk that amounts paid may be in excess of related losses or reserves, fraud and customer service-related issues affected by the promptness of our claims-handling procedures, as well as risks associated with the adequacy of our reserves.

The claims process involves professional claims evaluation personnel, with input from legal, accounting, actuarial and other functions as necessary, and is closely coordinated with the reserving process. While the claims process is managed at the local level, we coordinate the establishment of claims guidelines, monitor claims development trends and exposures, and provide centralized support to our subsidiary operations in order to ensure that we benefit from the "best practices" of our member companies. In addition, for large industrial and commercial risks, claims in excess of certain levels are actively managed by our central claims department. To assess the appropriateness of our insurance reserves, we make use of historic values as well as statistical testing and regularly review the development of our reserves over time relative to our initial assumptions.

Real Estate Investment Risk. We are subject to real estate investment risk due to the market fluctuation in real estates prices and rents. Therefore, we engage in risk management according to such characteristics, while we work to lower our outstanding balance of investment real estate and improve the profitability of such assets.

Legal Risk. We are subject to legal risks arising from the uncertainty in the enforceability through legal or judicial processes, of the obligations of our policyholders and counterparties, particularly in jurisdictions where applicable laws and regulation may be relatively recent or incomplete. We seek to minimize such uncertainty through consultation with internal and external legal advisors in all countries in which we conduct business.

Operational Risk. Operational risk contains the following three categories, administrative risk, information and system risk and liquidity risk.

Administrative risk. Administrative risk is the risk due to administrative errors, legal violation, or improprieties committed by our employees or insurance agencies. In order to reduce such risks, not only do we set up rules and manuals, but we regularly monitor our operations through internal compliance programs. We have been improving our products and services to the best by our continuous efforts to carry out the inspection by each executive department and to accumulate improvement through internal educational programs and guidance and monitoring the state of compliance.

Information and system risk. Information and system risk is the risk due to the loss and/or leakage of customer-related information, breakage or shutdown of computer systems due to such factors as malfunction and improper usage. To insure the protection of customer-related information and company information, we have formulated our Information Security Policy, Privacy Policy and related guidelines. We have also implemented a contingency plan for large risks on the assumption of epicentral earthquakes in the Southern Kanto area and computer crimes like cyber terrorism.

Liquidity risk. Liquidity risk is the risk to suffer the financial loss due to tight cash flow arising from forced sale of assets at a price lower than fair value in facing with the urgent and large claim payments against catastrophic accidents. We control our cash flow by holding sufficient liquid assets and monitoring the level of the liquidity for both assets and liabilities to estimate the future financing needs.

Item 12. Description of Securities Other Than Equity Securities

Not applicable.

PART II

Item 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Delinquencies.

None.

Item 14. Material Modifications to the Rights of Security Holders and Use of Proceeds.

None.

Item 15T. Controls and Procedures.

The Company's management, with the participation of its chief executive officer and chief financial officer, evaluated the effectiveness of its disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of March 31, 2008. Based on that evaluation, these officers concluded that the disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of that date.

This annual report does not include a report of management's assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting (as defined in rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) or an attestation report of the Company's registered public accounting firm due to a transition period established by rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for newly public companies.

Item 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert.

Our board of corporate auditors has determined that Mr. Sosuke Yasuda, a member of that board, is an "audit committee financial expert" as such term is defined in Item 16A of Form 20-F. Mr. Yasuda meets the independence requirements imposed on corporate auditors under the Corporate Law. See Item 6.A. for an explanation of such independence requirements.

Item 16B. Code of Ethics.

We have adopted a code of ethics, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Charter on Professional Conduct, which applies to all of our personnel, including our chief executive officer, chief financial officer, corporate auditors, corporate officers, and employees. The text of our code of ethics is attached as exhibit 11.1 to this annual report.

Item 16C. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Fees Paid to the Independent Auditor

The board of directors of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance engaged KPMG AZSA & Co. to perform an annual audit of our financial statements in the fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008. The following table presents information concerning fees paid to KPMG AZSA & Co. and KPMG international member firms ("KPMG") in those years.

	Year E 2007	2008
		n in millions)
Audit fees (1)	¥ 150	¥ 251
Audit-related fees	36	20
Tax fees (2)	25	44
All other fees (3)	_	_
Total	¥ 211	¥ 315

⁽¹⁾ These are fees for professional services for the audit of our annual financial statements and services that are normally provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings.

- (2) These are fees for professional tax services performed including tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.
- (3) These are fees for all other services except those separately defined above.

Pre-Approval of Services Provided by KPMG

Our corporate auditors have adopted policies and procedures for pre-approving all non-audit work performed by KPMG. Specifically, the policies and procedures prohibit KPMG from performing any services for the Company or its subsidiaries without the prior approval of our corporate auditors.

All of the services provided by KPMG in the year ended March 31, 2008 were approved by Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance's corporate auditors pursuant to the approval policies described above, and none of such services were approved pursuant to the procedures described in Rule 2-01 (c)(7)(i)(C) of Regulation S-X, which waives the general requirement for pre-approval in certain circumstances.

Item 16D. Exemption from the Listing Standards for Audit Committees.

Not applicable.

Item 16E. Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers.

Not applicable.

PART III

Item 17. Financial Statements.

In lieu of responding to this item, we have responded to Item 18 of this annual report.

Item 18. Financial Statements.

The information required by this item is set forth in our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this annual report.

Item 19. Exhibits.

Exhibit Number		Description
1.1	_	Articles of Incorporation of the registrant (English translation)*
1.2	_	Share Handling Regulations of the registrant (English translation)*
1.3	_	Regulations of the board of directors of the registrant (English translation)
1.4	_	Regulations of the board of corporate auditors of the registrant (English translation)
2.1	_	Specimen common stock certificates of the registrant (English translation)*
8.1	_	List of subsidiaries of the registrant
11.1	_	Charter on Professional Conduct
12.1	_	Certification of the Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a)
12.2	_	Certification of the Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(a)
13.1	_	Certification of the Chief Executive Officer required by Rule 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code
13.2	_	Certification of the Chief Financial Officer required by Rule 13a-14(b) and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code

^{*} Incorporated by reference to the Registration Statement on Form F-4 (File No. 333-148157) filed by Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Co., Ltd. on December 19, 2007.

We have not included as exhibits certain instruments with respect to our long-term debt. The amount of debt authorized under each such debt instrument does not exceed 10% of our total assets. We agree to furnish a copy of any such instrument to the Commission upon request.

SIGNATURES

The registrant hereby certifies that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form 20-F and that it has duly caused and authorized the undersigned to sign this annual report on its behalf.

MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE GROUP HOLDINGS, INC.

/s/ Isamu Endo

By: Isamu Endo

Senior Managing Director

Date: September 30, 2008

MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE COMPANY, LIMITED AND SUBSIDIARIES INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Financial Statements:

Page

consonated i maneral statements.	
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2007 and 2008	F-3
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008	F-5
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008	F-6
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008	F-7
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008	F-8
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	F-10
INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES	
	Page
Financial Statement Schedules:	
Schedule I: Summary of Investment — Other than Investments in Related Parties as of March 31, 2007 and 2008	F-69
Schedule III: Supplementary Insurance Information for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008	F-71
Schedule IV: Reinsurance for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008	F-73
Schedule V: Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008	F-74

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, shareholders' equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2008. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the financial statement schedules as listed in the accompanying index. These consolidated financial statements and financial statements consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited and subsidiaries as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended March 31, 2008, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, present fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

KPMG AZSA & Co.

Tokyo, Japan September 4, 2008

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31, 2007 and 2008

	2007	2008
	(Yen in a	millions)
ASSETS		
Investments — other than investments in affiliates (Notes 4 and 16):		
Securities available for sale:		
Fixed maturities, at fair value	¥3,317,804	3,334,185
Equity securities, at fair value	3,312,574	2,547,773
Securities held to maturity:	3,312,371	2,3 17,773
Fixed maturities, at amortized cost	384,215	449,474
Mortgage loans on real estate	11,511	9,859
Investment real estate, at cost less accumulated depreciation of ¥57,985 million in 2007; ¥50,327 million	7-	.,
in 2008	49,192	43,151
Policy loans	38,523	39,536
Other long-term investments	715,972	749,385
Short-term investments	113,671	120,086
Total investments	7,943,462	7,293,449
	260.041	260,200
Cash and cash equivalents	369,941	368,290
Investments in and indebtedness from affiliates:		
Investments	46,198	56,351
Indebtedness (Note 16)	3,008	2,961
Total investments in and indebtedness from affiliates	49,206	59,312
Accrued investment income	23,698	24,798
Premiums receivable and agents' balances	133,358	140,562
Prepaid reinsurance premiums	201,404	215,233
Funds held by or deposited with ceding reinsurers	72,963	76,884
Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses	57,602	58,264
Reinsurance recoverable on unpaid losses	237,719	253,092
Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation (Note 5)	221,900	245,522
Deferred policy acquisition costs (Note 2(h))	362,260	360,152
Goodwill (Note 7)	70,012	69,248
Other assets (Note 12)	133,507	161,519
Total assets	¥9,877,032	9,326,325

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued) March 31, 2007 and 2008

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY	2007 (Yen in r except sh	,
Liabilities:		
Losses and claims (Note 8):		
Reported and estimated losses and claims	¥1,112,289	1,144,000
Adjustment expenses	41,261	53,820
Total losses and claims	1,153,550	1,197,820
Unearned premiums	1,439,579	1,489,956
Future policy benefits for life insurance contracts	825,426	911,165
Investment deposits by policyholders (Notes 9 and 16)	2,196,614	2,119,153
Indebtedness to affiliates	3,262	2,232
Income tax payable (Note 12)	21,430	4,283
Deferred tax liabilities (Note 12)	881,165	605,153
Retirement and severance benefits (Note 14)	98,447	116,287
Ceded reinsurance balances payable	90,788	77,423
Short-term debt (Note 10)	37,907	37,604
Long-term debt (Notes 10 and 16)	70,000	99,992
Other liabilities	167,723	237,372
Total liabilities	6,985,891	6,898,440
Minority interests	16,681	18,586
Shareholders' equity:		
Common stock:		
Authorized — 3,000,000,000 shares; issued — 1,513,184,880 shares in 2007 and		
1,404,402,464 shares in 2008 (Note 13(a))	137,495	137,495
Other shareholders' equity:		
Additional paid-in capital (Note 13(a))	86,519	86,486
Retained earnings (Note 13(b))	1,485,823	1,471,651
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Note 13(c))	1,255,766	713,667
Treasury stock, 101,982,776 shares in 2007, at cost	(91,143)	
Total shareholders' equity	2,874,460	2,409,299
Commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 18)		
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity	¥9,877,032	9,326,325

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

	2006	2007	2008
	(Yen in 1	millions, except per sh	are data)
Revenues:			
Net premiums written	¥1,458,507	1,489,379	1,537,616
Less increase in unearned premiums	35,706	20,299	34,931
Net premiums earned (Note 11)	1,422,801	1,469,080	1,502,685
Premium income for life insurance contracts (Note 11)	179,430	193,551	192,731
Investment income, net of investment expenses (Note 4)	156,102	179,189	185,265
Net realized gains (losses) on investments (Note 4)	50,199	24,315	(17,370)
Total revenues	1,808,532	1,866,135	1,863,311
Expenses:			
Losses, claims and loss adjustment expenses (Note 11):			
Losses and claims incurred and provided for	881,623	909,656	906,257
Related adjustment expenses	68,855	70,001	82,370
Policyholder benefits for life insurance contracts (Note 11)	151,365	156,591	156,683
Amortization of policy acquisition costs	340,878	367,224	372,025
Investment income credited to investment deposits by policyholders (Note 9)	50,840	48,482	48,498
Other expenses, net (Note 6)	133,994	146,742	143,719
Total expenses	1,627,555	1,698,696	1,709,552
Income before income taxes	180,977	167,439	153,759
Income taxes (Note 12):			
Current	35,497	43,747	25,368
Deferred	25,030	9,208	22,769
Total income taxes	60,527	52,955	48,137
Minority interests	560	568	826
			404 =05
Net income	¥ 119,890	113,916	104,796
Earnings per share (Notes 2(p) and 13(b)):			
Net income:			
Basic	¥ 84.11	80.24	74.28

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

	2006	2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Net income	¥119,890	113,916	104,796
Other comprehensive income, net of tax (Note 13(c)):			
Foreign currency translation adjustments	15,514	10,950	(4,015)
Unrealized gains on securities	500,810	135,407	(526,138)
Net gains (losses) on derivative instruments	(102)	1	(24)
Minimum pension liability adjustment	(791)	(15)	_
Pension liability adjustments	_	_	(11,922)
Other comprehensive income (loss)	515,431	146,343	(542,099)
Comprehensive income (loss)	¥635,321	260,259	(437,303)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY Years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

	2006	2007	2008
	(Yen in n	nillions, except per sha	are data)
Common stock:	V 127 405	127 405	127 405
Balance at beginning and end of year	¥ 137,495	137,495	137,495
Additional paid-in capital:			
Balance at beginning of year	86,498	86,507	86,519
Gain on sales of treasury stock	9	12	18
Retirement of treasury stock	_	_	(51)
Balance at end of year	86,507	86,519	86,486
Retained earnings:			
Balance at beginning of year	1,286,353	1,386,963	1,485,823
Net income for the year	119,890	113,916	104,796
Dividends paid (Note 13(b))	(19,280)	(21,308)	(21,166)
Retirement of treasury stock	<u> </u>		(98,657)
Other	_	6,252	855
Balance at end of year (Note 13(b))	1,386,963	1,485,823	1,471,651
Accumulated other comprehensive income (Note 13(c)):			
Balance at beginning of year	603,893	1,119,324	1,255,766
Other comprehensive income, net of tax	515,431	146,343	(542,099)
Adjustment upon adoption of SFAS No.158, net of tax	_	(9,901)	_
Balance at end of year	1,119,324	1,255,766	713,667
Treasury stock:			
Balance at beginning of year	(64,511)	(77,321)	(91,143)
Purchase of common shares	(12,831)	(13,840)	(7,629)
Sale of common shares	21	18	64
Retirement of treasury stock			98,708
Balance at end of year	(77,321)	(91,143)	<u> </u>
Total shareholders' equity	¥2,652,968	2,874,460	2,409,299
Cash dividends per share (Note 13(b))	¥ 13.50	15.00	15.00

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS Years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

	2006	2007	2008
		(Yen in millions)	
Net cash provided by operating activities (Note 19)	¥ 402,040	325,256	308,007
Cash flows from investing activities:			
Proceeds from:			
Securities available for sale:			
Fixed maturities	553,057	449,649	412,764
Equity securities	114,403	105,222	87,796
Fixed maturities available for sale matured	252,373	225,542	228,766
Fixed maturities held to maturity matured	6,545	3,866	9,345
Investment real estate	165	850	8,560
Collection of:			
Mortgage loans on real estate	4,804	4,250	2,445
Policy loans	34,702	37,144	41,974
Other long-term investments	250,612	228,689	180,235
Purchases of:			
Securities available for sale:			
Fixed maturities	(1,048,873)	(834,568)	(667,878)
Equity securities	(105,180)	(96,805)	(107,609)
Securities held to maturity:			
Fixed maturities	(8,202)	(4,957)	(73,191)
Investments in:			
Mortgage loans on real estate	(658)	(515)	(789)
Investment real estate	_	(719)	(8,631)
Policy loans	(38,419)	(37,052)	(42,987)
Other long-term investments	(264,485)	(240,871)	(214,654)
Increase (decrease) in cash received under securities lending transactions	26,176	(20,429)	6,766
Decrease (increase) in short-term investments, net	4,773	(4,249)	(13,361)
Increase in investments in and indebtedness from affiliates	(13,570)	(4,193)	(9,188)
Increase in property and equipment, net	(13,904)	(18,606)	(27,532)
Business acquired, net of cash acquired	(10,807)	(7,337)	_
Other, net	(1,971)	(2,311)	(10,710)
Net cash used in investing activities	(258,459)	(217,400)	(197,879)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) Years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008

	2006	2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Investment deposits funded by policyholders	¥ 341,604	324,907	290,741
Withdrawals of investment deposits by policyholders	(434,555)	(418,195)	(396,597)
Increase (decrease) in commercial paper, net	(2,643)	(2,532)	29,688
Proceeds from long-term debt	300	_	29,991
Repayment of long-term debt	(500)	_	_
Repayment of short-term debt	_	(300)	(30,000)
Acquisition of treasury stock	(12,831)	(13,840)	(7,629)
Dividends paid to shareholders	(19,377)	(21,588)	(21,867)
Other, net	(877)	(883)	(800)
Net cash used in financing activities	(128,879)	(132,431)	(106,473)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents	4,235	9,351	(5,306)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents	18,937	(15,224)	(1,651)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year	366,228	385,165	369,941
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year	¥ 385,165	369,941	368,290

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Basis of Presentation

(a) Nature of Operations

On October 1, 2001, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited ("the Company") was formed through the merger of Mitsui Marine and Fire Insurance Company, Limited ("Mitsui") and The Sumitomo Marine & Fire Insurance Company, Limited ("Sumitomo"). The merger was accounted for under the pooling-of-interest method, and, accordingly, the consolidated financial statements and financial information prior to the merger have been restated as if the companies had been combined for all periods presented.

On April 1, 2008, the Company established a holding company, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc., through a share transfer and became its wholly owned subsidiary. The share transfer will be accounted for as a legal reorganization of entities under common control in a manner similar to a pooling of interests as the proportionate shareholder interests before and after the share transfer will be substantially the same.

The Company and subsidiaries operate mainly in the Japanese domestic insurance industry and sell a wide range of property and casualty insurance products. Also, the Company sells life insurance products through a wholly owned subsidiary and a joint venture company. Overseas operations are conducted mostly in Southeast Asia, Europe and the United States of America through overseas branches and subsidiaries.

(b) Basis of Financial Statements

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries maintain their books of account in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan ("Japanese GAAP"), and its foreign subsidiaries generally maintain their books of account in accordance with those of the countries of their domicile.

Certain adjustments and reclassifications have been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements to conform with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP").

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are expressed in yen.

(c) Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management of the Company to make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Significant items subject to such estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of:

securities, property and equipment, investment real estate, intangibles and goodwill; valuation allowances for receivables and deferred income tax assets; valuation of derivative instruments; insurance-related liabilities; and assets and obligations related to employee benefits. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its majority-owned subsidiaries.

In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Revised Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities ("FIN46R")". FIN46R clarifies how to identify variable interest entities ("VIEs") and how to determine when a business enterprise should include the assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of VIEs in its consolidated financial statements. A company that absorbs a majority of a VIE's expected losses, receives a majority of a VIE's expected residual returns, or both, is the primary beneficiary and is required to consolidate the VIEs into its financial statement. The Company or its consolidated subsidiaries provide guarantees or similar contracts to various entities and accordingly are considered the primary beneficiary in various VIEs. See Note 17 for additional information required by FIN46R.

All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Investments in affiliates over which we exercise significant influence, but not control, are accounted for by the equity method. The exercisability of the minority interest rights is considered in determining whether the Company's control for majority owned affiliates exists, and consolidation would be precluded to the extent that the minority interest holds substantive participating rights. Under the equity method of accounting, investments are stated at their underlying net equity value after elimination of intercompany profits. The cost method is used when the Company does not have significant influence.

The excess of investments in affiliates over the Company's share of their net assets at the acquisition date, included in the equity investment balance, is recognized as equity method goodwill. Such equity method goodwill is not being amortized and is instead tested for impairment as part of the equity method investment. The cost of investments in affiliates as of March 31, 2007 and 2008 amounted to \frac{1}{2}46,198 million and \frac{1}{2}56,351 million, respectively. There were no differences between the cost of these investments and the amount of underlying equity in net assets of the investees.

The proportionate share of the affiliates' income which were included in "other expenses, net" for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were gains of ¥4,854 million, ¥3,398 million and ¥12,312 million, respectively.

The affiliates include Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd. ("MS MetLife"), which offers variable annuity life insurance products to individuals. MS MetLife is a 51%-owned affiliate of the Company and is accounted for under the equity method based on an evaluation of the rights held by the minority interest shareholders pursuant to the joint venture agreement, which overcome the presumption that the subsidiary should be consolidated.

Summarized information from the balance sheets and statements of income of MS MetLife as of and for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 are as follows:

	2006	2007	2008
		(Yen in millions)	
Investments	¥ 68,174	136,118	196,770
Separate account assets	1,519,624	2,153,564	2,288,002
Deferred acquisition costs	75,076	108,617	135,094
Other assets	4,662	7,032	10,443
Total assets	¥1,667,536	2,405,331	2,630,309
Policy benefits and reserves	¥ 70,663	153,397	223,934
Separate account liabilities	1,519,624	2,153,564	2,288,002
Other liabilities	25,725	37,998	44,304
Equity	51,524	60,372	74,069
Total liabilities and equity	¥1,667,536	2,405,331	2,630,309
Revenue	¥ 28,335	41,977	83,699
Expenses	17,731	33,818	49,093
Income taxes	3,607	2,578	11,895
Net income	¥ 6,997	5,581	22,711

Through the year ended March 31, 2006, the Company owned a 47% interest in Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (Malaysia) Bhd., which became a majority-owned subsidiary of the Company in the year ended March 31, 2007 and was accordingly included in consolidation for that year. Summarized information from the balance sheet and statement of income of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (Malaysia) Bhd. as of and for the year ended March 31, 2006 is as follows:

	2006
	(Yen in millions)
Total assets	¥20,015
Total liabilities	10,430
Total equity	9,585
Net income	1,685

(b) Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

(c) Investments in Equity and Fixed Maturity Securities

Trading securities are recorded at fair value with unrealized gains and losses included in income. Securities available for sale are recorded at fair value with net unrealized gains and losses reported, net of tax, in other comprehensive income. Securities held to maturity, which the Company has positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, are recorded at amortized cost.

For investments that have experienced a decline in value below their respective cost that is considered to be other than temporary, the declines are recorded as realized losses on investments in the consolidated statements of income. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are included in realized gains and losses in the consolidated statements of income based on the trade date. The cost of investments sold is determined on a moving-average basis.

(d) Investments in Loans

The Company grants mortgage, commercial and consumer loans primarily to customers throughout Japan. As a result of this geographic concentration of outstanding loans, the ability of the Company's debtors to honor their contracts is much more dependent upon the general economic conditions in Japan than those competitors with a greater geographic dispersion of borrowing.

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off generally are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances adjusted for charge-offs and an allowance for credit losses.

Loans are placed on a cash (non-accrual) basis when it is deemed that the payment of interest or principal is doubtful of collection, or when interest or principal is past due for 90 days or more.

All interest accrued but not collected for loans placed on non-accrual status or charged off is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on a cash basis until qualifying for return to accrual status. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for credit losses charged to earnings. Credit losses are charged against the allowance when management believes the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for credit losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management's periodic review of the collectibility of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific allowance is established for loans that are classified as impaired when the discounted cash flows or collateral value of the impaired loan is lower than the carrying value of the loan. The general allowance covers other-than-impaired loans and is established based on historical loss experience adjusted for qualitative factors

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfalls in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for mortgage and commercial loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan's effective interest rate, the loan's obtainable market price, or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent. Large groups of smaller-balance homogeneous loans are collectively evaluated for impairment.

(e) Accounts with Foreign Branches and Agents

The amounts included in the consolidated balance sheets at March 31, 2007 and 2008 with respect to foreign branches and agents of the Company represent data within three months before March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively. The consolidated statements of income likewise include amounts for the corresponding periods ended on those dates.

(f) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, including property classified as investment real estate, are stated principally at cost less accumulated depreciation on buildings and furniture and equipment. Depreciation is computed by the declining-balance method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets. The estimated useful lives for buildings, furniture and equipment are primarily 6 to 60 years, 2 to 20 years, respectively.

The cost and accumulated depreciation with respect to assets retired or otherwise disposed of are eliminated from the respective assets and related accumulated depreciation accounts. Any resulting profit or loss is credited or charged to income.

(g) Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard ("SFAS") No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment and purchased intangibles subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of are stated at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no longer depreciated. The fair values of the assets are determined based on either quoted market prices or independent third party appraisals.

(h) Policy Acquisition Costs

Policy acquisition costs are deferred and amortized over the periods in which the related premiums are earned or in relation to estimated gross profits with respect to certain interest-sensitive life and annuity products. Acquisition costs include agent commissions and certain other costs which vary with and are directly related to the acquisition of business. Such deferred costs are limited to the excess of the unearned premiums over the sum of expected claim costs, claim adjustment expenses and policy maintenance expenses.

Details of policy acquisition costs for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 are as follows:

Property and casualty insurance:

	2006	2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Deferred at beginning of year	¥ 315,317	321,407	302,677
Adjustment in connection with acquisition	1,996	1,276	_
Capitalized during year: Commissions and brokerage	225,949	223,316	230,377
Salaries and other compensation	62,290	60,435	62,841
Other underwriting costs	44,231	45,973	57,937
	332,470	329,724	351,155
Amortized during year	(328,376)	(349,730)	(365,866)
Deferred at end of year	¥ 321,407	302,677	287,966
Life insurance:			
	2006	2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Deferred at beginning of year	¥ 49,586	55,633	59,583
Capitalized during year	18,549	21,444	19,341
Change in shadow adjustment	´—	´ _	(579)
Amortized during year	(12,502)	(17,494)	(6,159)
Deferred at end of year	¥ 55,633	59,583	72,186

Other underwriting costs include certain policy issuance costs supporting underwriting functions. These costs are related to the acquisition of new business and renewals and include technology costs to process policies, policy forms and travel.

Shadow accounting adjustments to deferred policy acquisition costs, present value of future profit and certain insurance liabilities, is recognized in equity, together with the unrealized gains or losses.

(i) Losses, Claims, Loss Adjustment Expenses and Policyholder Benefits

Liabilities for reported and estimated losses and claims and for related adjustment expenses for property and casualty insurance contracts are based upon the accumulation of case estimates for losses and related adjustment expenses reported prior to the close of the accounting period on direct and assumed business. Provision has also been made based upon past experience for unreported losses and for adjustment expenses not identified with specific claims. The Company believes that the liabilities for unpaid losses and adjustment expenses at March 31, 2007 and 2008 are adequate to cover the ultimate cost of losses and claims incurred to those dates, but the provisions are necessarily based on estimates and no representation is made that the ultimate liability may not exceed or fall short of such estimates.

For life insurance contracts, reserves for future policy benefits are determined principally by the net level premium method. Assumed interest rates range from 1.10% to 3.10%. Anticipated rates of mortality are based on the recent experience of the Company's life insurance subsidiary.

(j) Insurance Revenue Recognition

Property and casualty insurance premiums are earned ratably over the terms of the related insurance contracts. Unearned premiums are recognized to cover the unexpired portion of premiums written. Life insurance premiums of long-duration contracts are recognized as revenue when due from policyholders.

(k) Reinsurance

Reinsurance contracts are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 113, "Accounting and Reporting for Reinsurance of Short-Duration and Long-Duration Contracts." Under this statement, assets and liabilities relating to reinsurance contracts are reported on a gross basis. SFAS No. 113 also established guidelines for determining whether risk is transferred under a reinsurance contract. If risk is transferred, the conditions for reinsurance accounting are met. If risk is not transferred, the contract is accounted for as a deposit. All of the Company's reinsurance contracts meet the risk transfer criteria and are accounted for as reinsurance.

(l) Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes." Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax consequences of differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

In June 2006, FASB interpretation ("FIN") No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109," was issued. FIN No. 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes by prescribing the recognition threshold a tax position is required to meet before being recognized in the financial statements. It also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and transition. The Company's accounting policy is to accrue interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense in the consolidated statements of income. The Company adopted FIN No. 48 on April 1, 2007 and the adoption of FIN No. 48 did not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

(m) Compulsory Automobile Liability Insurance

Japanese law requires that all automobiles be covered by liability insurance for personal injury and that insurance companies may not refuse to issue such policies. The law provides that the regulatory authorities should not approve any application for upward premium rate adjustments if, in the opinion of the regulatory authorities, such adjustments would generate underwriting profits, for the program as a whole, or if it is deemed that the rate adjustments would compensate the insurers for excessive underwriting costs attributable to a lack of effective cost control on the part of the insurers. The law further stipulates that whenever premium rates are such that, in the opinion of the regulatory authorities, such premium revenues generate income which exceeds costs that are effectively controlled by insurers, for the program as a whole, the regulatory authorities may order a downward revision of premium rates.

The Company is not permitted to reflect any profit or loss from underwriting Compulsory Automobile Liability Insurance in the statutory financial statements prepared for distribution to shareholders, unless permission has been obtained from the Financial Services Agency of Japan. Rather, all such accumulated profits are recorded as a liability in the statutory financial statements prepared on the Japanese GAAP basis.

In contrast, in the accompanying consolidated financial statements prepared on the U.S. GAAP basis, Compulsory Automobile Liability Insurance is accounted for similarly with other lines of property and casualty insurance written by the Company, in the absence of a legal or contractual obligation to refund premium amounts in excess of cost to policyholders. Thereby, premiums are earned over the terms of the policies and the unexpired portion of premiums written relating to the unexpired terms of coverage are accounted for as unearned premiums. Earned premiums from underwriting Compulsory Automobile Liability Insurance were \\ \frac{\text{1193,871}}{\text{million}}, \\ \frac{\text{1193,663}}{\text{million}}, \and \\ \frac{\text{193,413}}{\text{million}}, \and \\ \text{10sec}, \text{1006, 2007} \text{ and 2008, respectively.} \\ \text{Likewise, liabilities for reported and estimated losses and claims and for related adjustment expenses are recorded based on the accumulation of case estimates for losses and related adjustment expenses reported prior to the close of the accounting period and on past experience for unreported losses and for adjustment expenses not identified with specific claims. Liabilities for losses, claims and related adjustment expenses for Compulsory Automobile Liability Insurance were \\ \frac{\text{119,937}}{\text{million}} \text{ million and } \\ \frac{\text{117,075}}{\text{million}} \text{ million at March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively.} \end{area}

(n) Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

Foreign currency financial statements of the Company's subsidiaries have been translated in accordance with SFAS No. 52, "Foreign Currency Translation." Under this statement, assets and liabilities of the Company's subsidiaries and affiliates located outside Japan are translated into Japanese yen at the rates of exchange in effect at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during the year. Gains and losses resulting from the translation of foreign currency financial statements are excluded from the consolidated statements of income and are accumulated in "Foreign currency translation adjustments," within accumulated other comprehensive income.

Gains or losses resulting from foreign currency transactions have been included in other expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income as gains of ¥2,095 million, ¥1,058 million and losses of ¥10,191 million for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

(o) Derivatives

All derivatives are recognized on the balance sheet at their fair value in accordance with SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" and SFAS No. 138, "Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activity, an Amendment of SFAS No.133."

Changes in the fair values of a derivative instrument are recorded in earnings or equity, depending on its designation and qualification as (1) "fair value hedge" (a hedge of subsequent changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability), (2) "cash flow hedge" (a hedge of the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability) or (3) "foreign currency hedge" (fair value and cash flow hedges may involve foreign-currency risk). In order to qualify as a hedge, the derivative instrument must be: (1) designated as hedge of a specific financial asset or liability at the inception of the contract, (2) effective at reducing the risk associated with the exposure to be hedged, and (3) highly correlated with respect to changes in its fair value or in the related cash flows in relation to the fair value of or cash flows related to the item to be hedged both at inception and over the life of the contract. Through the year ended March 31, 2007, the Company applied hedge accounting to some of its derivatives. The Company reconsidered the cost-effectiveness of that accounting treatment and, as a result, the Company discontinued hedge accounting for those derivatives in the year ended March 31, 2008. Ceasing hedge accounting did not have a material effect on the Company's reported financial position or cash flows.

(p) Net Income per Share

SFAS No. 128, "Earnings per Share" requires dual presentation of basic and diluted earnings per share ("EPS") with an appropriate reconciliation of both computations (see Note 13(b)). Basic EPS is computed based on the average number of shares of common stock outstanding during each period. Diluted EPS assumes the dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted in the issuance of common stock.

(q) Reclassification

Certain immaterial reclassifications have been made to the amounts as of and for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2007 in the accompanying consolidated financial statements to conform with the March 31, 2008 presentation.

(r) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquired entity over the net of the amounts assigned to assets acquired and liabilities assumed. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, or more often if events or circumstances indicate there may be impairment. The impairment test is a two-step process. The first step is to identify any potential impairment using a multiple-of-earnings approach to estimate the fair value of the reporting units. The fair values of the reporting units are then compared to their carrying value, including goodwill. If the carrying amounts of the reporting units exceed their fair value, a second step is performed to measure the amount of impairment, if any.

(s) New Accounting Standards

In September 2005, Statement of Position ("SOP") 05-1, "Accounting by Insurance Enterprises for Deferred Acquisition Costs in Connection with Modifications or Exchanges of Insurance Contracts," was issued. SOP 05-1 provides guidance on accounting for deferred acquisition costs on internal replacements of insurance and investment contracts other than those specifically described in SFAS No. 97. SOP 05-1 is effective for internal replacements occurring for fiscal year beginning after December 15, 2006. The Company adopted SOP 05-1 effective for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008. Significant portions of the insurance contracts of the Company are short duration contracts and the adoption of SOP 05-1 did not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements," was issued. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. In February 2008, FASB Staff Position ("FSP") No. FAS 157-1, "Application of FASB Statement No. 157 to FASB Statement No. 13 and Other Accounting Pronouncements That Address Fair Value Measurements for Purposes of Lease Classification or Measurement under Statement 13" and FSP No. FAS 157-2, "Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157," were issued. FSP No. FAS 157-1 removes certain leasing transactions from its scope and FSP No. FAS 157-2 partially delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for one year for certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities. The effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements is currently evaluated.

In February 2007, SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities," was issued. SFAS No. 159 provides companies with an option to report financial instruments and certain other items at fair value that are not currently required to be measured at fair value. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. The effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements is currently evaluated.

In December 2007, SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), "Business Combinations" ("SFAS No. 141R") was issued. SFAS No. 141R establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquired. SFAS No. 141R also establishes disclosure requirements to enable the evaluation of the nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 141R is applied prospectively to business combinations on and after the beginning of fiscal year beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 141R will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements is currently evaluated.

In December 2007, SFAS No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendment of ARB No. 51" was issued. SFAS No. 160 establishes accounting and reporting standards for ownership interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the parent, the amount of consolidated net income attributable to the parent and to the noncontrolling interest, changes in a parent's ownership interest, and the valuation of retained noncontrolling equity investments when a subsidiary is deconsolidated. SFAS No. 160 also establishes disclosure requirements that clearly identify and distinguish between the interests of the parent and the interests of the noncontrolling owners. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 160 will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements is currently evaluated.

In March, 2008, SFAS No. 161, "Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" was issued. SFAS No. 161 requires enhanced disclosures about an entity's derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the transparency of financial reporting. SFAS No. 161 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. The effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 161 will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements is currently evaluated.

In May, 2008, SFAS No. 163 "Accounting for Financial Guarantee Insurance Contracts, an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 60" was issued. SFAS No. 163 clarifies how SFAS No. 60 applies to financial guarantee insurance contracts, including the recognition and measurement of premium revenue and claim liabilities. SFAS No. 163 also requires expanded disclosures about financial guarantee insurance contracts. SFAS No. 163 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008 except for some disclosures. The effect that the adoption of SFAS No. 163 will have on the Company's consolidated financial statements is currently evaluated.

(3) Business Developments

On September 7, 2004, the Company signed a sales and purchase agreement with Aviva plc incorporated in the United Kingdom to acquire Aviva's general insurance operation in Asia.

With this acquisition, the Company acquired the general insurance operations in Singapore, Hong Kong and Thailand for a cost of ¥36,669 million in the year ended March 31, 2005. The excess of the cost over the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed was allocated to goodwill. Goodwill of ¥31,132 million was recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2005.

The Company acquired 80% of the outstanding shares of PT. Aviva Insurance in July 2005 and 51% of the outstanding shares of Aviva Insurance Berhad in September 2005, according to the sales and purchase agreement with Aviva plc for a cost of \(\xi\$11,702 million. The Company purchased another 47% of the outstanding shares of Aviva Insurance Berhad in December 2005 for a cost of \(\xi\$9,779 million.

In August 2005, the Company purchased 100% of the outstanding shares of Mingtai Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd. ("Mingtai"), which is the non-life insurer ranked second in the Taiwanese non-life insurance industry in terms of gross written premiums, for a cost of \(\frac{\pma}{30,324}\) million. Mingtai was renamed MSIG Mingtai Insurance Co., Ltd. effective July 1, 2008.

The excess of the cost over the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed was allocated to goodwill. Goodwill of ¥16,218 million by the purchase of the outstanding shares of Aviva Insurance Berhad and goodwill of ¥6,037 million by the purchase of the outstanding shares of Mingtai were recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2006.

In March 2007, the Company subscribed new shares of common stock that Mitsui Direct General Insurance Company, Limited ("MDGI") issued to increase capital and also purchased MDGI's outstanding shares.

As a result of these transactions, the Company acquired approximately 66% of the outstanding shares of MDGI for a cost of \times 19,898 million and MDGI became a subsidiary of the Company. The excess of the cost over the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed was allocated to goodwill. Goodwill of \times 11,286 million was recognized on the consolidated balance sheet as of March 31, 2007.

(4) Investments

The amortized cost of fixed maturity securities or cost of equity securities and money trusts and related fair values at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Securities held to maturity:

	Amortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains (Yen in t	Gross Unrealized Losses millions)	Fair Value
March 31, 2007:		(1011111		
Fixed maturity securities:				
Governments and government agencies and authorities other than U.S.	¥294,940	2,405	(1,192)	296,153
Other municipalities and political subdivisions	84,878	414	(540)	84,752
Other corporate bonds	4,397	5	(8)	4,394
Total securities held to maturity	¥384,215	2,824	(1,740)	385,299
	Amortized Cost	Gross Unrealized <u>Gains</u> (Yen in 1	Gross Unrealized Losses millions)	Fair Value
March 31, 2008:				
Fixed maturity securities:				
U.S. government and government agencies and authorities	¥ 4,254	_	_	4,254
Governments and government agencies and authorities other than U.S.	341,388	7,319	(1,347)	347,360
Other municipalities and political subdivisions	1,714	_	_	1,714
Other corporate bonds	102,118	3,789	(142)	105,765
Total securities held to maturity	¥449,474	11,108	(1,489)	459,093

Securities available for sale:

	Cost or Amortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains (Yen in n	Gross Unrealized Losses	Carrying Amount/ Fair Value
March 31, 2007:		(Ten in i		
Fixed maturity securities:				
U.S. government and government agencies and authorities	¥ 101,017	7,017	(1,014)	107,020
U.S. municipalities and political subdivisions	131	9	_	140
Other governments and government agencies and authorities	652,349	19,256	(1,570)	670,035
Other municipalities and political subdivisions	778,357	23,041	(2,689)	798,709
Convertibles and bonds with warrants attached	78	20.020	(0.0(0)	78
Other corporate bonds	1,711,944	38,938	(9,060)	1,741,822
Total fixed maturity securities	3,243,876	88,261	(14,333)	3,317,804
Equity securities	1,105,524	2,208,346	(1,296)	3,312,574
Total securities available for sale	¥4,349,400	2,296,607	(15,629)	6,630,378
	Cost or Amortized Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains (Yen in n	Gross Unrealized Losses	Carrying Amount/ Fair Value
March 31, 2008:		(Tell III II	illifolis)	
Fixed maturity securities:				
U.S. government and government agencies and authorities	¥ 113,676	7,520	(2,005)	119,191
U.S. municipalities and political subdivisions	125	3	_	128
Other governments and government agencies and authorities	685,783	26,717	(1,071)	711,429
Other municipalities and political subdivisions	716,210	18,956	(5,910)	729,256
Other corporate bonds	1,760,302	37,013	(23,134)	1,774,181
Total fixed maturity securities	3,276,096	90,209	(32,120)	3,334,185
Equity securities	1,141,048	1,436,514	(29,789)	2,547,773
Total securities available for sale	¥4,417,144	1,526,723	(61,909)	5,881,958

Trading securities:

	Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains (Yen in 1	Gross Unrealized Losses millions)	Fair Value
March 31, 2007: Money trusts included in short-term investments	¥ 51,298	80	(309)	51,069
	Cost	Gross Unrealized Gains (Yen in 1	Gross Unrealized Losses millions)	Fair Value
March 31, 2008: Money trusts included in short-term investments	¥ 50,121	948	(3,237)	47,832

The changes in net unrealized gains and losses on trading securities have been included in the accompanying consolidated statements of income as losses of ¥1,237 million, ¥226 million and ¥2,060 million for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

The amortized cost and fair values of investments in fixed maturity securities held to maturity and available for sale at March 31, 2008 by contractual maturity were as follows:

Securities held to maturity:

	Amortized Cost (Yen in	Fair Value millions)
Due within one year Due after one year through five years	¥ 8,162 62,265	8,172 63,995
Due after five years through ten years Due after ten years	164,604 214,443	171,556 215,370
Securities available for sale:	¥449,474	459,093
Securities available for sale.	Amortized Cost	Fair Value
		millions)
Due within one year Due after one year through five years	¥ 268,583 1,511,363	273,989 1,539,634
Due after five years through ten years Due after ten years	764,341 731,809	780,869 739,693
	¥3,276,096	3,334,185

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities because some issuers have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

The methods of determining the fair value of the Company's fixed maturity and equity securities are described in Note 16.

Gross unrealized losses on investment securities and the fair value of the related securities, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at March 31, 2007 and 2008, were as follows:

Securities held to maturity:

	Less than 12	months	12 months	or more	Total	
March 31, 2007:	Fair Value	Unrealized Losses	Fair Value (Yen in m	Unrealized Losses illions)	Fair Value	Unrealized Losses
Fixed maturities	¥52,772	(328)	80,353	(1,412)	133,125	(1,740)
	Less than 12		12 months		Total	
March 31, 2008:	Fair Value	Unrealized Losses	Fair Value (Yen in m	Unrealized Losses aillions)	Fair Value	Unrealized Losses
Fixed maturities	¥ 16,939	(170)	40,790	(1,319)	57,729	(1,489)
Securities available for sale:						
	Less than 12 r	nonths	12 months o	r more	Total	
March 31, 2007:	Fair Value	Unrealized Losses	Fair Value (Yen in m	Unrealized Losses illions)	Fair Value	Unrealized Losses
Fixed maturities Equity securities	¥313,774 23,962	(2,262) (751)	967,143 11,049	(12,071) (545)	1,280,917 35,011	(14,333) (1,296)
Total securities	¥337,736	(3,013)	978,192	(12,616)	1,315,928	(15,629)
	Less than 12 i		12 months o		Total	
March 31, 2008:	Fair Value	Unrealized Losses	Fair Value (Yen in m	Unrealized Losses illions)	Fair Value	Unrealized Losses
Fixed maturities Equity securities	¥502,809 249,126	(22,998) (29,067)	305,782 9,934	(9,122) (722)	808,591 259,060	(32,120) (29,789)
Total securities	¥751,935	(52,065)	315,716	(9,844)	1,067,651	(61,909)

Unrealized losses of fixed maturities were mainly caused by changes in interest rate. The majority of fixed securities have received high credit ratings, and the Company has the positive ability and intent to hold these securities until a market price recovery.

In evaluating the factors for securities available for sale, the Company presumes a decline in value to be other than temporary if the fair value of securities is 20 percent or more below its original cost for a 6-month period. In addition, the Company recognizes losses in situations where, even though the fair value has not remained 20 percent below its original cost for a 6-month period, it is considered that a decline of the fair value is other than temporary.

At March 31, 2007 and 2008, the Company determined the decline in value for securities with unrealized losses was not other than temporary in nature.

Gross realized and change in unrealized gains and losses from investments for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	Fixed Maturities	Equity Securities (Yen in m	Other Investments illions)	Total Gains
2006: Net realized gains (losses) Change in unrealized gains (losses) Combined realized and unrealized gains (losses)	¥ 3,332	57,348	(10,481)	50,199
	(66,874)	848,821	628	782,575
	¥(63,542)	906,169	(9,853)	832,774
2007	Fixed Maturities	Equity Securities (Yen in mi	Other Investments	Total Gains
2007: Net realized gains (losses) Change in unrealized gains Combined realized and unrealized gains	¥ 975	23,955	(615)	24,315
	30,486	179,805	(82)	210,209
	¥31,461	203,760	(697)	234,524
	Fixed Maturities	Equity Securities (Yen in m	Other Investments illions)	Total Losses
2008: Net realized gains (losses) Change in unrealized gains (losses) Combined realized and unrealized losses	¥ 6,273	10,788	(34,431)	(17,370)
	(15,839)	(800,325)	436	(815,728)
	¥ (9,566)	(789,537)	(33,995)	(833,098)

The net effect on accumulated other comprehensive income of unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale securities at March 31, 2007 and 2008 was as follows:

	Fixed Maturities	Equity Securities	Other <u>Investments</u>	Total Gains
March 31, 2007: Unrealized gains, net Deferred income taxes	¥73,928	2,207,050	in millions) 403	2,281,381 (1,026,400)
				¥ 1,254,981

	Fixed <u>Maturities</u>	Equity Securities (Yen in	Other <u>Investments</u> n millions)	Total Gains
March 31, 2008: Unrealized gains , net Deferred income taxes	¥58,089	1,406,725	839	1,465,653 (731,954)
				¥ 733,699

Proceeds and gross realized gains and losses from sales of securities available for sale for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Fixed maturity securities:

	2006	(Yen in millions)	2008
Gross realized gains Gross realized losses	¥ 7,095 (3,105)	7,747 (6,625)	10,251 (2,074)
Net realized gains	¥ 3,990	1,122	8,177
Proceeds from fixed maturity securities	¥553,057	449,649	412,764
Equity securities:			
	2006	2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Gross realized gains Gross realized losses	¥ 62,310 (1,722)	32,416 (874)	29,436 (1,735)
Net realized gains	¥ 60,588	31,542	27,701
Proceeds from equity securities	¥114,403	105,222	87,796

Bonds carried at ¥67,093 million at March 31, 2007 and ¥53,273 million at March 31, 2008, short-term investments carried at ¥140 million at March 31, 2007 and ¥568 million at March 31, 2008, cash equivalents carried at ¥22,420 million at March 31, 2007 and ¥3,584 million at March 31, 2008 and property and equipment carried at ¥533 million at March 31, 2008 were deposited with certain foreign government authorities and certain other parties as required by law and/or for other purposes.

The Company engages in securities lending transactions whereby certain securities from its portfolio are loaned to other institutions for short periods and cash collateral is obtained for some transactions. The loaned securities remain as recorded assets of the Company and the amount of the cash collateral are recorded as cash and cash equivalents. The carrying amount of loaned securities recorded as securities available for sale at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were \(\frac{1}{2}\)156,589 million and \(\frac{1}{2}\)152,412 million, respectively.

Mortgage loans on real estate are primarily mortgage loans on land and commercial buildings.

Policy loans are made to policyholders of long-term comprehensive insurance, long-term family traffic accident insurance and other long-term policies with refund at maturity. The maximum amount of loans is limited to 90% of return premiums on the policies.

Other long-term investments at March 31, 2007 and 2008 included the following:

	2007	2008
	(Yen in m	illions)
Mortgage loans on vessels and facilities	¥ 526	277
Collateral and guaranteed loans	376,405	403,488
Unsecured loans	337,662	345,467
Other investments	1,379	153
	¥715,972	749,385

Mortgage loans on vessels and facilities are generally joint loans in which other financial institutions participate. The Company participates in the hull insurance on these vessels.

Collateral loans are made generally to commercial enterprises and are secured principally by listed stocks and/or bonds of Japanese corporations. A portion of the loans is made jointly with other insurance companies.

Guaranteed loans are made generally to commercial enterprises, and payment is guaranteed principally by banks.

Unsecured loans are made to political subdivisions and independent government agencies and, on a selective basis, to corporate borrowers.

Certain guaranteed loans with the carrying amount of ¥18,941 million and ¥21,709 million were securitized in the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively. The amount of gains on the securitization were ¥210 million and ¥120 million for the years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively. There were no significant servicing assets and liabilities associated with the securitization at March 31, 2007 and 2008.

Short-term investments at March 31, 2007 and 2008 included the following:

		2008 millions)
Money trusts Invested cash Commercial paper Other	¥ 51,069 47,410 7,908 	47,832 56,948 7,620 7,686
	¥113,671	120,086

Call loans are short-term (overnight to three weeks) loans made to money market dealers and banks or securities houses through money market dealers. Call loans to money market dealers are secured by Japanese government bonds. Call loans to banks or securities houses are unsecured. The balance of call loans included in cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2007 and 2008 were ¥41,600 million and ¥39,900million, respectively.

The total recorded investment in impaired loans and the amount of the total valuation allowance at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

		n millions)
Recorded investment in impaired loans: Mortgage loans on real estate Mortgage loans on vessels and facilities Collateral and guaranteed loans Unsecured loans	¥ 1,160 4 — 3,185	1,150 4 1,724 1,575
	¥ 4,349	4,453
Valuation allowance: Mortgage loans on real estate Collateral and guaranteed loans Unsecured loans	¥ 259 — 692	254 104 294
	¥ 951	652

The recorded investment in loans of nonaccrual status was approximately \(\xi\)1,560 million and \(\xi\)2,574 million as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively. The recorded investment in loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing interest was approximately \(\xi\)1,032 million and \(\xi\)947 million as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

An analysis of activity in the total allowance for credit losses related to loans during the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 is as follows:

		(Yen in millions)	2008
Balance at beginning of year Credit to income Principal charge-offs	¥ 14,499 (2,082) (5,538)	6,879 (2,907) (2,322)	1,650 (428) (124)
Balance at end of year	¥ 6,879	1,650	1,098

The total allowance for credit losses related to loans at March 31, 2007 and 2008 includes an allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of ¥699 million and ¥446 million, respectively, relating to loans which were not categorized in the above impaired loans. This allowance for doubtful accounts has been calculated by multiplying actual bad debt ratios computed based on the actual bad debt amounts during the past periods against outstanding balances.

The average recorded investment in impaired loans was approximately ¥13,275 million, ¥6,651 million and ¥4,401 million in the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. The Company recognized interest income from impaired loans of ¥214 million, ¥109 million and ¥94 million in the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively, on a cash basis.

Other long-term investments include loans of ¥4 million as of March 31, 2007 and ¥8 million as of March 31, 2008 which had been non-income producing for the twelve months preceding each balance sheet date.

The components of net investment income for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	2006	2007	2008
		(Yen in millions)	
Interest on fixed maturities	¥ 76,713	89,052	89,704
Dividends from equity securities	60,339	66,828	69,050
Interest on mortgage loans on real estate	434	420	328
Rent from investment real estate	6,361	6,194	4,926
Interest on policy loans	1,286	1,326	1,352
Interest on other long-term investments	11,666	12,408	13,871
Interest on short-term investments	2,328	2,490	3,078
Other	7,646	11,070	12,480
Gross investment income	166,773	189,788	194,789
Less investment expenses	10,671	10,599	9,524
Net investment income	¥156,102	179,189	185,265

In accordance with the Company's internal policy, the Company's portfolio is broadly diversified to ensure that there is no significant concentration of credit risk with any individual counterparties or group of counterparties. The concentrations of credit risk exceeding 10 percent of total shareholders' equity as of March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	2007	2008
	(Yen in n	iillions)
Japanese government Toyota Motor Corporation and its affiliates	¥1,176,387 693,070	1,232,366 483,118

(5) Property and Equipment

A summary of property and equipment as of March 31, 2007 and 2008 is as follows:

	2007	2008
	(Yen in n	nillions)
Land	¥ 82,267	99,234
Buildings	265,194	302,910
Furniture and equipment	85,197	76,472
Construction in progress	10,791	357
	443,449	478,973
Less accumulated depreciation	(221,549)	(233,451)
	¥ 221,900	245,522

(6) Impairment Losses of Long-Lived Assets

The carrying amount of long-lived assets held for sale as of March 31, 2007 and 2008 were ¥530 million and ¥532 million, respectively. The impairment losses on long-lived assets held for sale, included in other expenses, were ¥7 million, ¥91 million and ¥487 million for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. Such impairment losses on long-lived assets were recognized in the property and casualty insurance segment under SFAS No. 131.

The impairment loss on long-lived assets to be held and used, which arose from investment real estate, was included in net realized gains (losses) on investments, in the amount of ¥873 million, ¥1,038 million and ¥3,572 million for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. The impairment loss on long-lived assets to be held and used, which arose from property and equipment, was included in other expenses in the amount of ¥85 million, ¥76 million and ¥185 million for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. Those impairment losses on long-lived assets were recognized in the property and casualty insurance segment under SFAS No. 131.

(7) Goodwill

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill during the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 are as follows:

		(Yen in millions)	
Balance at beginning of year Acquisition Change in foreign currency exchange rates	¥31,931 22,254 3,510	57,695 11,286 1,031	70,012 — (764)
Balance at end of year	¥ 57,695	70,012	69,248

All goodwill recognized on the consolidated balance sheets were assigned to the property and casualty insurance segment.

No impairment loss on goodwill was recorded for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. See Note 3 for further information.

(8) Liabilities for Losses and Claims

Activities in the liabilities for losses and claims and claim adjustment expenses for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 are summarized as follows:

	2006	(Yen in millions)	2008
Balance at beginning of year	¥ 937,057	1,056,517	1,153,550
Less: reinsurance recoverable	234,097	233,369	237,719
Net balance at beginning of year	702,960	823,148	915,831
Incurred related to:			
Current year insured events	1,009,061	1,049,859	1,094,832
Prior year insured events	8,547	14,834	(7,191)
Total incurred	1,017,608	1,064,693	1,087,641
Paid related to:			
Current year insured events	517,384	546,938	573,389
Prior year insured events	390,252	437,353	485,355
Total paid	907,636	984,291	1,058,744
Adjustment in connection with the acquisition	10,216	12,281	
Net balance at end of year	823,148	915,831	944,728
Plus reinsurance recoverable	233,369	237,719	253,092
Balance at end of year	¥1,056,517	1,153,550	1,197,820

Incurred losses presented in the above table include those related to life insurance in the amount of ¥67,130 million, ¥85,036 million and ¥99,014 million for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively, which are included in policyholder benefits for life insurance contracts in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

(9) Investment Deposits by Policyholders

Certain property and casualty insurance policies offered by the Company include a savings feature in addition to the insurance coverage provided under the policy. In addition, certain types of personal injury and fire insurance policies are available with a deposit premium rider. The premium received from the policyholder is split between the insurance coverage and the savings portion of the policy based upon rates approved by the Financial Services Agency of Japan. Policy terms are mainly from 3 to 10 years.

The key terms of this type of policy are fixed at the inception of the policy and remain in effect during the policy period. The policyholder can terminate the savings-type insurance contract before the maturity date with a payment of a commission to the Company that equals the interest earned for approximately six months. The policyholder is informed at policy inception of the maturity value related to the savings portion of the policy. The maturity value of the policy represents the savings portion of the premium paid by the policyholder plus credited interest. The maturity value is paid on the policy maturity date unless a total loss as defined by the policy occurs during the policy term. No amount is paid under the savings portion of the policy if a total loss occurs during the policy term.

It is regarded as a total loss when an aggregate amount of claims paid in connection with accidents covered by the policy occurs within any one insurance year during the policy terms of insurance, regardless of whether claims are caused by one or more accidents, and reaches the insured amount covered by the policy. If a total loss occurs, the policy is immediately terminated. The annual frequency of total loss of major savings-type insurance contracts ranges from 0.04% to 0.26%.

The contractual rate of interest credited to the policy varies by product and is established at the beginning of the policy. The committed interest rate cannot be changed by the Company at any time during the policy term. Committed interest rates ranged from 0.1% to 1.5% for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008.

Premiums paid for the indemnity portion are allocated to income ratably over the terms of the related insurance contract. Premiums paid for the savings portion are credited to investment deposits by policyholders. Interest credited to investment deposits by policyholders is charged to income and presented as investment income credited to investment deposits by policyholders in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. When a total loss occurs, the remaining balance in investment deposits by policyholders corresponding to the total loss contract is reversed and recorded as premium revenue.

(10) Short-term Debt and Long-term Debt

Short-term debt and long-term debt as of March 31, 2007 and 2008 consist of the following:

	2007	2008
	(Yen in r	nillions)
0.40% Japanese yen debentures, due 2007	¥ 30,000	_
0.80% Japanese yen debentures, due 2009	70,000	70,000
1.31% Japanese yen debentures, due 2012	<u> </u>	30,000
Commercial paper	7,908	37,604
	107,908	137,604
Less current portion classified as short-term debt	(37,907)	(37,604)
Less unamortized discount	(1)	(8)
Total long-term debt	¥ 70,000	99,992

The Company issued \$70,000 million of 0.80% unsecured debenture in November 2004 and \$30,000 million of 1.31% unsecured debenture in November 2007 with bullet repayment of maturity due December 18, 2009 and December 20, 2012, respectively.

(11) Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Company seeks to reduce the loss that may arise from catastrophes or other events that cause unfavorable underwriting results by reinsuring certain levels of risk in various areas of exposure with other insurance enterprises or reinsurers. The Company cedes a portion of the risks it underwrites and pays reinsurance premiums based upon the risks subject to reinsurance contracts. The Company utilizes a variety of reinsurance arrangements, which are classified into two basic types: proportional reinsurance and excess-of-loss reinsurance. Proportional reinsurance is the type of reinsurance where the proportion of claims incurred is proportionate to the share of premiums received. This type of reinsurance is used as a means to limit a loss amount on an individual-risk basis. The excess-of-loss type of reinsurance indemnifies the ceding company against a specified level of losses on underlying insurance policies in excess of a specified agreed amount. Excess-of-loss reinsurance is usually arranged in layers to secure greater capacity by offering various levels of risk exposure with different terms for reinsurers with different preferences. Although a reinsurer is liable to the Company to the extent of the risks assumed, the Company remains liable as the direct insurer to policyholders on all such risks. Failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in losses to the Company. However, considering the Company's applying strict standards when choosing reinsurers in terms of credit risk, no material amount is believed to be uncollectible and no provision has been made for this contingency.

At March 31, 2007 and 2008, there were no significant concentrations with a single reinsurer for reinsurance receivables and prepaid reinsurance premiums.

The effects of reinsurance on the results of operations of property and casualty insurance and life insurance for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

Property and casualty insurance:

	2006	2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Premiums written: Direct Assumed Ceded	¥1,535,379 250,396 (327,268)	1,575,476 265,857 (351,954)	1,625,732 264,880 (352,996)
Net premiums written	¥1,458,507	1,489,379	1,537,616
	2006	2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Premiums earned: Direct Assumed Ceded	¥1,497,701 250,333 (325,233)	1,569,975 264,424 (365,319)	1,597,352 266,471 (361,138)
Net premiums earned	¥1,422,801	1,469,080	1,502,685
	2006	2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Losses and claims incurred: Direct Assumed Ceded	¥ 925,201 199,416 (242,994)	918,117 188,034 (196,495)	947,824 181,236 (222,803)
Net losses and claims incurred	¥ 881,623	909,656	906,257
Life insurance:			
Premiums earned:		2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Direct Ceded	¥179,963 (533)	194,197 (646)	193,392 (661)
Net premiums earned	¥179,430	193,551	192,731
	2006	2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Policyholder benefits: Direct Ceded	¥151,669 (304)	156,920 (329)	156,714 (31)
Net policyholder benefits	¥151,365	156,591	156,683

(12) Income Taxes

Total income taxes for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were allocated as follows:

		(Yen in millions)	2008
Taxes on income	¥ 60,527	52,955	48,137
Taxes on other comprehensive income: Net unrealized gains on investments	281,791	75,566	(296,550)
Net losses on derivative instruments Minimum pension liability adjustment	(58) (380)	1 (8)	(14)
Adjustment upon adoption of SFAS No. 158 Pension liability adjustments	` <u>_</u>	(5,544)	(6,572)
Tonsion habitity adjustments			
	¥341,880	122,970	(254,999)

The components of income before income tax expense and income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	2006	2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Income before income tax expense: Domestic Foreign	¥173,072 7,905	143,317 24,122	147,619 6,140
Poleign	1,903	24,122	0,140
Total	¥180,977	167,439	153,759
Income tax expense:			
Current:			
Domestic	¥ 32,547	38,473	16,575
Foreign	2,950	5,274	8,793
Total current income tax expense	35,497	43,747	25,368
Deferred:			
Domestic	25,059	8,119	32,623
Foreign	(29)	1,089	(9,854)
Total deferred income tax expense	25,030	9,208	22,769
Total income tax expense	¥ 60,527	52,955	48,137

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to a number of taxes based on income, which in the aggregate resulted in a statutory tax rate of approximately 36%.

The effective tax rates of the Company for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 differed from the Japanese statutory income tax rates for the following reasons:

	2006	2007	2008
Japanese statutory income tax rate Tax credit for dividends received Expenses not deductible for tax purposes Other	36.0% (3.1) 0.6 (0.1)	36.0% (4.3) 0.7 (0.8)	36.0% (5.1) 0.7 (0.3)
Effective tax rate	<u>33.4</u> %	<u>31.6</u> %	<u>31.3</u> %

The tax effects of temporary differences that gave rise to significant portions of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	2007	2008
	(Yen in mi	llions)
Deferred tax assets:		
Reported and estimated losses and claims	¥ 44,300	44,899
Adjustment expenses	11,161	13,022
Retirement and severance benefits	36,086	41,656
Computer software development costs	12,598	14,037
Impairment of investments	41,708	45,755
Cost adjustments to investments recognized in income	37,409	37,047
Other	32,581	18,585
Total gross deferred tax assets	215,843	215,001
Less valuation allowance	(5,571)	(7,005)
Total net deferred tax assets	210,272	207,996
Deferred tax liabilities:		
Unearned premiums	113,901	118,924
Deferred policy acquisition costs	125,699	123,985
Property and equipment	4,042	6,099
Cost adjustments to investments recognized in income	20,524	19,118
Unrealized appreciation of investments and derivatives	821,116	526,154
Other	3,850	13,694
Total gross deferred tax liabilities	1,089,132	807,974
Total net deferred tax liabilities	¥ 878,860	599,978

At March 31, 2007 and 2008, other assets included deferred tax assets in the amount of ¥2,305 million and ¥5,175 million, respectively.

The net change in total valuation allowance for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 was an increase of ¥86 million, ¥5,346 million and ¥1,434 million, respectively.

Subsequently recognized tax benefits related to the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2008, will be allocated as follows:

	(Yen	in millions)
Income tax benefit that would be reported in the consolidated statement of income	¥	1,926
Goodwill and other noncurrent intangible assets		5,079
Total	¥	7,005

At March 31, 2008, the Company's subsidiaries had operating loss carryforwards for tax purposes of ¥32,078 million, which expire as follows:

	(Yen in millions))
Years ending March 31:		
2009	¥ 3,908	,
2010	3,626)
2011	1,628	,
2012	1,995	j
2013	1,198	,
2014	1,163	,
2015	2,409)
Indefinite	16,151	_
Total	¥ 32,078	3

The Company intends to reinvest certain undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries for an indefinite period of time. As of March 31, 2008, a deferred tax liability was not recognized for ¥63,117 million of undistributed earnings of these subsidiaries where the Company intends to reinvest indefinitely. Determining the tax liability that would arise if these earnings were remitted is not practicable.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible and tax-planning strategies relating to the future reversal of temporary differences.

Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible differences, net of the recorded valuation allowances, at March 31, 2008.

The Company and its subsidiaries adopted FASB Interpretation No. 48 ("Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes— an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109") effective April 1, 2007. The unrecognized tax benefits as of April 1, 2007 and for the twelve-month ended March 31, 2008 were not material. The Company and its subsidiaries do not expect that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease within 12 months of March 31, 2008.

The total amounts of penalties and interest expense related to unrecognized tax benefits in the consolidated balance sheets as of April 1, 2007 and March 31, 2008, and in the consolidated statements of income for the year ended March 31, 2008 were not material.

The Company and its subsidiaries file tax returns in Japan and certain foreign tax jurisdictions, and they are periodically audited by Japanese and foreign taxing authorities. The Company has been audited by the Japanese tax authorities through the tax year ended March 31, 2007.

(13) Stockholders' Equity

(a) Common Stock

The amounts of statutory capital and surplus of the Company, on a non-consolidated basis, as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, are presented as follows:

	2007	2008
	(Yen in m	illions)
Common stock	¥ 139,596	139,596
Additional paid-in capital	93,139	93,107
Legal reserve	46,488	46,488
Retained earnings	548,682	467,224
Unrealized gain on securities, net of tax	1,395,700	862,122
Deferred hedge losses, net of tax	(4,577)	528
Treasury stock	(91,143)	
Total statutory equity	¥2,127,885	1,609,065

The Company's statutory basis net income for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 was ¥64,842 million, ¥55,352 million and ¥38, 366 million, respectively.

The minimum capital requirement of the Insurance Business Law of Japan for a Japanese insurance company is ¥1,000 million on a statutory basis.

The Company and its domestic insurance subsidiaries are required to maintain solvency margin ratios of 200% or higher in accordance with the solvency margin regulations stipulated by the Japanese regulatory authorities. The solvency margin regulations are based on factors mainly for underwriting risks, investment risks and large catastrophe risks. The solvency margin must be supported by equity and other resources, including unrealized gains and losses on certain investments and catastrophe reserves based on the financial accounting standards of Japan. At March 31, 2008, the solvency margin ratio of the Company was 955.4% and those ratios of its domestic non-life and life insurance subsidiaries were 776.8% and 2,124.0%, respectively.

The amounts of statutory net income for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 and shareholders' equity at March 31, 2007 and 2008 of the consolidated insurance subsidiaries were as follows:

	2006	2007	2008
		(Yen in millions)	
Statutory net income:			
Property and casualty	¥ 2,491	32,792	11,453
Life	59	22	55
Statutory shareholders' equity:			
Property and casualty	¥164,502	265,969	257,372
Life	47,676	51,980	57,486

The amounts of undistributed retained earnings of affiliates which were accounted for by the equity method were \$10,850 million and \$18,206 million at March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

(b) Retained Earnings

Article 15 of the Insurance Business Law of Japan requires insurance companies to set aside an amount equal to 20% of all appropriations of earnings, such as cash dividends, as legal reserve until the aggregate amount of such reserve and additional paid-in capital reaches stated capital. This reserve is not available for dividends but may be used to reduce a deficit or may be transferred to stated capital. The Company's appropriations charged to unappropriated retained earnings for the year ended March 31, 2008 were subject to the legal reserve requirement.

The reserve for price fluctuation is required under Article 115 of the Insurance Business Law of Japan. This reserve provides for possible losses arising from price fluctuations of securities and adverse changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company may reduce this reserve by (1) the amount of net loss resulting from sales of securities or (2) the amount for which permission is granted by the Financial Services Agency of Japan, for any other purpose.

The amount available for dividends is based on the Company's non-consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Japanese Corporate Law and the Insurance Business Law of Japan and was \(\frac{4}{467}\),224 million as of March 31, 2008. The adjustments included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements to have them conform with U.S. GAAP, but not recorded in the books of account, have no effect on the determination of the amount available for dividends under the Japanese Corporate Law and the Insurance Business Law of Japan.

Cash dividends and appropriations to the legal reserve charged to unappropriated retained earnings for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 represent dividends paid out during those years and the related appropriations to the legal reserve. Provision has neither been made in the accompanying consolidated financial statements for the dividends of ¥9.00 per share totaling ¥12,640 million, subsequently proposed by the Board of Directors and, on June 26, 2008, approved by the shareholders, nor for the related appropriation to the legal reserve.

The reconciliation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is not reported because there are no diluted shares.

The components of the basic net income per share are as follows:

	2006	(Yen in millions)	2008
Net income available to common shareholders	¥119,890	113,916	104,796
	2006 (Num	2007 of shares in thousa	2008 ands)
Weighted average common shares outstanding	1,425,419	1,419,672	1,410,863
	2006	2007 (Yen)	2008
Earnings per share — basic	¥ 84.11	80.24	74.28

(c) Other Comprehensive Income

Changes in accumulated other comprehensive income for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	2006	2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Foreign currency translation adjustments: Balance at beginning of period Current-period change Balance at end of period	¥ (16,119) 15,514 (605)	(605) 10,950 10,345	10,345 (4,015) 6,330
Unrealized gains on securities, net of tax: Balance at beginning of period Current-period change Balance at end of period	619,887 500,810 1,120,697	1,120,697 135,407 1,256,104	1,256,104 (526,138) 729,966
Net gains on derivative instruments, net of tax: Balance at beginning of period Current-period change Balance at end of period	125 (102) 23	23 1 24	24 (24)
Minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax: Balance at beginning of period Current-period change Adjustment upon adoption of SFAS No.158 Balance at end of period	(791) ————————————————————————————————————	(791) (15) <u>806</u>	
Pension liability adjustments: Balance at beginning of period Current-period change Adjustment upon adoption of SFAS No.158 Balance at end of period			(10,707) (11,922) ———————————————————————————————————
Total accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax: Balance at beginning of period Current-period change Adjustment upon adoption of SFAS No.158	603,893 515,431	1,119,324 146,343 (9,901)	1,255,766 (542,099)
Balance at end of period	¥1,119,324	1,255,766	713,667

The tax effect allocated to each component of other comprehensive income and the reclassification adjustments for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	Before Tax Amount	Tax Benefit (Expense) (Yen in millions)	Net-of-Tax Amount
2006:	V 15 514		15 51 4
Foreign currency translation adjustments	¥ 15,514	_	15,514
Unrealized gains on securities:	920 794	(200.062)	521 722
Unrealized holding gains arising during period Less: reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income	830,784 (48,183)	(299,062) 17,271	531,722 (30,912)
· ·			
Net unrealized gains on securities	782,601	(281,791)	500,810
Net losses on derivative instruments:	(0)	4	(5)
Net gains on derivative instruments arising during period	(9)	4	(5)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income	(151)	54	(97)
Net losses on derivative instruments	(160)	58	(102)
Minimum pension liability adjustment	(1,171)	380	(791)
Other comprehensive income	¥796,784	(281,353)	515,431
2007:			
Foreign currency translation adjustments	¥ 10,950	_	10,950
Unrealized gains on securities:			
Unrealized holding gains arising during period	248,550	(89,095)	159,455
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income	(37,577)	13,529	(24,048)
Net unrealized gains on securities	210,973	(75,566)	135,407
Net losses on derivative instruments:		<u></u>	
Net losses on derivative instruments arising during period	139	(50)	89
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income	(137)	49	(88)
Net losses on derivative instruments	2	(1)	1
Minimum pension liability adjustment	(23)	8	(15)
Other comprehensive income	¥221,902	(75,559)	146,343

	Before Tax Amount	Tax Benefit (Expense) (Yen in millions)	Net-of-Tax Amount
2008:			
Foreign currency translation adjustments	¥ (4,015)	_	(4,015)
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities:			
Unrealized holding gains arising during period	(765,548)	275,355	(490,193)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income	(57,140)	21,195	(35,945)
Net unrealized gains on securities	(822,688)	296,550	(526,138)
Net gains on derivative instruments:			
Net gains on derivative instruments arising during period	_	_	_
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income	(38)	14	(24)
Net gains on derivative instruments	(38)	14	(24)
Pension liability adjustments:			
Pension liability adjustments arising during period	(16,190)	5,753	(10,437)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains realized in net income	(2,304)	819	(1,485)
Pension liability adjustments	(18,494)	6,572	(11,922)
Other comprehensive income	¥(845,235)	303,136	(542,099)

(14) Retirement and Severance Benefits

The Company has defined benefit plans and a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit plans consist of an unfunded lump-sum payment benefit plan and funded non-contributory pension plans covering substantially all employees. Under the plans, employees are entitled to lump-sum or annuity payments based on the current rate of pay and length of service at retirement or termination of employment for reasons other than dismissal for cause. Directors and statutory auditors are not covered by the above plans and their benefits are accrued as earned.

On April 1, 2005, a defined contribution plan was transferred from a portion of defined benefit plan in accordance with SFAS No.88, "Employers' Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plan and for Termination Benefits". The transfer caused settlements and curtailments and the Company recognized a net gain of \(\frac{\pmathbf{Y}}{2},485\) million, which consists of \(\frac{\pmathbf{Y}}{23},738\) million of gain by decrease of plan assets at fair value, \(\frac{\pmathbf{Y}}{3},376\) million of loss by depreciation of unrecognized net loss, and \(\frac{\pmathbf{Y}}{449}\) million of gain by depreciation of unrecognized prior service cost.

On March 31, 2007, the Company adopted the recognition provisions of SFAS No.158, "Employers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans — an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)".

SFAS No.158 requires the recognition of the overfunded or unfunded status of defined benefit plans as an asset or liability in the statement of financial position and the recognition of changes in that funded status in comprehensive income in the year in which the changes occur. Incremental effect of applying SFAS No.158 as of March 31, 2007 was as follows:

	Before application of SFAS No.158	Adjustments	After application of SFAS No.158
	51'A5 N0.136	(Yen in millions)	31'A3 N0.130
Retirement and severance benefits	¥(83,002)	(15,445)	(98,447)
Deferred income taxes	388	5,544	5,931
Accumulated other comprehensive income	806	9,901	10,707

The components of net periodic benefit cost for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	2006	2007	2008
		(Yen in millions)	
Components of net periodic benefit cost:			
Service cost	¥ 10,896	11,277	11,340
Interest cost	5,239	5,341	5,372
Expected return on plan assets	(4,234)	(4,894)	(5,002)
Amortization of prior service cost	(2,509)	(2,509)	(2,509)
Recognized actuarial loss	1,565	191	205
Net periodic benefit cost	¥ 10,957	9,406	9,406

Reconciliations of beginning and ending balances of the benefit obligations and the fair value of the plan assets for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	2006	2007 (Yen in millions)	2008
Change in benefit obligations:	V270 700	262.227	265.062
Benefit obligations at beginning of year	¥279,799	262,327	265,063
Adjustment in connection with the acquisition Service cost	3,269 10,896	 11,277	11,340
Interest cost	5,239	5,341	5,372
Plan participants' contributions	3,239	3,341	3,372 4
Actuarial loss (gain)	(1,141)	(1,618)	1,688
Benefits paid	(12,000)	(12,268)	(11,602)
Benefit obligation transferred to defined contribution plan	(23,738)	(12,200)	(11,002)
Benefit obligations at end of year	¥262,327	265,063	271,865
Change in plan assets:			
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year	¥159,474	163,095	166,616
Adjustment in connection with the acquisition	139	´ _	´ —
Actual return on plan assets	18,848	4,518	(9,719)
Employer contributions	9,067	4,115	3,624
Plan participants' contributions	3	4	4
Benefits paid	(6,111)	(5,116)	(4,947)
Assets transferred to defined contribution plan	(18,325)		
Fair value of plan assets at end of year	¥163,095	166,616	155,578
Funded status	¥ (99,232)	(98,447)	(116,287)
Unrecognized actuarial loss	26,271		
Unrecognized prior service cost	(10,739)		
Net amount recognized	¥(83,700)		
Amounts recognized in the balance sheets consist of:			
Retirement and severance benefits	¥ (84,544)	(98,447)	(116,287)
Intangible assets	53	() () () () () () () () () ()	(110, 2 07)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, gross of tax	<u>791</u>		
Total	¥(83,700)	(98,447)	(116,287)
Pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:			
Projected benefit obligation	¥262,327	265,063	271,865
Accumulated benefit obligation	225,695	234,207	241,189
Fair value of plan assets	163,095	166,616	155,578
r	,	,	, 0

The Company uses a measurement date of March 31 for all of its pension and severance plans.

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income, pre-tax at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	2007	2008
	(Yen in n	nillions)
Net actuarial loss	¥24,869	40,854
Net prior service cost	(8,231)	(5,722)

Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income, pre-tax expected to be recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost over the next fiscal year are as follows:

 $\frac{2009}{(\text{Yen in millions})}$ Net actuarial loss
Net prior service cost $\frac{2009}{(\text{Yen in millions})}$

The accumulated benefit obligation for the pension plan was \(\frac{\text{\frac{\text{\frac{\text{\frac{2}}{2}}}}{234,207}}{207}\) million and \(\frac{\text{\frac{\text{\frac{\text{\frac{2}}}}}}{2007}\) and 2008, respectively.

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations at March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	2006 2007		2008
Discount rate	2.00%	2.00%	1.50% to 2.00%
Rate of increase in future compensation	4.10% to 4.60%	4.10% to 4.60%	4.10% to 4.60%

Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net cost for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	2006	2007	2008
Discount rate	2.00%	2.00%	1.50% to 2.00%
Expected long-term return on plan assets	3.00%	3.00%	3.00%
Rate of increase in future compensation	3.90% to 4.60%	4.10% to 4.60%	4.10% to 4.60%

The discount rate is determined by reference to the Moody's Aa corporate bond and Japan government bond at the measurement date, March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, based on the expected terms of benefit obligations.

The Company determines its expected long-term rate of return based on the expected long-term return of various asset categories in which it invests in consideration of the current expectations for future returns and the historical returns of each plan asset category.

The asset allocation of the Company's pension benefits at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	2007	2008
Fixed maturities	60.8%	69.0%
Equity securities	33.3%	24.5%
Cash and cash equivalents	5.9%	6.5%

2000

(Yen in millions)

The Company's investment policies are designed to provide long-range stability of investment profit for ensuring adequate plan assets are available to provide future payments of pension benefits to eligible participants. The Company endeavors to obtain better performance more than earnings from the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets. Plan assets are invested in individual equities and fixed maturities using the guidelines of the model portfolio with a consideration of its performance, expected returns and risks. The Company evaluates its plan asset allocation and can change its portfolio allocation as needed.

The amounts contributed to defined contribution plans approximated ¥1,338 million, ¥1,406 million and ¥1,475 million for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

The Company forecasts to contribute \(\frac{4}{3}\),450 million to the defined benefit pension plans in the year ending March 31, 2009.

Expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit pension plan are as follows:

	(1 cm m mimons)
Years ending March 31:	
2009	¥11,609
2010	10,676
2011	11,613
2012	12,203
2013	13,035
2014-2018	67,773

(15) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company utilizes derivative financial instruments (a) to manage interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk arising from its fixed maturities portfolio and (b) to generate trading revenues and fee income. All derivatives are recognized on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value as other assets or other liabilities.

All derivative transactions are controlled in accordance with the Company's risk management rules. Under these rules, the purpose of derivative financial instruments is predetermined in writing, the balance of trading derivatives is limited to the extent permitted by the internal guidelines and derivative instruments entered into for hedging purposes require the advance approval of management. The Company's portfolio is broadly diversified to ensure that there is no significant concentration of credit risk with any individual counterparty or group of counterparties. The Company's policies prescribe monitoring of creditworthiness and exposure on a counterparty-by-counterparty basis. Back-office functions, such as settlements or monitoring, are designed independently from the function responsible for dealings.

Derivatives used for interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk management

The Company uses interest rate swaps, currency swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge the exposure to variability in expected future cash flows arising from fixed maturity securities available for sale. Such swaps are accounted for as cash flow hedges, in which changes in the fair value of the hedging derivatives are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income. Such deferred amounts are subsequently reclassified into net investment income when the hedged interest cash flows affect earnings. The amounts of the hedges' ineffectiveness or components of derivative instruments' gain or loss excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness for the years ended March 31, 2006 and 2007 were immaterial. The Company reconsidered the cost-effectiveness of hedge accounting treatment for those instruments and, as a result, the Company discontinued hedge accounting in the year ended March 31, 2008. Ceasing hedge accounting did not have a material effect on the Company's reported financial position or cash flows.

Derivatives trading revenues

The Company uses a variety of derivative instruments, such as interest rate futures, forwards and options, interest rate and currency swaps, bond futures and options, foreign exchange forwards and options and credit derivatives, and non-derivative instruments, such as weather derivatives, to generate trading revenues and fee income. Changes in fair value of these derivatives are reported in net realized gains (losses) on investments.

(16) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair values of the financial instruments at March 31, 2007 and 2008 were as follows:

	2007		2008	
	Carrying	Estimated	Carrying	Estimated
	Amount	Fair Value	Amount	Fair Value
		(Yen in r	nillions)	
Financial assets:				
Fixed maturities	¥ 3,702,019	3,703,103	3,783,659	3,793,278
Equity securities	3,312,574	3,312,574	2,547,773	2,547,773
Mortgage loans on real estate	11,511	11,317	9,859	9,682
Policy loans	38,523	38,523	39,536	39,536
Other long-term investments	715,972	703,909	749,385	736,117
Short-term investments	113,671	113,671	120,086	120,086
Cash and cash equivalents	369,941	369,941	368,290	368,290
Investments in affiliates	46,198	46,198	56,351	56,351
Indebtedness from affiliates	3,008	2,901	2,961	2,808
Accrued investment income	23,698	23,698	24,798	24,798
Premiums receivable and agents' balances	133,358	133,358	140,562	140,562
Weather derivatives	745	745	453	453
Derivative assets:				
Foreign exchange contracts	69	69	599	599
Interest rate contracts	3,679	3,679	13,639	13,639
Bond and equity index contracts	172	172	66	66
Credit derivatives	1,585	1,585	89	89
Commodity contracts	959	959	2,099	2,099
Financial liabilities:				
Investment deposits by policyholders	¥(2,196,614)	(2,453,492)	(2,119,153)	(2,371,996)
Indebtedness to affiliates	(3,262)	(2,433,452) $(3,262)$	(2,115,133) $(2,232)$	(2,371,330) $(2,232)$
Short-term debt	(37,907)	(37,907)	(37,604)	(37,604)
Long-term debt	(70,000)	(69,531)	(99,992)	(100,051)
Weather derivatives	(660)	(660)	(161)	(161)
Derivative liabilities:	(000)	(000)	(101)	(101)
	(0,006)	(0,006)	(6.275)	(6.275)
Foreign exchange contracts	(9,006)	(9,006)	(6,275)	(6,275)
Interest rate contracts	(2,434)	(2,434)	(7,269)	(7,269)
Bond and equity index contracts	(12)	(12)	(212)	(212)
Credit derivatives	(135)	(135)	(40,010)	(40,010)
Commodity contracts	(958)	(958)	(2,097)	(2,097)

The methodologies and assumptions used to estimate the fair values of financial instruments are as follows:

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, policy loans, accrued investment income, premiums receivable and agents' balances and short-term debt approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

(a) Investments in Fixed Maturities and Equity Securities

The fair values of fixed maturity securities are estimated based on quoted market prices for these or similar securities.

The fair values of equity securities are estimated based on quoted market prices.

(b) Investments in Mortgage Loans and Other Long-term Investments

The fair values of loans and other long-term investments with fixed interest rates are estimated by discounting future cash flows using estimates of market rates for securities with similar characteristics.

The carrying amounts of investments with floating interest rates approximate their fair values. The fair value of consumer loans, which are included in other long-term investments, in the amount of \(\frac{4}356,856\) million and \(\frac{4}380,353\) million at March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively, approximates the carrying amount. The floating and fixed rates on consumer loans in the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 range from approximately 1.0% to 9.0%, and the remaining loan periods are from approximately six months to 35 years.

(c) Short-term Investments

The fair values of short-term investments where quoted market prices are available are estimated using quoted market prices. The carrying amounts for other instruments approximate their fair values because of the short maturities of such instruments.

(d) Investments in and Indebtedness from Affiliates

The fair values of loans to affiliates with fixed interest rates are estimated by discounting future cash flows using the long-term prime rate at the end of the year. The fair values of investments are estimated using quoted market prices for these or similar securities. The carrying amounts for other indebtedness approximate their fair values.

(e) Investment Deposits by Policyholders

The fair values of investment deposits by policyholders are estimated by discounting future cash flows using the interest rates currently being offered for similar contracts.

(f) Indebtedness to affiliates and Long-term Debt

The fair values of these financial instruments are estimated using quoted market prices for these or similar characteristic instruments.

(g) Derivative Financial Instruments

Fair values of forward and futures contracts are estimated based on the closing market prices at the major markets.

Fair values of swap contracts are estimated based on the discounted values of future cash flows.

Fair values of option contracts and credit derivative contracts are estimated based on internally established models with consideration given to external models or based on quotes from brokers.

(17) Variable Interest Entities

The Company consolidates three entities under the provision of FIN46R.

The Company holds the subordinated notes issued by VIEs formed for the purpose of guaranteeing the obligation of the Company under the reinsurance agreements. The VIEs hold U.S. government securities to collateralize the guarantee and the Company absorbs a majority of the VIEs' expected losses and receives a majority of the VIEs' expected residual returns. The carrying values of the VIEs' investments were \pm 15,008 million and \pm 15,871 million at March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively, which were included in the consolidated balance sheets.

The Company engages in certain structured transactions, mainly securitization of independent third parties' assets through a VIE. The Company provides guarantee insurance for the VIE which is involved in the asset-backed securities business where it helps meet customers' financing needs by providing access to the commercial paper markets. The Company guarantees the redemption of commercial paper issued by the VIE and the Company absorbs a majority of the VIE's expected losses. The assets and liabilities of the VIE amounted to \(\frac{\frac{\text{47}}{910}}{910}\) million and \(\frac{\frac{\text{47}}{7623}}{910}\) million at March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively, which was included in the consolidated balance sheets.

A certain consolidated subsidiary holds significant variable interests in VIEs which transact credit derivative contracts with other entities and transfer the risk of the referenced credit to the consolidated subsidiary through the guarantee insurance contracts. The consolidated subsidiary also holds significant variable interests in the VIEs which were structured by other parties for the purpose of project financing. As a means of ensuring timely repayment of the loan, the consolidated subsidiary provides limited credit enhancement with the VIEs through the guarantee insurance contracts. The consolidated subsidiary does not retain a first-risk-of-loss position and does not absorb a majority of these VIEs' expected losses and the VIEs were accordingly not consolidated in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. The maximum potential loss associated with those VIEs is estimated to be \$96,066 million as of March 31, 2008.

(18) Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

At March 31, 2007 and 2008, commitments outstanding for the purchase of property and equipment amounted to approximately \(\xi\)22,806 million and \(\xi\)40,104 million, respectively. At March 31, 2007 and 2008, commitments outstanding for the purchase of investment real estate amounted to approximately \(\xi\)3,489 million and nil, respectively.

The Company is contingently liable for various financial guarantees totaling \(\frac{\pman}{1}\),237 million as of March 31, 2007 and \(\frac{\pman}{5}\)589 million as of March 31, 2008. Fees related to these guarantees totaling \(\frac{\pman}{7}\)7 million, \(\frac{\pman}{5}\)4 million were recorded as revenue on an accrual basis by the Company for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, respectively. These guarantees are provided in the ordinary course of business and include guarantees with respect to asset-backed securities, bonds, loans and other financial obligations. The contractual amounts of the financial guarantees reflect the Company's maximum exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance. The Company's policy related to providing these financial guarantees limits transactions to those with credit ratings of an investment grade or equivalent creditworthiness and limits the amount of a guarantee on any individual transaction.

At March 31, 2008, the Company had a ¥3,271 million investment in a limited partnership with overseas partners. A condition of the support agreement is that additional investment shall be made by the limited partners, based on the pro rata share in the partnership, should there be a shortage of funds in the partnership. Considering the latest financial information of the partnership available to the Company as of February 29, 2008, its most recent balance sheet date, management believes the likelihood of an additional capital requirement is remote. In addition to the above commitment, the Company had a contract that would have provided a financial guarantee to the limited partnership; however, the amount of potential payment based on the contract was zero as of March 31, 2008. The obligation of the Company under the guarantee was fully collateralized with securities, and no net exposure existed as of March 31, 2008.

In the normal course of business, the Company enters into credit derivative transactions mainly as a protection seller. The maximum potential losses associated with these transactions were \(\frac{\pmax}{444,535}\) million and \(\frac{\pmax}{655,667}\) million as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively. Liabilities of \(\frac{\pmax}{135}\) million and \(\frac{\pmax}{40,010}\) million were recorded in connection with these transactions as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively.

The Company had loan commitment agreements amounting to \$5,972 million and \$3,436 million as of March 31, 2007 and 2008, respectively. The Company's policy to provide loan commitment agreements is basically the same as that of guarantee contracts.

The Company occupies certain offices and other facilities under lease arrangements. The following is a schedule by years of future minimum rental payments required under non-cancelable operating leases that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year as of March 31, 2008:

	(Yen 1	n millions)
Years ending March 31:		
2009	¥	1,690
2010		1,231
2011		989
2012		501
2013		443
Later years		1,631
Total future minimum rental payments	¥	6,485

Rental expenses for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 were \(\frac{\pma}{2}12,381\) million, \(\frac{\pma}{2}14,259\) million and \(\frac{\pma}{2}15,422\) million, respectively.

(19) Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

	2006	2007	2008
	(Yen in millions)		
Net income	¥119,890	113,916	104,796
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:			
Valuation allowance for credit losses	(8,119)	(4,237)	(1,967)
Impairment losses of long-lived assets	965	1,205	4,244
Realized gains from sales or revaluation of investments	(59,548)	(31,530)	(24,616)
Amortization of fixed maturity securities	5,795	4,212	2,456
Depreciation	17,012	17,445	19,879
Provision for retirement and severance benefits	(4,917)	(6,449)	2,332
Deferred income taxes	25,030	9,208	22,769
Proceeds from property and equipment as subrogation of paid claim	899	· —	´ —
Decrease (increase) in assets:			
Net insurance related assets	17,011	(3,041)	(32,631)
Deferred policy acquisition costs	(8,834)	17,319	2,457
Accrued investment income	(4,818)	(1,248)	(940)
Derivative assets	(506)	(1,462)	(10,028)
Other assets	6,874	(11,065)	2,793
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:		, , ,	
Losses and claims	99,079	63,541	37,243
Unearned premiums	35,643	17,652	35,276
Future policy benefits	88,222	75,819	63,921
Income taxes	17,689	(8,426)	(13,782)
Derivative liabilities	2,260	1,675	43,318
Other liabilities	2,298	29,199	4,831
Interest credited to policyholders' contract deposits	50,840	48,482	48,498
Other, net	(725)	(6,959)	(2,842)
Net cash provided by operating activities	¥402,040	325,256	308,007
(20) Supplementary Cash Flow Information			
	2006	2007	2008
		(Yen in millions)	
Cash paid during the year for:			
Interest	¥ 810	795	947
Income taxes	14,329	51,862	44,476
Noncash transaction:			
Capital lease obligations incurred	¥ 1,179	772	924
Acquisition of subsidiaries:			
Fair value of assets	74,195	34,149	_
Fair value of liabilities	47,225	21,191	_
Minority interests	2,057	4,345	_
Net cash paid	10,807	7,337	_

(21) Segment Information

In accordance with SFAS No.131, "Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information," the segments reported below are the components of the Company for which separate financial information is available that is evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker of the Company in deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing performance.

The Company operates principally in two business segments: property and casualty insurance and life insurance. The property and casualty insurance segment offers automobile, fire, personal accident, liability and other forms of property and casualty insurance products. The Company's financial services business, including financial guarantees and derivatives are operated within the property and casualty insurance segment. Life insurance operations are conducted by its wholly owned subsidiary, Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life Insurance Co., Ltd., which offers a wide range of traditional life insurance products such as term-life, whole-life and annuity insurance, and a joint venture company, Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd., which offers variable annuity plans that combine the appeal of fund management, insurance, and annuity products, and fixed annuities denominated in foreign currencies.

The business segment information is based on financial information prepared on a Japanese GAAP basis with certain limited presentation differences from that utilized in the Company's external Japanese GAAP financial reporting. Additionally, the format and information presented in the internal management reporting are not consistent with the consolidated financial statements prepared on a U.S. GAAP basis.

Summarized financial information with respect to the business segments as of and for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 is as follows:

Property

	and Casualty Insurance	Life Insurance (Yen in magentation)	Adjustment and Elimination	Consolidated
2006:		(1 cm m	illiolis)	
Net premiums written	¥1,464,107		_	1,464,107
Net claims paid	792,941	_	_	792,941
Life insurance premiums	_	162,226	_	162,226
Life insurance claims	_	20,912	_	20,912
Commission and collection expenses	239,798	17,873	_	257,671
Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses	233,692	17,209	(3,556)	247,345
Interest and dividends received, net	90,937	11,613	(253)	102,297
Ordinary profit (loss)	129,830	(2,129)	9	127,710
Total assets	7,800,763	793,107	(997)	8,592,873

	Property and		Adjustment	
	Casualty	Life	and	
	Insurance	Insurance	Elimination	Consolidated
		(Yen in mi	llions)	
2007:				
Net premiums written	¥1,492,808	_	_	1,492,808
Net claims paid	846,445	_	_	846,445
Life insurance premiums	_	165,364	_	165,364
Life insurance claims	_	24,850	_	24,850
Commission and collection expenses	241,089	17,003	(433)	257,659
Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses	244,912	20,790	(2,713)	262,989
Interest and dividends received, net	107,953	13,856	(50)	121,759
Ordinary profit (loss)	94,307	(2,643)	20	91,684
Total assets	8,106,558	906,006	(912)	9,011,652
	Property			
	and Casualty	Life	Adjustment and	
	Insurance	Insurance	Elimination	Consolidated
		(Yen in mi		
2008:				
Net premiums written	¥1,541,032	_	_	1,541,032
Net claims paid	879,725	_	_	879,725
Life insurance premiums	_	156,528	_	156,528
Life insurance claims	_	31,703	_	31,703
Commission and collection expenses	234,640	14,740	(395)	248,985
Operating expenses and general and administrative expenses	271,198	21,560	(2,416)	290,342
Interest and dividends received, net	114,403	16,232	(20)	130,615
Ordinary profit (loss)	66,591	(5,724)		60,867
Total assets	7,388,669	1,009,780	(731)	8,397,718

2006:	Direct Premiums Written (including Deposit premiums from policyholders)	Net Premiums Written (Yen in millions)	Net Claims Paid
Fire and Allied Lines Marine	¥ 304,177 101,462	206,373 84,788	88,203 35,176
Personal Accident	341,536	143,316	56,049
Voluntary Automobile	595,745	590,423	364,208
Compulsory Automobile Liability	181,757	193,402	130,518
Other	269,308	245,805	118,787
Total	¥ 1,793,985	1,464,107	792,941
	Direct Premiums Written		
	(including Deposit premiums from	Net Premiums	Net Claims
	policyholders)	Written	Paid
2005		(Yen in millions)	
2007: Fire and Allied Lines	¥ 301,692	200.051	100 220
Marine	¥ 301,692 113,006	208,951 95,487	100,229 38,685
Personal Accident	327,519	139,531	62,909
Voluntary Automobile	611,148	601,354	375,298
Compulsory Automobile Liability	176,826	192,087	134,908
Other	276,517	255,398	134,416
Total	¥ 1,806,708	1,492,808	846,445
	Direct Premiums Written (including Deposit premiums from	Net Premiums	Net Claims
	policyholders)	Written	Paid
2000		(Yen in millions)	
2008: Fire and Allied Lines	¥ 317,882	225,161	104,817
Marine	121,969	104,127	44,367
Personal Accident	298,155	138,217	70,233
Voluntary Automobile	634,948	624,950	391,878
Compulsory Automobile Liability	165,851	191,255	136,542
Other	287,460	257,322	131,888
Total	¥ 1,826,265	1,541,032	879,725

For the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, all the premium revenues were from external customers and no revenue was derived from transactions with a single external customer exceeding 10% of the Company's revenues.

For the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008, net property and casualty premiums written in the amount of \(\frac{\pmath{\text{\pmath{4}}}}{1,286,632}\) million, \(\frac{\pmath{\pmath{2}}}{1,273,537}\) million, and \(\frac{\pmath{\pmath{4}}}{1,288,897}\) million, respectively, were from external customers in Japan, and those in the amount of \(\frac{\pmath{4}}{177,475}\) million, \(\frac{\pmath{2}}{221,271}\) million, and \(\frac{\pmath{\pmath{2}}}{252,136}\) million, respectively, were from external customers in foreign countries. Life insurance premiums were from external customers in Japan for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008.

Reconciliation to U.S. GAAP

As noted above, the measurement bases of the income and expense items covered in the Company's internal management reporting system are different from those in the accompanying consolidated statements of income prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Reconciliation of the total amount of the Company's Japanese GAAP net income under its internal management reporting system to net income shown on the consolidated statements of income prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP for the years ended March 31, 2006, 2007, and 2008 is as follows:

	2006	2007	2008
		(Yen in millions)	
Japanese GAAP net income	¥ 71,660	60,796	40,028
Adjustment:			
Catastrophic loss reserve	40,064	25,264	25,160
Other underwriting reserves	10,896	46,693	47,923
Reserve for price fluctuation	3,075	3,167	3,254
Policy acquisition cost	7,815	(18,615)	(4,559)
Revaluation of investments in securities and related investment income	18,564	3,486	(1,315)
Derivative transactions	(5,294)	927	(7,824)
Retirement and severance benefits	579	3,186	1,403
Gains from equity method investments	6,387	5,709	22,858
Deferred income taxes	(29,205)	(25,632)	(32,737)
Other	(4,651)	8,935	10,605
U.S. GAAP net income	¥119,890	113,916	104,796

Reconciliation of the amount of the Company's Japanese GAAP total assets under its internal management reporting system to total assets shown on its consolidated balance sheets prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP as of March 31, 2007 and 2008 is as follows:

	2007	2008
	(Yen in r	nillions)
Japanese GAAP total assets	¥9,011,652	8,397,718
Adjustment:		
Revaluation of investment in securities	39,495	47,368
Deferred policy acquisition costs	362,260	360,152
Prepaid reinsurance premiums on a gross basis	201,404	215,233
Reinsurance recoverable on losses on a gross basis	237,719	253,092
The difference in consolidation scope	20,585	26,928
Other	3,917	25,834
U.S. GAAP total assets	¥9,877,032	9,326,325

(22) Subsequent events

On April 1, 2008, the Company established a holding company, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc. ("MSIGH"), through a share transfer and became its wholly owned subsidiary. The share transfer will be accounted for as a legal reorganization of entities under common control in a manner similar to a pooling of interests as the proportionate shareholder interests before and after the share transfer are expected to be substantially the same. No gains or losses will be recognized upon the share transfer.

On July 1, 2008, the Company transferred all of the holding shares of its subsidiaries, Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life Insurance Company, Limited and Mitsui Direct General Insurance Company, Limited, and an affiliate, Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Co., Ltd. to MSIGH as dividends in-kind. This transaction will be accounted for as a combination under common control by MSIGH. No gains or losses will be recognized by this transaction.

Summary of Investments — Other than Investments in Related Parties March 31, 2008 and 2007

Type of investment	Cost	Value	Amount at which shown in the balance sheet
27 1 24 2000		(Yen in millions)	
March 31, 2008:			
Securities held to maturity: Fixed maturities:			
Bonds and notes:			
Government and government agencies and authorities:			
United States	¥ 4,254	¥ 4,254	¥ 4,254
Other	341,388	347,360	341,388
	345,642	351,614	345,642
States, municipalities and political subdivisions:			
Other	1,714	1,714	1,714
	1,714	1,714	1,714
All other corporate bonds	102,118	105,765	102,118
Total fixed maturities	449,474	459,093	449,474
Securities available for sale:			<u> </u>
Fixed maturities:			
Bonds and notes:			
Government and government agencies and authorities:			
United States	113,676	119,191	119,191
Other	685,783	711,429	711,429
	799,459	830,620	830,620
States, municipalities and political subdivisions:			
United States	125	128	128
Other	716,210	729,256	729,256
	716,335	729,384	729,384
Public utilities	159,394	161,150	161,150
All other corporate bonds	1,600,908	1,613,031	1,613,031
Total fixed maturities	3,276,096	3,334,185	3,334,185
Equity securities:			
Common stocks:	11 421	25.561	25.561
Public utilities	11,421 122,522	35,561 209,402	35,561
Banks, trust and insurance companies Industrial, miscellaneous and all other	948,789	2,244,607	209,402 2,244,607
industrial, infectialicous and all other	1,082,732	2,489,570	2,489,570
Nanvadaamahla nyafayyad ataaka	58,316	58,203	58,203
Nonredeemable preferred stocks			
Total equity securities	1,141,048	2,547,773	2,547,773
Total securities	4,866,618	¥6,341,051	6,331,432
Mortgage loans on real estate	9,859	10,011,001	9,859
Real estate — investment properties	43,151		43,151
Policy loans	39,536		39,536
Other long-term investments	749,385		749,385
Short-term investments	120,086		120,086
			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Total investments	¥5,828,635		¥ 7,293,449

Summary of Investments — Other than Investments in Related Parties March 31, 2008 and 2007

Type of investment	Cost	Value	Amount at which shown in the balance sheet
·		(Yen in millions)	bulunce sheet
March 31, 2007:			
Securities held to maturity:			
Fixed maturities: Bonds and notes:			
Government and government agencies and authorities:			
Other	¥ 294,940	¥ 296,153	¥ 294,940
	294,940	296,153	294,940
States, municipalities and political subdivisions:			
Other	84,878	84,752	84,878
	84,878	84,752	84,878
All other corporate bonds	4,397	4,394	4,397
Total fixed maturities	384,215	385,299	384,215
Securities available for sale:			
Fixed maturities:			
Bonds and notes:			
Government and government agencies and authorities:			
United States	101,017	107,020	107,020
Other	652,349	670,035	670,035
	753,366	777,055	777,055
States, municipalities and political subdivisions:			
United States	131	140	140
Other	778,357	798,709	798,709
75 1.12 - 212 2	778,488	798,849	798,849
Public utilities	180,826	184,094	184,094
Convertibles and bonds with warrants attached All other corporate bonds	78 1,531,118	78 1,557,728	78 1,557,728
Total fixed maturities	3,243,876	3,317,804	3,317,804
	3,243,870	3,317,604	3,317,804
Equity securities: Common stocks:			
Public utilities	11,582	49,100	49,100
Banks, trust and insurance companies	120,509	251,902	251,902
Industrial, miscellaneous and all other	915,117	2,952,940	2,952,940
	1,047,208	3,253,942	3,253,942
Nonredeemable preferred stocks	58,316	58,632	58,632
Total equity securities	1,105,524	3,312,574	3,312,574
1 7			
Total securities	4,733,615	¥7,015,677	7,014,593
Mortgage loans on real estate	11,511		11,511
Real estate — investment properties	49,192		49,192
Policy loans	38,523		38,523
Other long-term investments	715,972		715,972
Short-term investments	113,671		113,671
Total investments	¥5,662,484		¥ 7,943,462

Supplementary Insurance Information Years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Line of Business	Losses, claims and loss expenses	Unearned premiums	Premium revenue (Yen in millions)	Claims, losses and settlement expenses	Premiums written
Property and casualty:			(1 en m minons)		
Year ended March 31, 2008:					
Voluntary automobile	¥ 325,606	¥ 237,252	¥ 621,036	¥405,656	¥ 624,949
Compulsory automobile liability	211,553	313,405	193,572	133,688	191,256
Fire and allied lines	134,890	535,143	209,396	114,095	225,259
Personal accident	56,466	100,502	132,171	73,921	138,896
Cargo and transit	43,669	39,094	97,696	35,753	98,846
Hull	33,795	14,152	21,508	15,933	21,867
Other	381,615	250,408	227,306	127,211	236,543
Total	¥1,187,594	¥1,489,956	¥1,502,685	¥906,257	¥1,537,616
Year ended March 31, 2007:					
Voluntary automobile	¥ 306,800	¥ 223,053	¥ 600,371	¥401,429	¥ 599,663
Compulsory automobile liability	218,218	326,979	193,663	137,607	192,087
Fire and allied lines	123,296	497,494	185,208	93,302	208,182
Personal accident	49,888	91,003	134,369	69,292	139,795
Cargo and transit	42,596	35,332	90,286	38,802	91,379
Hull	31,530	12,632	18,496	16,620	19,602
Other	372,602	253,086	246,687	152,604	238,671
Total	¥1,144,930	¥1,439,579	¥1,469,080	¥909,656	¥1,489,379
Year ended March 31, 2006:					
Voluntary automobile	¥ 283,073	¥ 207,685	¥ 590,052	¥370,790	¥ 587,253
Compulsory automobile liability	213,934	332,780	193,871	154,440	193,402
Fire and allied lines	113,979	476,242	180,143	97,810	205,214
Personal accident	48,453	85,470	133,476	60,089	143,190
Cargo and transit	51,992	32,280	79,963	34,722	83,282
Hull	27,385	10,193	15,551	14,508	16,564
Other	310,529	263,927	229,745	149,264	229,602
Total	¥1,049,345	¥1,408,577	¥1,422,801	¥881,623	¥1,458,507

Supplementary Insurance Information Years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

	Losses, claims and loss expenses	Liability for future policy benefits (Yen in mil	Premium revenue	Policyholder benefits for life insurance contracts
Life:				
Year ended:				
March 31, 2008 March 31, 2007 March 31, 2006	¥10,226 8,620 7,172	¥911,165 825,426 724,844	¥192,731 193,551 179,430	¥156,683 156,591 151,365

Reinsurance

Years ended March 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

	Gross amount	Ceded to other companies	Assumed from other companies (Yen in millions)	Net Amount	Percentage of amount assumed to net
Property and casualty insurance premiums: Year ended:					
March 31, 2008	¥1,597,352	¥361,138	¥266,471	¥1,502,685	17.7%
·	, ,	/	,	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
March 31, 2007	1,569,975	365,319	264,424	1,469,080	18.0%
March 31, 2006	1,497,701	325,233	250,333	1,422,801	17.6%
Life insurance premiums:					
Year ended:					
March 31, 2008	¥ 193,392	¥ 661	¥ —	¥ 192,731	_
March 31, 2007	194,197	646	_	193,551	_
March 31, 2006	179,963	533	_	179,430	_

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts Years ended March 31, 2008 and 2007

			litions		
Description	Balance at beginning of year	Charged to costs and expenses	Charged to other accounts (Yen in millions)	Deductions	Balance at end of year
Year ended March 31, 2008:					
Applied against asset accounts:					
Accumulated depreciation — real estate					
investments	¥ 57,985	¥ 2,050	¥ —	¥ (9,708)	¥ 50,327
Valuation allowance — loans:					
Specific allowance	951	(175)	_	(124)	652
General reserve	699	(253)	_	_	446
Allowance for doubtful accounts	4,240	(771)	_	_	3,469
Accumulated depreciation — property and					
equipment	221,549	17,829		(5,927)	233,451
Year ended March 31, 2007:					
Applied against asset accounts:					
Accumulated depreciation — real estate					
investments	¥ 65,384	¥ 2,231	¥ —	¥ (9,630)	¥ 57,985
Valuation allowance — loans:					
Specific allowance	4,565	(1,292)	_	(2,322)	951
General reserve	2,314	(1,615)	_	_	699
Allowance for doubtful accounts	3,267	973	_	_	4,240
Accumulated depreciation — property and					
equipment	219,868	15,214		(13,533)	221,549

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings Inc. Regulations of the Board of Directors

Article 1. (Purpose of these Regulations)

All matters relating to the Board of Directors shall be governed by these Regulations, except for those as provided for in laws and regulations or in the Articles of Incorporation.

Article 2. (Composition of the Board of Directors)

- 1. The Board of Directors shall be composed of all the Directors of the Company, and shall make decisions on important issues for the management of the Company as well as supervise the execution of the duties of Directors.
- 2. Corporate Auditors shall attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and express their opinions thereat as they deem necessary.

Article 3. (Attendance of Persons Other Than Directors and Corporate Auditors)

The Board of Directors, if it deems it necessary, may allow persons other than Directors and Corporate Auditors to attend a meeting of the Board of Directors and to express their opinions or explanations.

Article 4. (Meetings of the Board of Directors)

- 1. Meetings of the Board of Directors shall consist of ordinary meetings and extraordinary meetings of the Board of Directors.
- 2. An ordinary meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held once every month as a general rule.
- 3. An extraordinary meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held as necessary.

Article 5. (Person Entitled to Convene Meetings)

- 1. The Chairman and Director of the Company shall convene meetings of the Board of Directors.
- 2. If the office of the Chairman and Director is vacant or if the Chairman and Director is prevented from so acting, the President and Director shall act in his or her place.
- 3. If the President and Director is prevented from so acting, one of the other Directors shall act in his or her place in the order previously determined by the Board of Directors.
- 4. Each Director may demand to convene a meeting of the Board of Directors by presenting the items to be discussed or to be resolved at that meeting of the Board of Directors to the Director who is entitled to convene meetings.

5. Each Corporate Auditor may demand to convene a meeting of the Board of Directors, whenever necessary, to the extent prescribed by laws and regulations.

Article 6. (Procedures for Convocation)

- 1. Notice of convocation of a meeting of the Board of Directors shall be dispatched to each Director and each Corporate Auditor at least three (3) days prior to the date of the meeting. Such period, however, may be shortened if so required in urgent cases.
- 2. The procedures for convocation of the meeting stated in the preceding paragraph may be omitted if all of the Directors and Corporate Auditors unanimously consent.

Article 7. (Chairman at Meetings of the Board of Directors)

- 1. The Chairman and Director shall act as chairman at any meeting of the Board of Directors.
- 2. If the office of the Chairman and Director is vacant or if the Chairman and Director is prevented from so acting, Paragraphs 2 and 3 of Article 5 shall apply *mutatis mutandis*.
- 3. If the Director acting as chairman of a meeting of the Board of Directors has a special interest in the matters to be discussed or to be resolved at the meeting of the Board of Directors, Paragraphs 2 and 3 of Article 5 shall apply *mutatis mutandis* for deliberations of those matters.

Article 8. (Manner of Adopting Resolution)

- 1. The quorum for resolutions at the meeting of the Board of Directors shall be in number of a majority of the Directors, and resolutions thereof shall be adopted by a majority vote of the Directors present.
- 2. Any Director having a special interest in the matters to be resolved in accordance with the preceding paragraph shall not exercise his or her voting right thereon. In this case, the number of the Directors having special interest shall not be included in the number of Directors referred to in the preceding paragraph.
- 3. Notwithstanding the provisions of Paragraph 1, a resolution of the Board of Directors will be deemed to have been adopted as proposed if a Director proposes the items to be resolved at a meeting of the Board of Directors and all of the Directors (but only those who are entitled to exercise their voting rights thereon) declare their consent in writing or by electromagnetic recording, unless any of the Corporate Auditors object to the proposal.

Article 9. (Matters to be Resolved and to be Reported at Meetings of the Board of Directors)

- 1. The Board of Directors shall resolve the matters stated in the attached Schedule as the Matters to be Resolved.
- 2. Directors must report the matters stated in the attached Schedule as the Matters to be Reported. Provided, however, that if any of Directors or Corporate Auditors gives notice to all of the other Directors and Corporate Auditors of the matters required to be reported to the Board of Directors, then the matters are not required to be reported at a meeting of Board of Directors.

Article 10. (Minutes of Meeting of the Board of Directors)

- 1. Minutes shall be prepared for the proceedings and result of any meeting of the Board of Directors and other matters as provided for in laws or regulations, and the Directors and Corporate Auditors present shall affix their respective names and seals to such minutes. Provided, however, that the consent of the Directors and Corporate Auditors to affixing their respective names and seals to such minutes may be confirmed through electronic media.
- 2. Minutes shall be prepared for any matters that are deemed to have been resolved at the Board of Directors under Paragraph 3 of Article 8 by recording the content of those matters and other matters as provided for in laws or regulations, and all of the Directors (but only those who exercised their voting right thereon) and Corporate Auditors shall affix their respective names and seals to such minutes.
- 3. Minutes shall be prepared for the matters that are deemed not necessary to be reported at a meeting of the Board of Directors under the proviso of Paragraph 2 of the immediately preceding article by recording the content of those matters and other matters as provided for in laws or regulations, and a Director who prepared the minutes shall affix his or her name and seal to such minutes.
- 4. All of the minutes prepared in accordance with the preceding three paragraphs and written documents or electromagnetic recordings of the declaration of intention of consent under Paragraph 3 of Article 8 shall be kept at the head office of the Company in accordance with the document management regulations as may be separately adopted.

Article 11. (Committee)

- 1. The Board of Directors may establish any internal committees.
- 2. The power and method of management, etc. of such committee shall be governed by the regulations of the internal committee of the Board of Directors adopted upon a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Article 12. (Amendment to These Regulations)

Amendment to these Regulations shall be subject to a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Schedule Matters to be Submitted to the Board of Directors

1. Matters relating to the Company's general meeting of shareholders:

Matters relating to convening general meetings of shareholders

Business report and its supporting schedules

The order of priority for chairman at general meetings of shareholders

2. Matters relating to the Company's Directors and Corporate Auditors:

Establishment, amendment, and abolition of the Regulations of the Board of Directors

Election and removal of Representative Directors

Change of system of, and election and removal of, Directors with Titles

Election and removal of Executive Directors

Responsibilities of each Director

Allocation of duties to Directors

The order of priority for convener and chairman of the Board of Directors

Determination of the amount of remuneration payable to individual Directors

A Director at the same time assuming the post of a director, a corporate officer, or a corporate auditor in another company

Report: An Outside Director at the same time assuming the post of a director, a corporate officer, or a corporate auditor in another company

Approval of competitive transactions conducted by Directors, transactions conducted by Directors with the Company or transactions conducted by Directors in conflict with the interests of the Company

Report: Important matters regarding competitive transactions conducted by Directors, transactions conducted by Directors with the Company, or transactions conducted by Directors in conflict with the interests of the Company

Partial release of Directors and Corporate Auditors from their liabilities

Execution of a limited liability agreement with an Outside Director or an Outside Corporate Auditor

Establishment, change, and abolition of Internal Committees of the Board of Directors, and election and removal of committee members

Establishment, amendment, and abolition of the Regulations of Internal Committees of the Board of Directors

3. Matters relating to Company shares:

Issue of shares (soliciting of subscribers, secondary offering, split, and consolidation of shares)

Amendment to the number of shares constituting one unit

Disposition of treasury stocks (soliciting of subscribers, secondary offerings, and cancellations)

Acquisition of treasury stock

Listing and delisting of shares

Selection of administrator of shareholders registry and its place of business

Establishment, amendment, and abolition of the Share Handling Regulations

Report: Annual Securities Report, Quarterly Report, Extraordinary Report and Securities Registration Statement (including their equivalents under the U.S. Law)

4. Matters relating to settlement of Company accounts on a non-consolidated and consolidated basis:

Non-Consolidated accounts (account settlement policy, financial statements and supporting schedules) (annual, interim and quarterly)

Consolidated accounts (account settlement policy, consolidated financial statements and supporting schedules) (annual, interim and quarterly)

Report: Summary of financial results (annual, interim and quarterly)

Distribution of surplus (interim dividends)

Report: Account settlement based on accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

Execution of new audit agreements, and termination of existing audit agreements, with Independent Auditors

Report: Material amendment to the provisions of the audit agreements

Establishment, amendment, and abolition of the regulations of self-assessment of properties and depreciations or provisions

Establishment, amendment, and abolition of the guidelines of self-assessment of properties and depreciation or provisions of the Company's direct subsidiaries

Report: Reporting on the result of self-assessment of properties and its audit results (the Company and the Company's direct subsidiaries)

5. Matters relating to group management:

Basic policies with respect to the internal control system

Establishment, change, and abolition of important board in the Company

Establishment and change of management philosophy, management policies and charter of conduct

Establishment and change of management plans

Report: Status report on various annual management plans

Establishment and change of interim and annual comprehensive budget plans (on a group and non-consolidated basis)

Report: Status of performance of business operations

Management strategies, business strategies and capital policy

Report: Verification of capital adequacy

Assignment or purchase, or cessation or abolition, of business (excluding matters to be resolved by the general meetings of shareholders (including, but not limited to, assignment of all or a material part of the Company's business))

Important business alliance

Business investment (of a value greater than 2 billion yen per transaction or commencement of important new business and change in important existing business policies)

Establishment, elimination, and consolidation of a group company (of a value greater than 2 billion yen)

Guaranty granted by the Company in favor of a group company (of a value greater than 2 billion yen)

Dividends from a Company's direct subsidiaries in connection with business investment and other events (of a value greater than 2 billion yen per transaction)

Establishment and change of executive personnel system and executive compensation system of the group companies

Amendments to the important personnel system in the group business

Group personnel change policy and personnel plan

Group organizational strategy and organizational structure policy

Execution of a group management administration agreement

Establishment and change of group basic policies:

- Internal auditing basic policy
- Compliance basic policy and compliance standards
- Risk management basic policy
- Basic policy on intra-group transactions and business alliance
- · Basic policy on disclosure control
- Basic policy on customer information management
- · Basic policy on customer information sharing
- Basic policy on response to customer complaints
- Environmental basic policies

Policy on asset management strategy

Establishment of important risk limits

Establishment of maximum comprehensive credit limits

Report: Important matters regarding risk management and compliance with laws and regulations in the group business

Report: Verification of the appropriateness of financial reporting

6. Matters relating to business operation of the Company:

Establishment, amendment, and abolition of the Regulations of Management of Basic Internal Rules

Establishment and change of risk management policies

Establishment and change of the compliance manual and compliance program

Report: Status of performance of the compliance program

Establishment, amendment, and abolition of regulations of internal auditing and guidelines for execution of internal auditing

Establishment, amendment, and abolition of policies with respect to internal auditing and internal auditing plans

Report: Reporting on internal auditing

Report: Reporting on inspection results (important matters regarding management) by supervising authorities

Establishment, change, or abolition of organizations (at the department level)

Appointment or removal of associate directors

Change, promotion, degradation, assignment, suspension and reinstatement of general managers

Personnel appraisal, and promotion or degradation of rank, of general managers

Dismissal of employees

Bringing and settlement of important litigation (amount of litigation greater than 2 billion yen or litigation that may materially affect the management)

7. Disposition and acquisition of important Company assets:

Purchase, construction, expansion and renovation, repair, exchange, sale, collaterization and demolition of real properties (of a value greater than 2 billion yen per transaction)

Lease of real properties (deposit or annual rent of a value greater than 2 billion yen per transaction)

Development of information systems (of a value greater than 2 billion yen per transaction)

Purchase, lease, change and disposition of movable properties, consumables and like items (of a value greater than 2 billion yen per transaction) (except as otherwise specified)

Lease of movable properties, consumables and like items (monthly rent of a value greater than 100 million yen per transaction)

Purchase and sale of fine arts such as paintings and sculptures (of a value greater than 100 million yen per transaction)

Contribution (of a value greater than 100 million yen per transaction)

Participation in and withdrawal from outside organizations, and payment of regular and extraordinary membership fees (of a value greater than 100 million yen per transaction)

Purchase and sale of memberships (of a value greater than 100 million yen per transaction)

Asset management (sale and purchase of securities, financial derivative trading, credit, subordinated loans, subordinated bonds and other transactions) (of a value greater than 2 billion yen per transaction) (with respect to financial derivative trading, notional principal amounts)

Liquidation of recoverable claims (of a value greater than 50 million yen per transaction)

8. Significant amount of borrowings of the Company:

Issue of bonds

Borrowings (of a value greater than 2 billion yen per transaction)

9. Matters relating to group companies (subsidiaries under the Corporate Law excluding investment business partnership and special purpose companies):

Matters regarding the Company's direct subsidiaries to be approved by the Company in advance:

- Approval of management plans and budget plans
- Election and removal of Directors and Corporate Auditors
- Election and removal of Independent Auditors
- Approval of disposition of surplus
- Other matters requiring a resolution of the general meeting of shareholders

Report: Important executive structure in the group business

Matters regarding shares (issue of new shares, split or consolidation of shares, and exchange or transfer of shares) (matters that may affect the substantial control by the Company)

Matters regarding stock acquisition rights

Important business alliance

Establishment, elimination, and consolidation of a *kogaisha-tou* (subsidiary, subsidiary corporation or affiliated corporation under the Insurance Business Law) (of a value greater than 5 billion yen per transaction)

Participation in new business, new investment (including a series of investments), additional business investment, withdrawal from business and other matters (of a value greater than 5 billion yen per transaction (or, with respect to sale and purchase of listed shares, of a value greater than 10 billion yen per transaction))

Guaranty between group companies (of a value greater than 5 billion yen per transaction)

Transfer or acquisition of fixed assets (of a value greater than 5 billion yen per transaction)

Lease transaction of fixed assets (the total estimated lease amount greater than 5 billion yen per transaction)

Bringing and settlement of important litigation (amount of litigation greater than 5 billion yen or litigation that may materially affect the group management)

Determination of other important matters regarding the operation, business or assets of the companies (of a value greater than 5 billion yen per transaction)

Report: Important management matters regarding risk management and compliance

Report: Important management matters regarding results of internal auditing

Report: sanctions imposed by governmental agencies under the laws and ordinances, or accusation regarding breach of laws and ordinances by governmental agencies

Report: Inability of or delay in collection of receivables (the predicted amount for which is greater than 5 million yen per transaction)

Report: Damage arising from disasters or in the course of business operations (the estimated amount of damage for which is greater than 5 million yen)

Report: Occurrence of other material facts regarding the operation, business or assets of the Company (of a value greater than 5 billion yen per transaction)

10. Other matters:

Resolution; Report: Any other matters as provided for in laws and regulations or in the Articles of Incorporation, matters resolved by the

general meetings of shareholders to be delegated, and any other important matters relating to the execution of business of the Company and its group

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc. Regulations of the Board of Corporate Auditors

Article 1 (Purpose)

All matters relating to the Board of Corporate Auditors of the Company shall be governed by the provisions of these Regulations, except for those as provided for in laws and regulations, the Articles of Incorporation and the corporate auditors auditing standards as separately established.

Article 2 (Functions of the Board of Corporate Auditors)

- 1. The Board of Corporate Auditors shall be comprised of all Corporate Auditors.
- 2. The Board of Corporate Auditors shall receive from Corporate Auditors reports on the status of the performance of the duties of Corporate Auditors, receive reports from Directors or employees on important matters concerning audits, and deliberate on and resolve those matters; provided, however, that the Board of Corporate Auditors may not preclude any Corporate Auditor from exercising his/her own powers.
- 3. The Board of Corporate Auditors shall state opinions of the Board of Corporate Auditors to the Directors and the Board of Directors as necessary.

Article 3 (Duties of the Board of Corporate Auditors)

The Board of Corporate Auditors shall, among other things, perform the following duties; provided, however, that the determination made under item (3) below may not preclude any Corporate Auditor from exercising his/her own powers:

- (1) preparation of audit reports;
- (2) appointment and removal of full-time Corporate Auditor; and
- (3) determination of audit policies, the methods of investigation of the status of the operations and the financial status of the company and other matters regarding the performance of the Corporate Auditors' duties.

Article 4 (Full-time Corporate Auditors)

The Board of Corporate Auditors shall by resolution appoint or remove full-time Corporate Auditor(s) from among the Corporate Auditors.

Article 5 (Chairperson)

- 1. The Board of Corporate Auditors shall by resolution elect a chairperson from among the Corporate Auditors.
- 2. The chairperson of the Board of Corporate Auditors shall, in addition to performing the convocation and management of the Board of Corporate Auditors, perform any other duties entrusted to the chairperson by the Board of Corporate Auditors; provided, however, that the chairperson may not preclude any Corporate Auditor from exercising his/her own powers.

Article 6 (Specified Corporate Auditors (Tokutei-kansayaku))

- 1. The Board of Corporate Auditors may by resolution appoint the person(s) hereinafter referred to as the "specified Corporate Auditor (s)" (tokutei-kansayaku) to perform the following duties:
 - (1) to receive from the Directors the business reports, the annexed specifications thereof and accounting-related documents to be received by each Corporate Auditor, and distribute these documents to the other Corporate Auditors;
 - (2) to provide notice of the contents of the Board of Corporate Auditors audit report concerning the business reports and the annexed specifications thereof to the Directors hereinafter referred to as "specified Directors" (*tokutei-torishimariyaku*) determined to be the persons to receive such notice;
 - (3) to agree with the specified Directors on the date to provide the notice mentioned in the preceding item;
 - (4) to receive notice of the contents of the accounting audit report from the accounting auditors and provide notice of the contents of such audit report to the other Corporate Auditors;
 - (5) to agree with the specified Directors and the accounting auditors on the date to receive the notice mentioned in the preceding item;
 - (6) to provide notice of the contents of the Board of Corporate Auditors audit report concerning the accounting-related documents to the specified Directors and the accounting auditors; and

- (7) to agree with the specified Directors on the date to provide the notice mentioned in the preceding item.
- 2. Specified Corporate Auditor(s) shall be full-time Corporate Auditor(s).

Article 7 (Corporate Auditors to Attend the Meetings of the Special Directors)

The Board of Corporate Auditors shall by resolution appoint the Corporate Auditor(s) to attend the meetings of the special Directors; provided, however, that this shall not prevent other Corporate Auditors from attending the meetings.

Article 8 (Holding of Meetings)

The Board of Corporate Auditors meeting shall be held monthly in principle; provided, however, that the Board of Corporate Auditors meeting may be held whenever necessary.

Article 9 (Convening Meetings)

- 1. The Board of Corporate Auditors meetings shall be convened and presided over by the chairperson.
- 2. Any Corporate Auditors may demand that the chairperson convene a meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors.
- 3. If the chairperson does not convene a meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors notwithstanding the demands mentioned in the preceding paragraph, the Corporate Auditor who made such demand may convene and preside over a meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors on his/her own.

Article 10 (Convocation Procedures)

- 1. In convening a meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors, a notice to that effect shall be dispatched to each Corporate Auditor no later than three days prior to the date of the meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors; provided, however, that the notice period may be shortened in an emergency.
- 2. When the unanimous consent of the Corporate Auditors has been obtained, the Board of Corporate Auditors meeting may be held without convocation procedures.

Article 11 (Method of Resolution)

The resolution of the Board of Corporate Auditors shall be adopted by a majority of the Corporate Auditors.

Article 12 (Resolution on Audit Policies, etc.)

- 1. Audit policies, audit plans, methods of audit, allocation of audit duties among Corporate Auditors and other related matters shall be determined by the resolution of the Board of Corporate Auditors.
- 2. In addition to those set forth in the preceding paragraph, the Board of Corporate Auditors shall resolve the matters it determines necessary for the performance of its functions.
- 3. The Board of Corporate Auditors shall request that the Directors resolve the contents of the following audit systems and develop such systems:
 - (1) matters relating to employees who support the Corporate Auditors' duties;
 - (2) matters relating to the independence of the employees mentioned in the preceding item from Directors;
 - (3) systems for Directors and employees to report to Corporate Auditors and any other systems relating to reports to be provided to Corporate Auditors; and
 - (4) any other systems for ensuring the effectiveness of Corporate Auditors' audit activities.

Article 13 (Regular Meetings, etc. with the Representative Directors)

- 1. The Board of Corporate Auditors shall hold meetings with the Chairman and Director, the President and Director and the Representative Directors on a regular basis and shall endeavor to deepen their mutual understanding by, for example, exchanging opinions with the representative Directors regarding issues to be addressed by the company, the status of the development of the environment for Corporate Auditors audits, important issues regarding audits, and any other relevant matters, and by making requests as necessary.
- 2. The Board of Corporate Auditors shall report to the Board of Directors the audit policies, the audit plan and the status and results of their audit on a regular basis.
- 3. In addition to the matters that the Directors and employees are statutorily required to report to the Board of Corporate Auditors, the Board of Corporate Auditors shall determine through deliberations with the relevant Directors the scope of matters which the Directors and employees shall report to the Board of Corporate Auditors, and shall receive timely reports on such matters from them, based on the systems set forth in paragraph 3, item 3 of the preceding article.

Article 14 (Reports to the Board of Corporate Auditors)

- 1. Corporate Auditors shall report the status of the performance of their own duties to the Board of Corporate Auditors on a regular basis and an as needed basis, and whenever the Board of Corporate Auditors requests a report.
- 2. Corporate Auditors who have received reports from the accounting auditors, the Directors, employees of the company's internal audit division and other relevant departments, and other relevant persons shall report to the Board of Corporate Auditors thereof.
- 3. The Board of Corporate Auditors shall request the accounting auditors, the Directors, employees of the company's internal audit division and other relevant departments, and other relevant persons to provide reports as necessary.
- 4. With respect to the preceding three paragraphs, if Corporate Auditors, the accounting auditors, the Directors, employees of the company's internal audit division and other relevant departments, and other relevant persons provide notice of the matters to be reported to the Board of Corporate Auditors to all Corporate Auditors, such matters shall not be required to be reported to the Board of Corporate Auditors.

Article 15 (Measures for Reports)

The Board of Corporate Auditors shall undertake necessary investigations and take measures appropriate to the situation upon the receipt of the following reports:

- (1) reports from the Directors that any fact likely to cause the company significant damage has been found;
- (2) reports from the accounting auditors that, in connection with the Directors' performance of their duties, any misconduct or any material fact constituting a violation of any law or regulation or the Articles of Incorporation has been found; or
- (3) reports from the Directors or employees on the matters determined in prior deliberation with the Directors.

Article 16 (Preparation of Audit Report)

- 1. The Board of Corporate Auditors shall prepare the audit reports of the Board of Corporate Auditors through deliberations based on the audit report prepared by each Corporate Auditor.
- 2. In cases where the contents of the audit report of the Board of Corporate Auditors are different from the contents of any Corporate Auditor audit report and at the request of such Corporate Auditor, the Board of Corporate Auditors shall append a note with the contents of such Corporate Auditor audit report to the audit report of the Board of Corporate Auditors.
- 3. Each Corporate Auditor shall affix to the audit report of the Board of Corporate Auditors his/her respective signature, or his/her respective name and seal impression (including electronic signature). Full-time Corporate Auditors and outside Corporate Auditors (*shagai-kansayaku*) shall describe their positions as full-time Corporate Auditors or outside Corporate Auditors in the audit report of the Board of Corporate Auditors.
- 4. The provisions of the preceding three paragraphs shall apply *mutatis mutandis* to audit reports to be prepared when extraordinary accounting documents or consolidated accounting documents are prepared by the company.
- 5. The Board of Corporate Auditors shall provide notice of the contents of the audit report of the Board of Corporate Auditors to the specified Directors and accounting auditors.

Article 17 (Consent, etc. regarding the Election of Corporate Auditors)

- 1. The following matters regarding the election of Corporate Auditors shall be determined by the resolution of the Board of Corporate Auditors:
 - (1) consent to submit to the shareholders' meeting a proposal concerning the election of Corporate Auditors by the Directors;
 - (2) demand to include the election of Corporate Auditors in the agenda of the shareholders' meeting; and
 - (3) demand to submit to the shareholders' meeting a proposal concerning the election of Corporate Auditors.
- 2. The preceding paragraph shall apply *mutatis mutandis* to the election of substitute Corporate Auditors.

Article 18 (Criteria of Selection of Candidates for Corporate Auditors)

- 1. When selecting a candidate for Corporate Auditor, the Board of Corporate Auditors shall carefully examine his/her suitability to serve as Corporate Auditor in light of whether the candidate is sufficiently independent from the management, and other relevant factors.
- 2. When selecting a candidate for outside Corporate Auditor, the Board of Corporate Auditors shall confirm that there will be no difficulties as to their independence; and shall also examine such candidate's availability to attend meetings of the Board of Directors, the Board of Corporate Auditors and other relevant meetings, and other relevant factors.

Article 19 (Consent, etc. regarding the Election of Accounting Auditors)

- 1. The policy to determine the dismissal or disapproval of reappointment of accounting auditors shall be determined by the resolution of the Board of Corporate Auditors.
- 2. The Board of Corporate Auditors shall examine for each business year the appropriateness of reappointing the accounting auditors.
- 3. The following matters regarding the election, dismissal or disapproval of reappointment of accounting auditors shall be determined by the resolution of the Board of Corporate Auditors:
 - (1) consent to submit to the shareholders' meeting a proposal concerning the election of the accounting auditors by the Directors;
 - consent to include the dismissal or disapproval of reappointment of the accounting auditors in the agenda of the shareholders' meeting by the Directors;
 - (3) demand to submit to the shareholders' meeting a proposal concerning the election of the accounting auditor;
 - (4) demand to include the election, dismissal or disapproval of reappointment of the accounting auditor in the agenda of the shareholders' meeting; and
 - (5) election of the person who is to temporarily perform the duties of an accounting auditor in case of the vacancy of the accounting auditor.
- 4. The consent of all Corporate Auditors is required for the dismissal of the accounting auditor based on the statutory grounds of dismissal and may be obtained through deliberations of the Board of Corporate Auditors. In such case, Corporate Auditors selected by the Board of Corporate Auditors shall report the dismissal and the reason thereof at the first shareholders' meeting to be held after the dismissal.

5. The consent mentioned in the preceding paragraph may be made in writing or by electronic means in case of urgent necessity.

Article 20 (Consent to Remuneration, etc. of the Accounting Auditors)

The consent to remuneration, etc. of accounting auditors or a person to temporarily perform the duties of an accounting auditor shall be determined by the resolution of the Board of Corporate Auditors.

Article 21 (Consent to Partial Exemption of Directors from Liability)

- 1. The following consent of all Corporate Auditors is required for the following acts and may be obtained through deliberation of the Board of Corporate Auditors.
 - (1) consent to submit to the shareholders' meeting a proposal concerning the partial exemption of a Director from liability;
 - (2) consent to submit to the shareholders' meeting a proposal concerning the modification of the Articles of Incorporation to provide that Directors may be partially exempted from liability by the Board of Directors' resolution;
 - (3) consent to submit to the Board of Directors' meeting a proposal concerning the partial exemption of a Director from liability based on the provisions of the Articles of Incorporation; and
 - (4) consent to submit to a shareholders' meeting a proposal concerning the modification of the Articles of Incorporation to provide that the company may enter into an agreement with an outside Director for his/her partial exemption from liability.
- 2. The consent mentioned in the preceding paragraph may be made in writing or by electronic means in case of urgent necessity.

Article 22 (Consent to Participation in a Derivative Lawsuit)

- 1. The consent of all Corporate Auditors to the company's participation in a derivative lawsuit to assist the defendant Director(s) may be made through deliberations of the Board of Corporate Auditors.
- 2. The consent mentioned in the preceding paragraph may be made in writing or by electronic means in case of urgent necessity.

Article 23 (Deliberations Regarding the Exercise of the Powers of Corporate Auditors)

The Corporate Auditors may, in the case of exercising their powers or fulfilling their obligations regarding the following items, have prior deliberations with the Board of Corporate Auditors:

- (1) explanations of the questions for Corporate Auditors notified by the shareholders prior to the shareholders' meeting;
- (2) reports to the Board of Directors, demands to convene Board of Directors meetings, etc.;
- (3) results of investigations regarding the proposals, documents and other materials to be submitted to the shareholders' meeting;
- (4) to seek injunctions against the acts of Directors outside of the purpose of the company or otherwise in violation of any law or regulation or the Articles of Incorporation;
- (5) statements of opinion at a shareholders' meeting regarding the election, dismissal, resignation, remuneration, etc. of Corporate Auditors;
- (6) matters regarding lawsuits between the company and the Directors;
- (7) matters regarding the filing of any lawsuits, etc.; and
- (8) in addition to the above items, matters as deemed necessary by Corporate Auditors for the Corporate Auditors' performance of their duties.

Article 24 (Deliberations regarding Remuneration, etc.)

Corporate Auditors may deliberate on the remuneration, etc. of Corporate Auditors at the Board of Corporate Auditors meeting with the consent of all Corporate Auditors.

Article 25 (Minutes)

- 1. The Board of Corporate Auditors shall prepare minutes containing the following items and all Corporate Auditors present at the meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors shall affix to the minutes their respective signatures or their respective names and seal impressions (including electronic signature):
 - (1) the date and place of holding the meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors (including the methods of attendance, in cases where Corporate Auditors, Directors or accounting auditors attend such meeting without being physically present);

- (2) the outline of the progress of the proceedings of the meeting and the results thereof;
- (3) if there are any opinions stated or statements made at the meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors with respect to the following matters, the summary of the contents of such opinions or statements;
 - a. reports from the Directors that any fact likely to cause the company significant damage has been found; or
 - b reports from the accounting auditors that there exists, in connection with the Directors' performance of their duties, any misconduct or any material fact constituting a violation of any law or regulation or the Articles of Incorporation;
- (4) names of the Directors or the accounting auditors who attended the meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors; and
- (5) the name of the chairperson of the meeting of the Board of Corporate Auditors.
- 2. In cases where the report to the Board of Corporate Auditors shall not be required pursuant to Article 14, paragraph 4, the Board of Corporate Auditors shall prepare minutes containing the following items:
 - (1) contents of the matters which shall not be required to be reported to the Board of Corporate Auditors;
 - (2) date on which the report to the Board of Corporate Auditors was deemed not to be required;
 - (3) the name of Corporate Auditors who performed the duties concerning the preparation of the minutes.
- 3. The company shall keep the minutes mentioned in the preceding two paragraphs for ten years at the head office.

Article 26 (Secretariat of the Board of Corporate Auditors)

The affairs related to convening the meetings of the Board of Corporate Auditors, the preparation of the minutes of such meetings, and other affairs concerning the operation of the Board of Corporate Auditors shall be performed by employees who support Corporate Auditors.

Article 27 (Revision or Abolition of these Regulations)

The revision or abolition of these regulations shall be made by the resolution of the Board of Corporate Auditors.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

	Jurisdiction of
Name	Incorporation
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company, Limited	Japan
Mitsui Sumitomo Kirameki Life Insurance Company, Limited	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Venture Capital Company, Limited	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Agency Service Company, Limited	Japan
MSK Marine Service Company, Limited	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Claims Adjusting Company, Limited	Japan
MSK Anshin-Station Company, Limited	Japan
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Systems Company, Limited	Japan
MSK Information Service Company, Limited	Japan
MSK Building Service Company, Limited	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Staffing Service Company, Limited	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Care Network Company, Limited	Japan
Mitsui Sumitomo MetLife Insurance Company, Limited	Japan
AC Planning Company, Limited	Japan
MSK Insurance Center Company, Limited	Japan
MSK Research Institute Company, Limited	Japan
MSK Shoji Company, Limited	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE Loan Service Company, Limited	Japan
InterRisk Research Institute & Consulting,Inc.	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE C No.5 Investment Business Partnership	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE C No.6 Investment Business Partnership	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE C No.1 Venture Capital Investment Limited Partnership	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE C No.2 Venture Capital Investment Limited Partnership	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE C No.3 Venture Capital Investment Limited Partnership	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE C Academic Technology Investment Partnership	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE C Global Technology Venture Capital Investment Limited Partnership	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE C Campus No.1 Venture Capital Investment Limited Partnership	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE C 2005V Venture Capital Investment Limited Partnership	Japan
MSIVC Buyout Investment Limited Partnership	Japan
MITSUI SUMITOMO INSURANCE C Campus No.2 Venture Capital Investment Limited Partnership	Japan
MSIVC Campus No.3 Venture Capital Investment Limited Partnership	Japan
MSIVC 2008V Venture Capital Investment Limited Partnership	Japan
Inter Partner Assistance Japan, Ltd.	Japan
MSK Hontenkanri Company, Limited	Japan
American Appraisal Japan Co., Ltd.	Japan
Mitsui Direct General Insurance Company, Limited	Japan
Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management Company, Limited	Japan
MS Insurance Planning Company, Limited	Japan
MS Sapporo Company, Limited	Japan
MS Chiba Company, Limited	Japan
MS Mie Company, Limited	Japan
MS Tokusima Company, Limited	Japan

Name	Jurisdiction of Incorporation
MS Takanashi Insurance Service Company, Limited	Japan
MS Soutoku Company, Limited	Japan
MS Direct investment Agency Management Company, Limited	Japan
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance USA Inc.	U.S.A.
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company of America	U.S.A.
Mitsui Sumitomo Marine Management (U.S.A.), Inc.	U.S.A.
MSI Risk Management Services, Inc.	U.S.A.
Seven Hills Insurance Agency, LLC	U.S.A.
MSI Claims (USA), Inc.	U.S.A.
Taisho Realty America Corporation	U.S.A.
MSIG Holdings (Americas), Inc.	U.S.A.
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company (Europe), Limited	U.K.
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (London) Limited	U.K.
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (London Management) Ltd	U.K.
MSI Corporate Capital Limited	U.K.
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Underwriting at Lloyd's Limited	U.K.
MSIG Corporate Service (Europe) Limited	U.K.
MSIG Holdings (Europe) Limited	U.K.
MSIG German Services GmbH	Germany
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (Singapore) Pte Ltd	Singapore
MSI Management (Singapore) Pte Ltd	Singapore
MS Frontier Reinsurance Limited	Bermuda
SPAC Insurance (Bermuda) Limited	Bermuda
Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Company (Hong Kong), Limited	Hong Kong
Oriental Management Services Limited	Hong Kong
M & H Insurance Agency Limited	Hong Kong
MSI Do Brasil Ltda	Brazil
Mitsui Sumitomo Reinsurance Limited	Ireland
PT. Asuransi MSIG Indonesia	Indonesia
PT. Auto Management Services	Indonesia
Mitsui Sumitomo Seguros S/A.	Brazil
Interisk Asia Pte Ltd	Singapore
Interisk Global Management (Bermuda) Limited	Bermuda
MSI Holding (Thailand) Company Limited	Thailand
MSI Adjusting (Thailand) Co., Ltd.	Thailand
MSI Risk Consultancy Services (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd	Malaysia
Calm Sea Service Company Limited	Thailand
MSIG Insurance (Malaysia) Bhd.	Malaysia
Asia Insurance (Cambodia) Plc.	Cambodia
Westwacker Holdings LLC	U.S.A.
Westwacker K-Parcel LLC	U.S.A.
Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management (New York) Inc.	U.S.A.
Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management (London) Limited	U.K.
Sumitomo Mitsui Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited	Hong Kong
Sansei Capital Management Cayman Ltd.	Cayman
SLI Cayman Limited	Cayman
MBTS Life Insurance Broker Co., Ltd.	Thailand
BPI/MS Insurance Corporation	The Philippines

Jurisdiction of Name Incorporation MBTS Broking Services Company Limited Thailand FLT Prime Insurance Corporation The Philippines Arab Japanese Insurance Company Ltd. E.C. Bahrain United Insurance Company of Vietnam Vietnam Philippine Charter Insurance Corporation The Philippines Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company Limited India MSIG Holdings (Asia) Pte. Ltd. Singapore MSIG Insurance (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore MSIG Insurance (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Thailand Ueang Mai Co., Ltd. Thailand Yardhimar Company Limited Thailand MSIG Insurance (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong PT. PAI Insurance Indonesia MSIG Berhad Malaysia Cholamandalam MS Risk Services Limited India Thousand Fortune Islands Corporation Cayman MSIG Mingtai Insurance Co., Ltd. Taiwan MSC Corporation Cayman MSI GuaranteedWeather LLC U.S.A. MSI GuaranteedWeather Trading Limited Bermuda Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance (China) Company Limited People's Republic of

SMA MSI AS

China

Norway

Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Charter on Professional Conduct

We, at the Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group, aspire to be a company that enjoys the trust of all members of society and inspires pride among its employees.

To this end, acting in the best interests of the insurance and financial services community, we:

- Accept, as life's mission, the provision of superior solutions to social concerns and risks;
- Place top priority on fair, impartial, and ethical conduct; and
- Constantly work to ensure adequate transparency through internal and external communication and extensive disclosure of information.

We, Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group, as the corporation's social responsibility, pledge to fulfill the 7 Responsibilities below.

Responsibility to Customers

We will provide the highest quality risk solution services, with "customer satisfaction" at the foundation of all activities.

- 1. Each employee will be conscious of representing the corporation, treating each customer with gratitude. Competition will be just and transparent, and each customer will be treated equitably.
- 2. We will work to understand customer needs correctly and to provide the most appropriate products and services. Descriptions of insurance contract terms and important items will be provided accurately, in an easy-to-understand manner.
- 3. In the event of an accident, swift, appropriate and courteous accident support will be provided with proper care and attention to the victims and all related parties.
- 4. All customer information obtained for operational purposes will be placed under stringent care and will under no circumstance be used outside of the stated or permitted purposes.
- 5. In the event of any circumstances with the potential for inconvenience to our customers, we will respond swiftly and sincerely, working both for early resolution and for the utilization of its learnings to prevent reoccurrence.

Responsibility to Shareholders

We will fulfill shareholder expectation through the improvement of corporate value and the appropriate return of profits.

- 1. We will aim for continual improvements in performance by creating a transparent, self-checking management structure and through the efficient utilization of business resources and appropriate risk management
- 2. Engage actively in IR both domestically and internationally, (by providing timely, unbiased information required in making investment decisions to shareholders and investors) establishing dialogue with shareholders and investors.
- 3. We will not, under any circumstances, engage in any form of insider-trading (trading stock with knowledge of critical undisclosed information)

Responsibility to Agents

We will aim for the co-prosperity through cooperation with agents, our "critical business partners."

- 1. We will aim for the continual advancement of "customer satisfaction" cooperatively, by thoroughly ensuring compliance, fulfillment of clarification responsibilities, and stringent management of customer information.
- 2. We will maintain fluid communication and think and act in unison.
- 3. We will maintain a fair and sound relationship, and together respect our autonomy and independence while aiming for co-prosperity.

Responsibility to Business Partners

We will maintain a sound relationship business partners, fulfilling our respective responsibilities to society.

- 1. We will treat business partners with sincerity at all times.
- 2. Under no circumstance will the standing in the trade partnership be used to impose acquiescence to unjust trade activity.
- 3. Cooperation and support will be provided for business partners to fulfill social responsibility, and such efforts will be valued.

Responsibility to Employees

We will provide a comfortable work environment for our employees that fosters a sense of satisfaction.

- 1. Fair and just personnel decisions will be administered, respecting the individual employee's rights, individuality and willingness to take challenges. We will focus on developing employees' skills and providing opportunities for self-actualization.
- 2. We will provide an open work environment with the freedom to share opinions, and a safe, clean and accident-free workplace. We will work towards higher quality lives for the families of our employees.
- 3. We will work toward the eradication of all forms of discrimination, sexual harassment, and power harassment. In the unfortunate even of a problematic incident, swift investigation will be conducted and aid provided to the victim, while measures will be taken to prevent reoccurrence.

Responsibility to Local Communities and the International Community

We will build a hospitable relationship with regional and international society and aim for mutual growth as a working member of these societies.

- 1. The cultures, customs and history of the nation and region will be respected. We will build friendly relationships through mutual understanding and contribute to the advancement of the respective nation and region.
- 2. We will actively promote a broad range of volunteer activities and other social contribution work.
- 3. There will be ongoing support for academic research, education, art and culture, and sports promotion.

Responsibility to the Environment

With our eyes on the future, we will work toward the recovery and preservation of the Earth's natural environment.

1. We will work to provide products and services which give back to the cause of tackling environmental problems.

- 2. We will engage in energy saving, resource saving, waste reduction and recycling activities, thereby reducing the burden of business activities on the environment.
- 3. We will engage in ongoing environmental activities, in accordance with the Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Basic Environmental Policy

Our Conduct

As a member of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group, we will conduct ourselves in the following manner.

Foundation of Conduct

- We recognize the absolute necessity of fair and just business practice for continual corporate progress and hereby agree to give utmost
 priority, in all circumstances, to the practice of ethical conduct.
- There shall be no discrimination on the basis of race, nationality, gender, age, occupation, social standing, faith, or disability.
- We pledge to build a trusting relationship with society by valuing information disclosure and fulfilling the aforementioned 7 Responsibilities.

Awareness in Daily Activities

- No action will be taken against my conscience.
- If the other is unsatisfied, I will first question myself.
- Objectives will be dated, and swift action will be taken for their achievement.
- I will manage my own time and will not forget to give consideration to others' time.
- I will take new challenges and value the attitude of reform.
- I will place value in assimilating positive qualities and work to support the growth of employees who represent the next generation.

Focus on Communication

- I will not forget to smile, greet and treat others with sincerity.
- I will use simple, easily understandable language and text to convey my thoughts.
- We will understand corporate policy together and share information.
- Negative information will be reported with priority.
- Teamwork will be valued, and we will work together to achieve the objectives of the corporation and division.

Thoroughly Ensure Compliance

• We will observe all pertinent legislative statutes and regulations.

- Upon discovering any non-abiding action or unethical conduct, I will have the courage to point it out and work together in correcting the situation.
- No trade will be conducted for personal gains or for the intentional impairment of the corporation's profit.
- Antisocial influences and organizations will be met with an uncompromising stance, and there will be no accession to illegal or unjust acts.

When Unsure

- If ever unsure about your path of action, the following should be used for decision-making.
- Does it not violate existing statutes or regulations. Is it not unethical.
- Is the decision based on sufficient information, with suitable precautions taken.
- Have all related parties and their respective ramifications been considered.
- Can you explain, in good conscience, this act to your friends and family.
- Will the Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group's trust or brand be compromised.
- Will it not be an impediment to Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group's ongoing growth.

- I, Toshiaki Egashira, certify that:
- 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The company's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the company and have:
 - a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - b) [omitted in accordance with the guidance of SEC Release 33-8760];
 - evaluated the effectiveness of the company's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
 the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
 evaluation; and
 - d) disclosed in this report any change in the company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the annual report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the company's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The company's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the company's auditors and the audit committee of the company's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
 - a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the company's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 26, 2008

/s/ Toshiaki Egashira

By: Toshiaki Egashira

President and Representative Director

I, Isamu Endo, certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 20-F of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the company as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
- 4. The company's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the company and have:
 - a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the company, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
 - b) [omitted in accordance with the guidance of SEC Release 33-8760];
 - evaluated the effectiveness of the company's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
 the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
 evaluation; and
 - d) disclosed in this report any change in the company's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by the annual report that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the company's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The company's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the company's auditors and the audit committee of the company's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):
 - a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 - b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the company's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: September 26, 2008

/s/ Isamu Endo

By: Isamu Endo

Senior Managing Director

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, the undersigned officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc. (the "Company") hereby certifies, to such officer's knowledge, that the Company's annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended March 31, 2008 (the "Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: September 26, 2008

/s/ Toshiaki Egashira

By: Toshiaki Egashira

President and Representative Director

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, the undersigned officer of Mitsui Sumitomo Insurance Group Holdings, Inc. (the "Company") hereby certifies, to such officer's knowledge, that the Company's annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended March 31, 2008 (the "Report") fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: September 26, 2008

/s/ Isamu Endo

By: Isamu Endo

Senior Managing Director